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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

Percentage

2018 change
“E-\F BaokEH

PYE segment revenue (HK$ million) REZZHIBIA (BRI 9,347.6 6,799.5 37%
PYE segment profit (HK$' million) RERZEDE BN (BEEE T 189.9 13.4 67%
Loss before interest and tax (HK$' million) A B MIRIER R (BB ETT) (5,391.9) (1,376.2) 299%
Loss for“rh'e }/ear attributable to shareholders A B E (5 4E RS 1S (5%%;@ (5,847.6) (1,573.8) 979%
(HK$'million)

Shares ou’rs’ronding (million) BTENRD (BEER) 1,013 1,013 -
Loss per share (HK cents) - Basic FIRERE GBL) — B (577.3) (630.5) (8%)
Total assets (HK$'million) REE (BEAET) 8,359.0 13,9452 (40%)
Operating cash outflow (HK$'million) KEBES R (B8 AIT) (207.0) (89.6) 131%
) C N . — N/A

Net cash (outflow) inflow (HK$ million) BE ) mA%R%E (BEET (848.1) 806.4 N
B
Total debts/total assets ratio faEmE  EEELR 0.61 0.35 74%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

Following the completion of the rights issue in March 2018,
the Company completed the fit-out, furnished and installed
operating equipment at THE 13 Hotel and obtained the hotel
license in August 2018 and opened the property.

The Company continues to find new working partners and
investors on management and financing of the hotel business
after its opening in order to cope with the keen competition of
the Macau hotel market.

Our construction business under Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited ("PYE") continued to thrive with revenue growth by
37% to HK$9.3 billion while the order book has been built up
to some HK$32.7 billion and value of remaining works (based
on certified amount) stood at HK$20.3 billion as at the year
end. Further new contracts amounting to HK$6.8 billion were
secured post year end.

We recorded a loss of HK$5,848 million (2018: HK$1,574
million) attributable to owners of the Company which is
equivalent to a basic loss per share of 577.3 HK cents (630.5
HK cents in 2018). Such significant loss was primarily due to the
recognition of impairment loss on hotel segment assets, increase
in depreciation and amortisation charges and hotel operation
costs for hotel segment in the current year. As a result, the Group
has deficit in equity attributable o owners of the Company of
HK$803 million.

We expect consolidated losses to continue as the hotel business
is just operational by the end of August 2018. We believe
targeting a global clientele of customers seeking a unique luxury
experience remains an optional strategy for the Macau market.

As at year ended 31 March 2019, the Company will not pay a
dividend.

The disposal of our 51.76% interest in PYE at HK$300 million
was approved in the special general meeting held on 8 May
2018. The completion of the Disposal is subject to certain
conditions, which has not been totally fulfilled yet. As such, the
long stop date for completion of the Disposal was extended to

31 March 2020.

We are working hard to finalise the potential disposal of partial
interest in THE 13 Hotel as well as other measures with a view to
strengthen our balance sheet.

Finally, we thank our employees for their dedication and hard
work, and our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their continued support.

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 August 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

South Shore Holdings Limited is a hospitality, entertainment
and construction group that combines a unique ultra-luxury hotel
and entertainment development on Macau's Cotai Strip ("THE
13 Hotel”) with the Hong Kong-based legacy business of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

Hotel Business
THE 13 Hotel (100% owned)

THE 13 Hotel and entertainment complex, located at the
southern end of Macau's famous Cotai Strip, houses a unique
collection of refined and remarkable luxury experiences.

The Company appointed internationally acclaimed architect
Peter Marino as the Executive Design Theme Architect and the
Interior Design Theme Consultant. Mr. Marino is the principal
of Peter Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture, planning and
design firm based in New York City, whose clients include some
of the most iconic names in the fashion and art worlds. He is
responsible for the flagship stores of many of the world’s leading
luxury brands including Chanel, Louis Vuitton, Christian Dior,
Ermenegildo Zegna, Graff and Loewe.

With a gross floor area of approximately 945,000 square feet,
THE 13 Hotel is designed to ensure the highest level of luxury and
privacy, THE 13 Hotel offers approximately 200 duplex suites
and villas beginning at around 2,000 square feet ranging up
to around 10,000 square feet and a royal villa of over 20,000
square feet. All guests will arrive in their rooms via lifts that open
directly into the suites.

Following the completion of rights issue in March 2018, the
Company completed the fit-out, furnished and installed
operating equipment at THE 13 Hotel and obtained license in
August 2018 and opened hotel by 31 August 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, the hotel segment recorded assets

of approximately HK$4,407 million after recognition of
impairment loss on hotel assets of approximately HK$4,697
million in accordance with the latest valuation report carried
out by an independent valuer at valuation date of 31 March
2019. Further details are explained in section “Impairment loss
on hotel business” below. The hotel assets include prepaid land
lease payment, hotel property and hotel fixture, furniture and
equipment in Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEES

The hotel segment also recorded liabilities of approximately
HK$4,659 million* which include liability portion of convertible
bonds issued for financing the hotel development and bank and
other borrowings for the hotel development.

Revenue of hotel rooms and food & beverage was
approximately HK$3 million and HK$2 million, respectively. The
average occupancy rate was 8% with average daily room rate
at around HK$5,000. There was segment loss of approximately
HK$5,798 million* for the year ended 31 March 2019 of

which the loss before interest, tax, deprecioﬁon, amortization
and impairment loss of the hotel segment for the year was
approximately HK$236 million. The hotel segment also incurred
impairment loss on hotel assets in aggregate of approximately
HK$4,697 million and depreciation and amortization charges
of approximately HK$465 million for the year. Finance costs on
bank and other borrowings was approximately HK$272 million
for the year ended 31 March 2019. Finance costs on convertible
bonds was approximately HK$128 million for the year.

*  the amounts are after the elimination of inter-segment
balances and transactions.

Engineering Business
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (51.76% owned) (‘PYE")

PYE is a 51.76% owned subsidiary of the Company and is one
of the leading management contractors in Hong Kong and
Macau. PYE traces its origins to Shanghai in 1946 and has
played a major role in shaping the skyline and world-class
infrastructure of Hong Kong over the past seven decades.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, PYE is dedicated to providing
full-fledged engineering and property services, with operations
in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhovu,
Nantong, Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia.

With more than seven decades of experiences, PYE prides itself
on its ability to deliver integrated property development solutions

from concept to completion as well as on-going management.

During the year under review, seeing the increase in capital
expenditures and investments in Hong Kong translating into
more infrastructure and housing projects, PYE seized the
opportunities and made significant progress with respect

to existing development strategies and the results were
encouraging. The proactive and aggressive bidding strategy
which we adopted allowed us to successfully expand our
customer base and increase our contract on hand. In oddiﬁon,
PYE's civil engineering department successfully secured a
number of new contracts.

SOUTH SHORE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

Management Contracting division remained the core business
of PYE and the major contributor of revenue of PYE this

year. Revenue of this division amounted to approximately
HK$9,348 million (2018: HK$6,799 million), up by about 37%.
Its operating profit amounted to approximately HK$189 million
(2018: HK$118 million). As at 31 March 2019, the value of
contracts on hand was approximately HK$32,722 million, while
the value of remaining works (based on certified amount) had
stood at approximately HK$20,277 million.

During the year under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction contracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$14,599 million. Subsequent to the
year end, the division secured further contracts of approximately
HK$6,703 million. Set out below are some of the new contracts
secured during the year and up to the date of this report:

Construction of Central Kowloon Route - Kai Tak East

Construction of public rental housing development at
Queen’s Hill Site 1 Phases 2, 4 & 5 and portion of Phase 6
cum alteration and addition works at Ching Ho Estate

Design and construction of redevelopment of Queen Mary
Hospital, Phase 1 - Main works at Pok Fu Lam Road

Foundation and main contract works for the residential

development at NKIL6562 and NKIL6565, Kai Tak

Main contract for academic building at No.3 Sassoon Road
for the University of Hong Kong

Main contract works for residential and commercial
re-development at 13-15 Sze Shan Street, Yau Tong

Main contract works for residential development at So

Kwun Wat Road, Area 56, Tuen Mun

Main works contract for development of IE 2.0 Project A at
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate

Three runway system project - Third runway and associated
works at Hong Kong International Airport

During the year under review, revenue contributed by the

Property Development Management division was insignificant.

The Property Investment division reported a profit, through

its joint venture, of approximately HK$2 million for the year
under review. The joint venture holds an investment property

in Hangzhou, the Pioneer Technology Building, which is an
office building with gross floor area of about 20,000 square
meters. The building generated rental income of about HK$N
million (2018: HK$12 million) during the year and its occupancy
reached about 96% as at 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Memorandum of Understanding with an associate of a
substantial shareholder of the Company ("(MOU")

On 4 January 2019, the Company entered into the MOU with
an associate of a substantial shareholder of the Company in
respect of a potential investment in a subsidiary of the Company
that beneficially owns THE 13 Hotel for not exceeding HK$1.5
billion. Earnest money of HK$70 million has been paid to the
Company up to 31 March 2019. The MOU shall expire on 9
August 2019 or upon execution of formal agreement whichever
is earlier unless extended by agreement of the parties in writing.

Potential disposal of PYE Group
On 28 June 2017, The 13 (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary of the

Company, entered info sale and purchase agreements in respect
of the disposal of its 51.76% interests in Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited ("PYE"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
to Precious Year Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties Group Limited ("ITCP”), a listed company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchonge (stock code 199) and
Tycoon Bliss Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Chan
Fut Yan, the deputy chairman and executive director of PYE
and also the managing director and executive director of ITCP,
for a total consideration of HK$300 million (the "Disposal”) in
which HK$179 million has been received by the Company as
deposits for the Disposal. The remaining balance of HK$121
million will be received upon completion of the Disposal. The
long stop date of the Disposal was extended to 31 March 2020.

The major conditions precedent under the Disposal contracts
which have not been fulfilled are conditions (b) and (d)

under the section headed "Conditions Precedent for the Sale
and Purchase Agreements” in the circular of the Company
dated 28 March 2018, as the Group has yet to receive the
consent of the relevant lenders (the "Lenders”) to the release

of the encumbrances against the relevant sale shares and for
completion of the transactions contemplated under the sale and
purchase agreements. The Group has written to the Lenders to
seek their respective consents, but the requests are currently still
under review by the Lenders. It is expected that the conditions
precedent to the sale and purchase agreements will be fulfilled
on or before 31 March 2020, subject to, amongst other things,
the Lenders granting their consents. It is also expected that the
Company will only proceed with completion of the Disposal
after certain expectations (the "Expectations”) are met (details
of which are set out in note 1(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements on page 110 of this annual report). The Expectations
do not constitute additional conditions precedent or affect

any terms of the Disposo|, as ’rhey do not form any part of

the Disposo| contracts. Rather, ’rhey are regcrded as internal
criteria of the Company. According to the contract terms of the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEES

Disposal, the completion of the Disposal is mandatory once all
conditions precedents are fulfilled, even if the Expectations have
not been fulfilled.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 June 2019, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with a third party to dispose of the Group's total of
twenty-four motor vehicles for an aggregate consideration of
HK$24,000,000 and the consideration was received on the
same date. For def0i|s, p|eose refer to an announcement of the
Company dated 26 June 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's consolidated
revenue including joint operations increased to approximately

HK$9,382 million (2018: HK$6,800 million).

In the current year, PYE applied HKFRS 15 "Revenue

from Contracts with Customers” and HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, without restating the financial information for the
last corresponding year. As the profits of PYE for the two years
were determined by applying different accounting standards,
certain information may not be directly comparable. The
impacts and changes in accounting policies on application

of HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and
HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” are stated in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year was
approximately HK$5,848 million (2018: HK$1,574 million),
represents an increase of approximately 3 times resulting mainly
from the increase in impairment loss on hotel assets, depreciation
and amortization charges and hotel operation expenses for the
hotel segment compared with last year. Basic loss per share was

577.3 HK cents.

The Group recorded total assets of approximately HK$8,359
million as at 31 March 2019, an approximately 40% decrease
compared with the prior year. The equity attributable to
owners of the Company decreased to deficit of approximately
HK$803 million which was mainly due to impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,697 million and loss for the year resulting
from the hotel segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$207
million and net cash outflow in respect of investing activities was
approximately HK$484 million. Net cash outflow in respect of
financing activities was approximately HK$157 million, resulting
in a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of about HK$848
million for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

AREEEH RS R EENA207EET, MER
WEEH IR M RN A4.84E 5. BHEMES
FoIRERERENESTERT, NAEEHEE_=
—NEZB=-+—HIEEEZRENBEHEBERE
108.481E BT 2 3R IRo

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES RBETREARKR
The Group maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet ZKEEK@f}_E%IETD ELHMRMEEFFECEEES. N
requirements for working capital. At 31 March 2019, cash, bank “E—NF=A=1+—H, Ba. EIOERLEIE

balances and deposits stood at approximately HK$338 million,
of which approximately HK$238 million, HK$54 million, HK$34
million, HK$9 million and HK$3 million were denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Macau Patacas, Singapore
Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit respectively.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$4,319
million at year-end of which approximately HK$4,301 million
are repayable within one year. In addition, the Group also
has outstanding convertible bonds with a face value of
approximately HK$2,219 million and a liability component
as at 31 March 2019 of approximately HK$813 million. The
convertible bonds mature in February 2025.

As at 31 March 2019, other than the convertible bonds, the
Group's variable-rate borrowings and fixed-rate borrowings

are approximately HK$3,612 million and HK$707 miillion
respectively. The convertible bonds are interest free. All borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group's ratio of
total debt to total assets, based on total debt of approximately
HK$5,132 million and total assets of approximately HK$8,359
million, increased from approximately 35% as at 31 March 2018
to approximately 61% as at 31 March 2019.

As of 31 March 2019, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$4,344 million. The Group
is working to obtain further facilities which will enhance the
liquidity of the Group's operations.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON HOTEL BUSINESS
Reasons and events leading to impairment

As part of the audit process, the Group conducted an
impairment test of the assets of hotel business according to the
accounting standards and engaged an independent valuer to
assess the value of THE 13 Hotel.

In accordance with the "Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 -
Impairment of Assets’, an entity shall assess at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists (such as asset’s
value has declined significantly more than would be expected
as a result of the passage of time or normal use and significant
changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place),
the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its book
value, impairment loss should be made based on the difference
between the recoverable amount of the asset and its book value.

According to the valuation report prepared by the independent
valuer dated 26 July 2019, the value of THE 13 Hotel is
approximately HK$4,330 million as at 31 March 2019 which
showed an indication of impairment as at 31 March 2019 in
accordance with the "Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36"

The entering info of a formal agreement with any concessionaire
or sub-concessionaire as operator in respect of any gaming
operations in THE 13 Hotel continues to remain subject to,
amongst other things, the operator making an application and
obtaining approval from the Macau Government to conduct
gaming operations in THE 13 Hotel. Given that no such formal
agreement has been entered into, a significant reduction of
anticipated occupancy and room rates as well as forecast
revenue has been made in our business plans, taking account
of current market conditions. Accordingly, the Group made an
impairment of approximately HK$4,697 million on the carrying
amount of the assets under the hotel segment in its financial
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Method and basis used in determining the amount of the
impairment losses

The Group estimated the recoverable amount of the hotel
business (the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs)
according to the valuation performed by the independent valuer
under the "Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 -
of Assets”.

Impairment

The assets of THE 13 Hotel (or hotel business) which include in
the cash-generating unit of hotel business and are subject to
impairment test represent hotel property, prepaid land lease
payments, property, plant and equipment and deposits paid for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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According to the valuation report prepared by the independent
valuer dated 26 July 2019, the value of THE 13 Hotel is
approximately HK$4,330 million as at 31 March 2019 which
showed an indication of impairment as at 31 March 2019, as the
recoverable amount of THE 13 Hotel (or hotel business assefs) is
less than its book value.

Impairment loss of approximately HK$4,697 million was
recognized during the year ended 31 March 2019, of which
approximately HK$3,711 million, HK$752 million and HK$234
million were allocated to hotel property, prepaid land lease
payments and property, p|c1n’r and equipment respec’rive|y

on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of these
assets in the hotel business in accordance with the "Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36"

Valuation methodology, value of inputs and basis and
assumption

The valuation methodology, value of inputs in the current and
previous years used in the valuations together with the basis and
assumption are as follows:

RBEBIEER - NFEtA - T/ HRENGE
wE, +TAEER-FE-NAF=RE=1+—HHNEENS
4330887, BN _S-—NF=A=+—HBFERE
B, RER+=BE (BAEEXBEE) R 0258
EREREE,

REBEN4697EEBTEREBEE_S—NF =1

—t+—HIEFERSE, BRNI7NEET. 7.52EE T
IMEE TR BB BT ERE3657 ) BB/E XL
ZEEERBAELADRDEEBEYE. BN

BRI BN o

HESE BABBEBEREENRR

HETA. HEMAREFERTFEZBAZREE

BEEERRERNT

Current Year

Valuation Report

REEGERS

Previous Year
Valuation Report

EFEGHERS

Valuation methodology {HEHE
Discount Rate BhIR=
Number of gaming tables BERREE

Commencement of gaming operations 557418 1 2 75
BE—FVHISHREE

Average daily room rate in year 1

B—FAEX
B—FHERA

Occupancy rate in year 1

Sales revenue in year |

BER A BEE

GFOWHW rate in so|es revenue

THESEEEEES

Growth rate in average daily

room rate
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Income Approach A &
10.5%

N/A 38

N/A 38
HK$6,050-HK$35,000
6,050 7% 35,0007/8 7T
12%-46%

HK$274.1 million

274,100,00078 7T

Year 2 85 —1F | 47%
Year 3 85 —F | 42%
Year 4 Z5TULE 1 29%
Year5 B AL 1 19%
YearQ 28— 4 . 3% - 99%
Year 3 8B =45 1 3% -19%
Year 4 Z3VULF & 3% - 17%
Year 5 5B A 1 3% - 15%
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Income Approach W A &
13%
66

Year 2 55— 4F

HK$10,625-HK$32,593
10,625 7B702E 32,593 AT
51%
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Year 2 22 4 1,266%
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Year 4 Z5VU4F 5%
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Year 2 5 _F 29%
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Growth rate in occupancy rate AFXRIgEXR
Long term growth rate R EX

There is no change in the valuation method used by the valuer

for current year and previous year.

Reasons of significant changes in the value of inputs and
assumptions adopted in current period from previous period

The reason for significant changes in the value of the inputs
and assumptions adopted in current year from those previously

adopted are as follows:

Given that no formal agreement has been entered into with any
concessionaire or sub-concessionaire as operator, in respect of
any gaming operations in THE 13 Hotel, a significant reduction
of anticipated occupancy and room rates as well as forecast
revenue has been made in our business plans, taking into
account of current market conditions. Accordingly, the Group
has taken a prudent approach in preparing the valuation of
the hotel business by revising the operating forecast of the hotel
business, which includes but not limited to (i) offering certain
promotion discounts on the room rates in year 1 to year 5 in
order to attract more customers; and (i) restructuring source of
hotel revenue by focusing more on holding events/exhibitions/
parties, etc. at THE 13 Hotel in order to substitute the business of

gaming operation.

Valuation method

Income approach and use of discounted cash flow method
("DCF") is applied for the valuation. The reason for using this

method is as follow:

- Under the "Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36, the
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
can only be assessed based on its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use (i.e. DCF);

- The value of the hotel business is determined by its potential
ability to generate a stream of benefits in the future;

Current Year Previous Year

Valuation Report Valuation Report
AEEHERS EFHERS

Year 2 28— F 8% - 21% Year Q 22 1F 47%
Year 3 &5 =4F | 8% - 18% Year 3 85 =1 3%
Year 4 VU | 7% - 12% Year 4 VU 3%
Year5 B HF | 4% - 7% Year 5 & AT 3%
3% 2.8%
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- The future cash flow of the hotel business can be identified
based on the hotel performqnce record and forecast
prepared loy management of the Company; and

- Market approach (i.e. fair value less costs of disposal) is
not app|icqb|e due to infrequent sales of hotels on an open
market basis in the |oc<:1|i’ry of the hotel business, i.e. Macau.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,131 full-time employees, including the

Directors of the Group but excluding contracted casual labour

in Macau, as at 31 March 2019. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages based on overall market rates, employee
performonce, and the performance of the Group. Remuneration
packages are comprised of salary, performance-based bonuses,
and other benefits including training, provident funds and
medical coverage. Three share incentive schemes (namely share
option scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan)

are in place to motivate and reward eligible employees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group pledged hotel property,
prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and equipment,
inventories and bank deposits of approximately HK$2,864
million, HK$651 million, HK$32 million, HK$20 million and
HK$16 million, respectively, and charged the Group's benefits
over cerfain construction contracts and the Group's inferests
over certain subsidiaries to secure the general banking and other
facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of indemnities
of approximately HK$46 million issued to financial institutions
for bonds on construction contracts of joint operations as at 31

March 2019.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$9 million.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, 2,876,392 share options
lapsed.

As at 31 March 2019, there were 1,012,953,711 shares in issue.
Additional shares may be issued by way of: (i) exercise of
share options of the Company for up to 8,369,781 shares of
the Company; and (i) conversion of three 2025 convertible
bonds which if fu”y converted would result in the issuance of
231,632,026 shares of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEES

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
of the Company’s listed securities.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is affected by a number of risk factors, some of which
are likely to affect the performance of business generally. Some
risk are particular to the Group's operations.

As stated in the Risk Management and Internal Control of the
Corporate Governance Report, significant risks of the Group

are considered and identified by the Board when setting the
Company's strategic objectives. Moreover, risk management
measures and are in place to manage the risks to an acceptable
level. This section sets out a description of the potential risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, based on our risks assessment
outcome.

Operational Risks

The Group's Macau hotel business is at the preliminary
operation stage, hotel business performance, financial position
and future prospects of the hotel business may be adversely
affected by unfavorable changes in the political, social,
economic or government policies of the Macau government.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties are also set out in Note

40 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Hotel Business

Macau receives approximately 35.8 million visitors for 2018 with
approximately 25.3 million from Mainland China and 7.4 million
from Hong Kong and Taiwan. The visitation to Macau for 2018
recorded an increase of 9.8% compared to the year 2017 and
record an increase of 20.6% year-on-year for the six months
ended June 2019.

Looking ahead, the hotel market in Macau continues to growth
steadily but the overall external economic environment is still
posing uncertainty including the US-China trade tension is
expected to continue and raise uncertainty on the political and
financial risks in short-tem, but it still looks remain optimistic in
long-term.
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THE 13 Hotel has been focusing on repositioning the business
and operational model without gaming since obtaining of the
hotel licenses in last August. It is now poised to capitalise on its
unique ultra luxurious theme for the establishing of the brand
and market penetration with a view to boost occupancy and
holding of special events in this financial year.

Engineering Business

Faced with trade war between the United States and Mainland
China, the economy of Hong Kong, inevitably, is slowing down
with weaker exports and worse business sentiment. Fortunately,
the HKSAR government has promised to increase land and
housing supply. Barring what appears to be a temporary hold
up in the capital budget approval process, it is expected that
market demand for construction service will continue to grow
and even bring the construction industry to another new height if

all the development plans are put on stream on time.

Despite that the construction market in Hong Kong is growing, it
continues to face challenges such as lack of skilled labour as well
as rising operating costs. In this regard, PYE Group will, on the
one hand, endeavour to reduce operating costs and streamline
work procedures to further enhance efficiency. On the other
hand, we will also strengthen staff training and retain talents.
We believe that PYE Group's scale and achievements made so
far have well-positioned us to build a professional team which

is keen on various aspects, thus strengthening our capabilities to

capture new opportunities.

In addition, to further drive the industry reform, we encourage
highly efficient and safe construction. We also continue to
introduce new technologies such as introducing automatic walll
plastering machine and real-time face recognition device at

the sites and carrying out safety drill of the project using Virtual
Reality (VR) technology. PYE Group also places great emphasis
on the research and application of Modular Integrated
Construction (MiC) to keep abreast of the HKSAR government's
policy on promoting new and innovative construction methods.
We have also switched to cloud storage of information in order
to implement real-time management and monitoring of project
information more conveniently and efficiently. PYE Group will
keep researching, introducing and adopting state-of-the-art
technologies to create new value for the construction industry in
the new era.
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EERE[N

Peter Lee Coker Jr., aged 50, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director)

of the Company since February 2013 and Chairman (Executive Committee) of

the Company since 25 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company, and a member of the Finance and Investment
Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 28 years of experience in the finance and
investment industries. He is the Managing Partner of Pacific Advisers, and is also

a partner of TDR Capital Investment Ltd (a Shenzhen-based private equity firm).
Mr Coker served as an officer of the Bridge Companies prior to joining Wellington
Securities (New Zealand) in 2002. During his service with the Bridge Companies,
Mr Coker held the title of Managing Director-Asia, Chief Executive Officer of
E-Bridge and Managing Director of Bridge Asia where he was responsible for the
firm's equity business in Japan and South East Asia/Australia. From 2000 to 2001,
Mr Coker served as the Chairman of IRESS Market Technology Limited (formerly
BridgeDFS) (ASX: IRE). From 2002 to 2005, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of
Wellington Securities (New Zealand). From 2006 to 2009, Mr Coker served as the
Chairman of Global Trading Offshore Pte (Singapore). Mr Coker graduated from
Lehigh University in the United States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990.

MR PETER LEE COKER JR.

PETER LEE COKER JR. #c4 Peter Lee Coker Jr., 505%, H_EF— =& _HARHTALNEZHETF
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Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 68, is the Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee,

Corporate Governance Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee

of the Company. He is also the Deputy Chairman and non-executive director

of a subsidiary of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lau has over 40 years' international corporate development and
management experience in infrastructure developments as well as construction and
engineering services invo|ving the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining
and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. Mr Lau has been the Deputy
Chairman of the Company since January 2005. He has been re-designated from
Non-Executive Director of the Company to Executive Director of the Company since
February 2013. Mr Lau is the Chairman and Managing Director of PY| Corporation
Limited (0498.HK), a significant developer and operator of major bulk cargo

ports in the Yangtze River Region in China. He is also the Deputy Chairman and

non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK) and
he was an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material
Company Limited (3323.HK) until November 2011. Mr Lau is also a director of

MR LAU TOM KO YUEN Circle Swing Limited, Rally Praise Limited, Empire City International Limited and
ERTE Affluent Talent Limited, all of which have interests in the shares/underlying shares

Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

2lEfE FTES) Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Walter Craig Power, aged 65, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company. He

is also a member of the Finance and Investment Committee of the Company.

Mr Power has been the Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) of the
Company from February 2013 to May 2019. He has been re-designated from
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) of the Company to Non-Executive
Director of the Company since May 2019. He is one of the longest serving casino
executive expatriates in Macau's gaming industry. Arrived in Macau in January
2003, Mr Power has held the positions of Chief Operating Officer of New

Cotai Entertainment, an investor and developer of Macau Studio City, as well as
Senior Vice President of Operations of Venetian Macau Limited. Mr Power was
instrumental to the success of the deve|opmenf, opening and operation of the Sands,
the first western casino in Macau. During his tenure at the Sands, he was responsible
for casino operations, hotel operations, all food and beverage outlets and security
operations. He was also a member of the Compliance and Credit Committee. Being

one of first western executives to enter the Macau gaming market, and having

worked in Macau for over fourteen years, Mr Power is known inferngﬁonct”y for his
extensive knowledge of Macau gaming to include junket, VIP, and mass market

operations. A 26-year gaming indusfry veteran, Mr Power accumulated extensive
MR WALTER CRAIG POWER international gaming experience through executive operational positions at casino
WALTER CRAIG POWER 54 resorts in the United States, Argentina, South Africa and the Philippines, in addition
to his work in Macau. Mr Power, a former United States Marine Corps Major and
Naval Aviator, received his BA and MBA from the University of Michigan. He is also

a graduate of the casino industry’s Executive Development Program offered by the

Non-Executive Director
EPITEER

University of Nevada/Reno.

Walter Craig Power, 655%, AANNEZIEHITES, MINARNE LM
NREEE T E. Walter Craig Powerlc A B - ——F _AF _F—7,
FRA—BREARAITEREE GITESR) . B -F—LEARBRNK
RNBTEREH MITES) AEARRBFFHITES, MARPIBEE
RERA-ZRENBERZNEEIGZITHAB. PowertEN _FE=

—HEERPY, HNew Cotai Entertainment CRFIEEBFIIBE v EE F
B IETIT BGRB8, TEEREHA CRFY) RMDBRABzERE
ERIRRH. Power tAYHEPIERE A MG ® L CRINERE. FZENEE
IERBBMEIER. NSV TEEE, aER5EE. BEEE B

BENRLZEF. MITEAERNMEEZESME. PowertE A EHIEAN
BRI MBS A ITRAS —, EMIIER+HOEE, MRS
T BB (DEEBEPINA. BERTEDIBEE), HHORER
FEERRE, (FA—BREXEHREFFKRBcERAL, RTEM
R TIERERIN, PowerftETNGEIBNER. [IRIE. FBIENIEEER
SIEATEHEERBERT B8 BB EEAE. Powerft £ AR EEE
FEHHORMBERITE, REBIERASESNELTEMNTEEIE
PE B, 7ME E University of Nevada/Renofiee < B FETH A 28 E
EYEN
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James Chiu, OBE, JP, aged 80, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and PYE
Committee of the Company. He is also the Chairman, independent non-executive
director and the Chairman of the audit committee of a subsidiary of the Company,
and an independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ir Chiu
has served Hong Kong's construction industry for 55 years. He was the Managing
Director of the General Electric Company of Hong Kong Limited from 1984 to0 1998.

Ir Chiu has held a number of important industry roles. He was a president of The
Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited, The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong. Currently, he is a Council Member of Hong Kong
Electrical & Mechanical Contractors Association.

Ir Chiu is an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a
Fellow of Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

IR JAMES CHIU B, OBE, JP, 805k, H_EENF=ARHEARNE ZEIIFEH
= TIZET TEE, MIARRNBCEREES. FINEES. PEETARZEEN
Independent Non- Executive Director REREZESIE, WIAKRRE—BRBABRZER. BILIEHIT
i E EENENEZESEE, UNALNE—ENBRBCEBIIIERTES,

HITIRMMRG & BRRFRSF. R —N/N\AFE-—NNN\FREE
< REE A EEaRGECE T E SRS IE—B,

BTEMSRIXANZEEZRG, ETUEEERETERHEER,
BEEIREMBEERNEERBELRE. MRHAEERETEAWE
EE,

HBIRMAEETIEMEELEERGENEELENERERES,

19

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS
EERE[N

lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 78, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director

of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance and
Investment Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a member
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr Bruce joined KPMG in Hong Kong in 1964 and was elected to its partnership in
1971. He was the Senior Partner of KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 1996 and
served as Chairman of KPMG Asia Pacific from 1993 to 1997. Since 1964, Mr Bruce
has been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, and is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with over 51 years
of international experience in accounting and consulting. He is also a fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. Mr Bruce serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards
of several publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, including, Wing On Company
International Limited (0289.HK), Tencent Holdings Limited (0700.HK) and
Goodbaby International Holdings Limited (1086.HK). He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited, a

company whose shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Bruce
was an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Medical Technologies, Inc.,

MR IAIN FERGUSON BRUCE a China-based medical device company that was listed on NASDAQ, up to 3 July

maRLRE 2012. He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vitasoy International
Independent Non-Executive Director Holdings Limited (0345.HK) and retired from that company’s board on 4
BT EE September 2014, and was the Chairman of KCS Limited until T August 2015. He

was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Sands China Ltd. (1928.HK) until

11 March 2016. He was also a Non-Executive Director of Noble Group Limited,
effective from 1 March 2017, a company whose shares are listed on The Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and resigned from that company’s board on 11
May 2017. He was also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Citibank (Hong
Kong) Limited, and resigned from that company’s board on 2 August 2017. He

was also an Independent Non-Executive Director of MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong)
Limited, and resigned from that company's board on 1 July 2018.

BRI, 8%, B SEAF—BARHTARBZEIIIFNTES, M
MARRNB B NIREEZEGNIREZET LR, NANBCERE
BEg. E%NEE88. CEXBEAZEGNRERXZEENE, AR
NE—BENBRE B IIFRTEENEREESNE, MELRER
—NAHFNREEESHETEFEA R — Nt —FRAaHEH
A WH—NAN—FEER—NNANERNABEEEEEREEARR
—AN=FE-—ANEFEHIEESH T KR TE. H—NEELR,
METEEAGREBENTEANLAENE SN GEREE, W
ERSIFEIEEFT NBARG KR, WA EE52gEERSN
HEZEEREE, MELTHEREEZR LM LM RNBEEE BT
JEHITESR, DIEKLZEFEERNE(0289.HK). BEHFIZRE R E(0700.
HK) X2 4 %+ B R A2 B 75 PR 22 B)(1086.HK)o - 774 Yingli Green Energy
Holding Company Limited (5% B &2 B (TR MRIKUEE S5 A2 5 FTEIT 22 5) 2 J8
TIEHITER, BELTILE R TEChina Medical Technologies, Inc. (Bl A
—EPEEMHREAB R E RN RNETEZE R TETRZ) < EILIER
NTEEEE_F—_FLHE=H, t12AHMINERERERLNE(0345.
HROZBIIFERITESE, RS —HFENANEREZEE2RE&KCS
Limted =& (EEZE—HE/\B—H) ., b8BT EBRELE(1928.
HKZ B FEHTEEEE 22— NF -5 +—H. MIFZ%Noble Group
Limited (2N B Z RO FTIIRE S Z L) I ERITEE (H_F
—tE=FB—HEEN, MR _E—tFAB+—HHEZLBCESE
B MINBALHEET (B2 BRABNBIEITESE ER_8—C
FNBHSEFZRNAEEZSE) . N8 Aa=HEABEMERR (5
BREABZENIFNTEE (BERZE—/\FLA—HIZLEESE

)
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Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 74, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of a
subsidiary of the Company. Professor Lee is the chair professor of geotechnical
engineering and is the Chancellor of the Chu Hai College of Higher Education. He is
also an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering. Professor Lee graduated
from The University of Hong Kong in 1968 and subsequently received his master’s
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1970 and a Ph.D. from the University
of Western Ontario, Canada in 1972. Professor Lee is an internationally renowned
expert in geotechnical engineering. He worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada

for some 20 years before he joined his alma mater in 1994. He has participated

in the design of many massive dams and nuclear power stations. He has served

as a specialist consultant or an advisor to many international bodies such as the

United Nations Development Plan, World Bank, Asian Development Bank, etc. on
numerous energy and infrastructure projects in many parts of the world. Professor

Lee's eminent achievement in civil engineering has been higHy recognized; he was

PROFESSOR LEE CHACK FAN awarded the KY Lo Medal in 2000 by the Engineering Institute of Canada and
N Epa e was elected the academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003

Independent Non-Executive Director in recognition of his contributions to the engineering profession. He has been
EIEH TS appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government in July 2003, and he has been awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and

Gold Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and July 2013 respectively.

Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of
Chinese Culture, member of the Commission on Strategic Development, and the
President of the Fu Hui Charity Foundation.

=855, GBS, SBS, JP, 74, BE_BEAF—BRHEARNEZEIL
IFWTES, MITERAERREICIELEESFRERARNIACEREER.
FWEZEENRERXZEENE, MIIARLE—BNEBRE &
IFNTESNEREBEEGME, THRABBRBE T TIREERARK
KBERRE. MRsFRBEIRERR L. EHERNR—NANN\ERERE
BRE, MEBR-—NTEFREEEARZCBELTE4, MR—HtZ
FERMEABZ KB AZEIFE 24, ZHERAEERFN ST TE
BER, MR—ANUFENBEESRUE, ERNERZABEENLT
TER0F, MBBELIFEANBNZEROFGT LIF. FREHMERE
WL EERLERZEE, AL ERREBNBEREER, JEMaRE
BEtE). HALT. EMERIETSE. SHENEIARKTESMEIEE
AR EERERY, W T 55 F B 5 Engineering Institute of CanadalIKY
Lo Medal, ARSI _SF=FEEATE LESMRRE L, UXRBERN
TARTEFEHNER. MR _EF=FCHAEEAFIITHERNGED
AT, TR _SFEAFELAR_S—=FtABBRKIEEA
ENTRABE,

FHEEMAEETELRET ODESTEERE. RREREZEGUE
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Francis Goutenmacher, aged 78, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Goutenmacher has been with
Richemont Luxury Group, S.A. ("Richemont”), one of the world leading luxury goods
groups, for over 30 years. He has been the managing director and chief executive
officer of several prestigious brands, like Cartier and Piaget, encompassed by
Richemont. After retiring as the regional chief executive of Richemont Asia Pacific
Limited, Mr. Goutenmacher is now running a marketing consultancy firm, Gouten
Consulting Limited, and is a director of this consultancy company. Mr Goutenmacher
holds a Bachelor's degree from Ecole Nationale des Arts Decoratifs in Paris, France.
He is an independent non-executive director of |.T Limited (0999.HK). He was an
independent non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (O157.
HK) until 18 December 2015.

Francis Goutenmacher, 783%, B _ & — =4 _ BT AN B 2B IEH,
TEER, MITARNBCENEEGNIRELEZE G E. Goutenmacherst
ERREHRTBLSERBEEc—NEZEE (FZ)) RFBR30F,
MEREZETLEELSEREN 1 R AE SEIESEK
B NATEHBH . Goutenmacherst 4 BEFEZ A A A RN B < [@ 1517 BUAE
=, HEEMISHERR N 8Gouten Consulting Limited, 7 25%723 A

MR FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER A éig%o Goufenmocherf’ﬁiﬁ}ﬁff EZ@ECOE Nationale des Arts Decoratifs
FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER 52 MBI BB, B ETALT Limited (0999 HK)Z BT IETE S, HE
Independent Non-Executive Director ABEREEYREBRAE(OZHK)Z I ETESEE _E—HF
BIIEHITESR +ZB-+/\Ho

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since November 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr Chan is the Chief Investment Officer (Acting) of
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (with effect from 1 April
2018). He has over 34 years of experience in investment banking and investment
management industry. He is a co-founder of Techpacific Capital Limited since
1999, and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Crosby Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited from 2002 to 2016, Mr Chan is the President of the Hong
Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association. He is also the Secretary
General of the Asia Venture Capital and Private Equity Council. Mr Chan was a
member of Advisory Committee of the Innovation and Technology Commission
from 2014 to 2017. He is a member of the Choate Rosemary Hall Parent Advisory
Council and a Director of Repton International (Asia Pacific) Limited. He is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of CNQC International Holdings Limited
(1240.HK). Mr. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration degree from CASS,
City, University of London, a postgraduate diploma from The Securities Institute

of Australia and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Economics from the London

Metropolitan University.

RER, 9%, B_F—UF+—AHERAREZBIIENTES, it

MR CHAN KOK CHUNG, JOHNNY THARAD L BREBAME, ML ASSUBAERERATRE
BREBSE e (B18) (55— \EA—DBRER) . tRRESTRIEES

Independent Non-Executive Director EAEREBERMELR, ME— AN EARREXRBRERAZHEBE
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RENFERITERE,. MAETEEBRERLERERS TR, M5
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Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 50, is the Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary
of the Company. She is also the secretary of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Disclosures Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company, and the company secretary of various subsidiaries of the Company. She

is responsible for legal, regulatory compliance, corporate governance and company
secretarial matters of the Group. Ms Mui has over 27 years' experience in company
secretarial field. She joined the Group in 1997. Ms Mui holds a Bachelor (Hons) Degree
in Law and a Master of Arts Degree in Language and Law. She is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

WAL, 50k, MANBZERBRIRNAUWE, TARRBZEKES

2. RHEEE. NBEZEE. RERXZEERWATEZEEWE, MUEE
RNEIZBENBLAACLANE. NEEAEE AR BEEGH. bXEA
NRBIMEER. B NARRBWESH L EBERIFLR. tR—NNt
FMALER, 9/ NAKEEREREBELBUNGES AR ER TR

MS MUI CHING HUNG, JOANNA HAEEFANELGNREFFUERTHRAELREEE,
FRAL/)VE

Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRELARS

South Shore Holdings Limited (the “Company’, together with
its subsidiaries, the "Group”) is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance because we believe that

is the best way to enhance shareholder value. The Company
places strong emphasis on an effective board (the "Board”) of
directors (the "Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound
internal control, appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and
transparency to all shareholders.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2019 and has adopted most of the recommended best

practices stated therein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors to ensure independent viewpoints

in all discussions. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises eight Directors, including two Executive Directors, one
Non-Executive Director and five Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Board members are listed below:

HEFREEERNE (ARF), ERHEMBAE, 58
AITAER) BOFeNKTFzbFEzER, HEAEEE
BEDHREARKRBECRERE, ARBCEEERR
Al ERzARREE ((EF) g ((EF8) . B8
M. BRZAEEE. BEZARFEEFNE2RR
HBEHE,

RBEE-S-—NF=ZB=+—HLFERN, ARFEE
TEEMERZAERLNE (&M &5 LR
A (TEIRAL) Myek+THPrE (R B~ RI) (TsFRI)
ZFTBESTRNESS, TEFRME R REMDEZREREFo

EXg

B
ESEPITEFNIERTEZ ZHERFT Y, R
PrEsTmBRBIIERR. NARSHH, EFTH/\I
ESHEN (QEMUNTES. —FTEENROM
BIUENTESR) . EFEMEIAUNT

Board of Directors EEE

Executive Directors

HITES
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (FE[E)

*  Lau Tom Ko Yuen

(Deputy Chairman)
sR @ER)

Mr Walter Craig Power was re-designated from Chief Executive
Officer (Executive Director) to Non-Executive Director with

effect from 1 May 2019.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages

16 to 22 of this annual report and on the Company's website.
In addition, a list containing names of Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Company and
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Non-Executive Director
EMITES
Walter Craig Power
Walter Craig Power

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIIERITES

James Chiu

HHIEE

LLee Chack Fan

a5

lain Ferguson Bruce

mEL

Francis Goutenmacher

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
BRE S

Walter Craig Powerst 4 LT EUEE (B1TEE)
JEHITESR, BE—NLELB—HEE.

HES

EEREBNIINATREBICEEENQE, TRARNT
TS, o, ESR. ABKBBSLERER
5] e BB RS A8 U5 T &
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, at least one-third
of the Board was made up of Independent Non-Executive
Directors. There is no re|oﬁonship (inc|uc|ing financial, business,

Fomi|y or other material/relevant re|oﬁons|'1ip) among members

of the Board.

The composition of the Board (with five Independent
Non-Executive Directors out of eight Directors) exceeds the
Listing Rules requirement to have independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board
during the year ended 31 March 2019:

RBEEZSFS-NEFE=ZB=+—HLEEFERN, EFE
PED=DZ—EFABUFNTES, EFETEIME
2N MRS, . RENEMEAERLE
2R R o

EEgEM N\ REFTERLLBIUFNTES) E
BH EHRABIIFNTESABRESTEEL =L
—ZHTEs

8 Independent -
7 Non-Executive -
6 Directors _
! BUFHITEE -
4
3 Executive | Chingse
2 Directors |
No. of Directors Designation Ethnicity Age Years with
BEEAH B EFE Fin the
Company
AT
NEE

Note: Mr Walter Craig Power was re-designated from Chief
Executive Officer (Executive Director) to Non-Executive
Director with effect from 1 May 2019.

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity
of Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”). Details of
which are set out under the sub-section headed "Nomination
Committee” of this report.

Role and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company'’s strategic
direction and the controls applied to its activities, and ensuring
that Management has appropriate processes in place for
risk—cssessmenf, management, and internal control over the
Company's day-to-day affairs.

M5+ © Walter Craig Powerdt 4 EACITEUE & (VITE =)
BEAERTES, S-SR —HEE
o

FREEHEERMEFENES TLHBR (EFE2
LR » BREFBENAREREREEE ) D,

BAEREE
EFeaaREARAZREARREER T2 E
fl, BREEEC ARG ANEHESEHBCE
BB B REE E12F.
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The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be retained
for the Board decision. These matters include:

1. Corporate strategy;

2. Financial reporting and control;
3. Major financial arrangements;
4. Risk management;

5. Succession planning;

6. Nofifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules; and

7. Recommendations to shareholders regording the
appointment of external auditor, dividend payments, capital

reorganizations and schemes of arrangement.

The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and
management of the Company's business to Management under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Chairman of the
Company was Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company was Mr Walter Craig Power.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by different individuals, with separate duties. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer is clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of the Chairman of the Company is to oversee the
Company's strategic direction and the controls applied to its
activities. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Company establishes sound corporate
governance practices and procedures. He also encourages alll

Directors to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of

the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Chief Executive
Officer was responsible for the overall performance of the
Company and played a leading role in delivering a growth
strategy. He provided leadership for Management, oversaw
the day-to-day operations of the Group, and monitored the
achievement of Company’s objectives set by the Board.
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Non-Executive Directors

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation at least once every three years
and are eligible for re-election by shareholders. All Independent
Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and are subject to retirement by
rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws. The Non-Executive
Director is appointed for a specific term of one year, and is
subject to retirement by rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Board has five Independent Non-Executive Directors,
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has given
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance practice, every
member of the Nomination Committee abstains from assessing
his own independence.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year.
Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled at the beginning
of the year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their
schedules to attend. Directors receive at least 14 days prior
written notice of regular Board meetings and an agenda. The
Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
background information, are normally sent to all Directors

at least 3 days before the Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, Directors are given as much notice as possible in the

circumstances.

In order to have an effective Boord, Directors are provided
with information on activities and developments in the Group's
business on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised
of the latest developments of the Group. The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and are able to seek
independent professional advice whenever they deem it
necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties, it has been the Company's practice to
provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
positions and prospects since 2007, way ahead of the
implementation of new Code on 1 April 2012.
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FAS %M:A#Eﬂ:

IESRBm¥NE
To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared AR SAREZE, M mRNEE SN ETREE
their material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to AAEZERNES A EEAGH AT AES, JrE0E
be discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetings and R RE R ETRE,
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.
Details of Directors” attendance at Board meetings, Board BHESERNEHE_S—NF=BA=+t—"HIFERLEE
committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings during the year EETEE. EEZEFRZNMREFRGCFHERIT
ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the following table: e

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2019

 E-E-NEZAZ+-BLEEALE BT8R

Finance & Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Investment  Disclosures ~ Governance PYE
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee AGM SGM
EX2 EBHZS% FWZEE RLZSE HERRE RBZ8% HEERE REEE RREE  REED
E3k 5 E3k Ag Ag
Number of meetings held
during the year 6 3 1 1 9 92 9 4 | 9
FENBTERCNY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TE%
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 6/6 92/2 92/2 1N 92/2
Lo Tom Ko Yuen 6/6 " 1 9/2 0/9 9/2 4/4 N 9/2
2R
Walter Craig Power (Note)
Walter Craig Power ([fi5F) 38 L i L
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS i EH{TES
James Chiu
s 6/6 3/3 1N 92/2 4/4 N 92/2
Lee Chack Fan 92/3 0N
S5 4/6 34 1N o 34 N 0/2
ain Ferguson Bruce
. 5/6 92/3 0N 112 1/2 112 34 N 92/2
HET
Francis Goutenmacher ]Zé# ]33/3# ]%/L N 92/2
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
Beien 6/6 3/3 N 92/2
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Note: Mr Walter Craig Power was re-designated from Chief
Executive Officer (Executive Director) to Non-Executive

Director with effect from 1 May 2019.
#: Attended by alternate

In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular
meetings with Independent Non-Executive Directors without the

presence of other Directors in March 2019.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings with
sufficient details of matters discussed are kept in safe custody

by the Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Induction and Development

Management and the Company Secretary liaise with the newly
appointed Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors and the business operations of the
Company. On appointment to the Board, Directors receive a
package of orientation materials on the Group and provided
with a comprehensive induction on the business operations and
practices of the Group, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors under general law and the Listing Rules. All Directors
are also given a Directors’ Manual on their appointment

which set out, amongst other fhings, directors’ dufies, terms of
reference of the Board Committee and corporate governance
practices of the Group.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development ("CPD"),
details on legal and regulatory changes are provided to alll
Directors. Directors are also recommended and encouraged

to attend forums or seminars relating to the roles, functions

and duties of a listed company director. The costs of such
forums or seminars are borne by the Company. The Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company is responsible

for reviewing and monitoring the Directors training and

development.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with details
of the CPD training undertaken by them. Based on the details
so provided, the CPD training undertaken by the Director during
the year ended 31 March 2019 is summarised as follows:

Reading Materials

REER

ESARARNARIRENRFES ZCPDIETIFSE, 1R
BARRHECHE, 8E_F - F=-_A=1T—HLEE
EEET ZCPDIEIIMZEINT ¢

Attending presentation/seminars/conferences

HEBRE EHXEEE

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Tom Ko Yuen

2SR
Walter Craig Power

James Chiu

HEHEE

Lee Chack Fan
=55

lain Ferguson Bruce
ol

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
&S

A U O N U U N

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
provided the Directors with materials on various topics (including
corporate governance matters and directors’ duties) and gave
presentation to the Directors on updates in rules and regulations,
which enhance greater awareness and understanding of the

compliance with the regulatory development.

The Company has received confirmation from each current
Director that he has given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Besides, Directors have disclosed to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisation in a timely manner and update the Company on

any subsequent changes.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have
been set up with written terms of reference which clearly

define the ro|e, qufhorify, and functions of each committee.
Each Board committee is required to report their decisions or
recommendations to the Board. Details of Directors’ attendance
at the Board committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2019 are shown on page 28 of this annual report.

The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each
Board committee during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out below:

Audit Committee
Composition

The Audit Committee consists of five members, all of whom are
|no|e|oeno|en’r Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce,
Mr Francis Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny.
None of them is a partner or former partner of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company's external auditor.

Role and Function

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include oversight
of the Group's financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control systems, review of the Groupls financial
information, and review of the re|ctﬂons|’1ip with the external
auditor of the Company. This Committee also meets regularly
with the Company'’s external auditor to discuss the audit process

and accounting issues.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2019:

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended

31 March 2018;

2. Review of the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2018;

3. Review of the Group's financial information, financial
reporting system, internal control and risk management

systems, and financial and accounting policies and practices;

4. Approval of remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external oudifor;

EXZEEE

REEFETIEERIEN, FIIUEEYHBREDE
LEFREEE, BMREREETAC. RIRKHEEE
SEEFZEEYANESTERETHRZVESR. EFE
ERBE_S-NF AT -HLEFERHEESE
B FBERAFRELE,

BRESFHZEENBE_FT—NF=A=1T—HLEFEXZ
AERE &HIWWEwT.

BREEY
HERL

EREEEHROMASHEN, RETHBILIFNITE
£, TRBE—UEIDFRITESE L

AZERRFHBHS TEM (EF) . Fle58u%. 71
B A Francis Goutenmacher st 248 K7 5 & 58 5 A2 #H o
WE P\ —ABRNBNEZEMEY-FHER ST
ST BB AHBIEE Ao

AEREEE

ENEZESCIBHEUREEAERE U BHRERS

E. BREELNEEZERN. B AEBVMBE

Kl Wigs AR N BF. AZBEIRE
RRBZNEZBNEREE, UBNERIRERE
TEIE,

TEBE

BEREEGREBE"
EIEAT ¢

—NWE=ZR=+—HLEFEZT
. BERAEEEE_S—/\FZA=1+—HLFEZ
ESCE S

2. ERAEEEE_S—/\FNAA=THLKERZ
ThERSEIE S

3. REARECHBER. MBHERGE. NEEE
NEREERMEMBRESTHRNET

4. BHONBZBEN BT KRR

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARS

5. Recommendation to the Board to re-appoint the external
auditor at the 2018 annual general meeting;

6. Review of the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, and
review of policy on engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

7. Review of the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2019;

8. Review of the Company's systems of financial controls,

internal control and risk management;

9. Review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budge’r of
the Company's internal audit, accounting and financial
reporting functions;

10. Review of internal/external auditor’s significant findings
and recommendations, and monitoring of the subsequent

implementation;

1. Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of
the Company;

12. Approval of the 2020 internal audit plans;
13. Review of the continuing connected transactions; and

14. Met with the external auditor, in the absence of
Management.

Remuneration Committee
Composition

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Professor Lee Chack

Fan.
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Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee has been established to ensure
there is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on the remuneration of Executive Directors and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors. This Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Company'’s policy and structure for remuneration

of Directors and Senior Management, and making
recommendations on the manpower deployment plan. This
Committee also determines, with delegated responsibility,
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors

and Senior Management, and makes recommendations on
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 March 2019 included review of the remuneration
policy of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties, in line with market practice and pay
levels, and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees (including Executive Directors). For Non-Executive
Directors, the Company ensures that they are sufficiently but
not excessively compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company. No individual determines his or her own
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the remuneration paid
to one Senior Management was within the band between
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 and one Senior
Management was within the band between HK$6,000,000 to
HK$7,000,000.

Nomination Committee
Composition

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Professor Lee Chack
Fan (Chairman), Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce
and Mr Francis Goutenmacher.

Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors. The duties of this Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and, if
necessary, recommending changes. It is also responsible for
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board, selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals to be nominated for direcforships,
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Directors.
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Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2019:

1. Nominated the retiring Directors for re-election at the 2018
Annual General Meeting;

2. Review of the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; and

3. Assessment of the independence of the Independent

Non-Executive Directors.

Nomination Policy and Procedure

The Company ensures that the Board has a balance of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. The Company also ensures that the Board
includes a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) so

that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement. The structure,
size and composition of the Board must be complied with

the requirements under the Listing Rules and the Company's

Bye-laws.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and makes recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment of a
Director, this Committee applies criteria such as professional and
educational background, relevant experience, and qualifications.
The recommendations of this Committee are then put to the
Board for consideration and approval. Thereafter, all Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy are subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.

Board Diversity Policy
In the Board Diversity Policy:

1. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its

per\cormonce

2. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
deve|opment
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3. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

4. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objectives criteria,

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skill, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

Finance and Investment Committee
Composition

The Finance and Investment Committee consists of four
members, and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director. The current members of this Committee are Mr lain
Ferguson Bruce (Chairman), Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau
Tom Ko Yuen and Mr Walter Craig Power.

Role and Function

The Finance and Investment Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters

relating to investing in assets, evaluating the budgets of all key
expenditures, reviewing financial performance against forecast,
and considering dividend payout.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Finance and Investment Committee

during the year ended 31 March 2019 included:

1. Review and evaluation of 0cfua|-fo-budgef results for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and for the six months ended 30
September 2018 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which may
affect the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and for the six months ended 30
September 2018; and

4. Consideration of the payment of the 2018 final dividend
and 2019 interim dividend.
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Disclosures Committee
Composition

The Disclosures Committee consists of three members, and
is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
current members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce

(Chairman), Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Role and Function

The Disclosures Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing
disclosures to shareholders, the public, and relevant statutory
authorities, and for overseeing compliance with any applicable
legal requirements for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Disclosures Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2019 included the review of the content of
announcements relating to the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018, and the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2018.

Corporate Governance Committee
Composition

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of three
members, the majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. This Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director. The current members of this Committee

are Ir James Chiu (Chairman), Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen and

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee was established with
delegated responsibility of the Board to perform the corporate
governance duties and to further strengthen the Company’s
corporate governance. This Committee is mainly responsible
for all corporate governance and corporate social responsibility
matters of the Company.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31

March 2019:
1. Review of the Company's corporate governance policy;

2. Review of the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3. Review of the Company compliance with the Code for
the year ended 31 March 2018 and six months ended 30
September 2018;

4. Review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2018; and

5. Review of the Company’s disclosure in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year ended 31 March
2018.
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PYE Committee
Composition

The current members of the PYE Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, Professor Lee Chack Fan

and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The PYE Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing,
monitoring and supervising the overall management and
operation of the construction business of the Company.

Summary of Work Done

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the PYE Committee
reviewed the results of the construction business of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2018, for the four months ended 31
July 2018, for the six months ended 30 September 2018 and for
the ten months ended 31 January 2019.

Executive Committee
Composition

The Executive Committee now consists of two members. The
current members of this Committee are Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

(Chairman) and Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen.

Role and Function

This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the
management and operations of the day-to-day business of the
Group.

Management Functions

The division of responsibilities between the Board and
Management are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is
a segregation of duties with clear accountability.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board, under the
leadership of the Chairman of the Company, has delegated all
the day-to-day operations and management of the Company's
business to Managemenf, under the |ectc|ership of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Management is required to
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities tfransactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation
to the Group.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounts department, the Directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared on a going concern basis
and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards. The Directors also ensure that
the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely

manner.

The report of the external auditor on the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 includes paragraphs of an emphasis of matter on material
uncertainty related to going concern, without qualification. The
details are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page
86 of this annual report.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 92 and 94 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible to the Group's
compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. She reports to the Chairman and the
Board as a whole. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary in respect of their duties and
the effective operation of the Board and Board Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 27 August
2018, shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor
for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

The fees paid to the external auditor for audit and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 March 2019 (and the comparative

figures for the year ended 31 March 2018) are as follows:

%Fﬁﬁﬁ

E—A\FN\B T+ TCHETZARBDRRBEFKE
At , R BRI RS B T AL AT R
ECE-NFZR=+—HLEMBFEZINBZEEM.

BETE-NF-B=T—HLFE (REHE"F
—\E=ZA=+—HLEFEZHFHR) , BHNEBERX
ZENZ MBI BRF 2 ERWT

2019 2018

“E—hE —E—N\FE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

F5 7 FE 57

Audit fee EEH 4,921 4,716
Non-audit services fees IR E R

Interim review fee HHIE R E R 1,080 900

Tax services REARTS 370 3923

Provident fund audit NIEEEN 27 27

Special engagement Rl & AT - 3,800

1,477 5,050

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and ensuring the continuing objectivity and
independence of the external auditor. The Audit Committee of
the Company has resolved to recommend the re-appointment
of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the
Company. This resolution has been endorsed by the Board and
is subject to final approval and authorization by the shareholders
at the 2019 Annual General Meeting.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company's
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness. In meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks
to increase risk awareness across the Company's business
operations and has put in place policies and procedures which
provide a framework for controls and management of risks.

Such risk management and internal control systems are

designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objecﬁves, and to provide reosonctb|e, fhough
not abso|ufe, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management RRERE

The Group has established an enterprise risk management AEECDRBUI—ECERMEEELR, DIHERA E\E%;g;g
framework to idenﬁfy pofenfic1| events that may be oﬁcecﬁng KNBZBIESHE, HEERIR AR, AEBARN

the Company, to manage risks within its risk appetite and to *ﬁ}mf,\ SIERE, WIEZCH = EhiRER, J;{%‘A%mfi
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the B. EREEeNEEFHANEEEERRMNELD,
Company's objectives. It comprises of three lines of defence to DHIZ :

provide Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the
confidence that the Company is managing its risks and they are:

RISK J&|

BUSINESS OPERATIONS Operational processes, project risk and control OPERATIONAL

FIRST: LINE OF DEFENSE E3 g ot acfivify business level monitoring MANAGEMENT
BB SE2, EE AR E B EE wEEE

/km¥

RISK B
CORPORATE OVERSIGHT Business planning, policy and procedure setting, SENIOR
;ESO\;B;;;‘E OF DEFENSE FUNCTIONS functional oversight MANAGEMENT
—= NV EEHAE SHRB, BRI HIE, B E s BREEE
B
RISK & B

THIRD LINE OF DEFENSE  INTERNAL /EXTERNAL AUDIT Monitoring compliance and provide independent AUDIT
BE=EARR AN E challenge and assurance COMMITTEE

EREHIE R R R EE R R BHERE

THE BOARD
558
(Audit Committee)
BREEE

Significant risks are considered and identified by the Board REEARNEREBRE, E22ZRTHAIERER
when setting the Company's strategic objectives. Such risks M, ZERBRBIHEATZEN Ab"ﬁl\_f?jfﬁuj&urrfﬁo
are evaluated and assessed based on their impact and BERROMBZEZEFEENEDRBTIEBRNEE
likelihood. Management ensures effective and appropriate risk RfREIENAESEEEF.

management and internal control procedures and measures are
established and across business operations and functional areas.
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This enterprise risk management framework will enable the
Company to have the following potential benefits:

Greater likelihood of ochieving business objec’rives;
Higher share prices over the longer term;

Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting’;
Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved;
More focus internally on doing the right things properly;
Better basis for strategy setting;

Achievement of competitive advantage;

Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and
Early mover into new business areas.

Internal Control

The Company has had in p|c1ce an in‘regro’red internal control
framework in complying with Code Provisions of Listing Rules.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in
relation to the following:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
Re|iobi|ify of financial reporting; and
Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company's internal control framework is divided into five
inter-related components: control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring and information & communication.
It serves as criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control
system in supporting the achievement of the separate but
overlapping operational, financial reporting and compliance
objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system
of internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility

of day-to-day management of operational risks and the
implementation of mitigation measures lies with Management.

I EREREEERE AN EUTNEEIITRE :

WAPREEREBARE
RIRFIIFRRIE ;
RO EER AR TRBUAUBIRE
RS EBEME BB R RN ;
FREBRENEETBEMRIEERIENS ;
FIEREFREHLE ;
maaHESFES
MO REEE N NAERECENEMS ;&
EHEHREFE .
MBREE 2
FARBET—ERGREEZER, BT EHRAZ

STRME S, MEBES IR SR E A R ERLERLL T BAR R #
BEEREMHIE ZME

B S

MRS PISN S X

8B AR K AR
RNRB R NEREIENELR Rl 0 A T EAE ERMERL D | &%
RiB. ARG, B, BEREKAREBE, HiE

EEBVNE BRI U IEN B I ERE
BoEE. MBRSMERETZBR

EECEARNG NI LKL ARG IEH TS~
EiE, Qe ERBEE R EERER . SmElEE
EEaeE,

4]

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Built into our system are checks and balances such that no single

EXERERS

AEBRMFEBHFE TR, EEAER—BER

party can "monopolise” a transaction, activity or process to

7. PRt [EEE ), BERTAB. EHit, &

EE S HRE T RVERA IR B AR

conceal irregu|0rifies. Hence, Mcmc:gemenf has undertaken the

following additional checks and balances procedures:

A clear functional organizational structure was set up

with well-defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

A monthly reporting system on the performance of each
division, and actual financial performance results against
budgets to Management was well established. The
Board reviews the Company’s operations and financial

performance on a quarterly basis;

The Board reviews annually, in particular, adequacy

of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function as required under the Listing

Rules;

The Audit Committee assesses and monitors the
effectiveness of internal control system in detecting fraud
and other irregularities by reviewing the work of the internal
corporate audit department and its findings; and

The Company has in place a disclosure of price-sensitive
information policy for identifying, handling and
disseminating inside information in compliance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571) of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Procedures such as limit access to
inside information to those who need to know and requiring
outside parties to execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company to guard against
mishandling of inside information. In-house training about
inside information is provided to senior management and

relevant officers regularly.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit function of the Group reviews the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including assessing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls as well as management
oversight of the in-scope areas and process. Risk management
and internal control review is conducted at least once a

year. The procedures consist of process evaluations through
interviews with various personnel of the in-scope processes,
review of relevant policies and procedures, and sample testing
of controls. During the internal audit process, the Group's
internal audit function identifies internal control weqkness,
makes recommendations and obtains remedial action plan
from Management with timelines, for strengthening the internal
control of the Group. Internal audit function of the Group will
also follow up with Management status of remedial action plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the internal audit
function of the Group has conducted a review on the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. Internal audit
report, containing observoﬁons, recommendations and remedial

action p|on, has been submitted to the Audit Committee and
the Board.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control systems
during the year ended 31 March 2019, and was not aware

of any significant issues that would have adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. Such review covers

all material confro|s, inc|uo|ing finoncicﬂ, operqﬁono| and
compliance controls, adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget for the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a dividend po|icy pursuant to which

the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital

requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio and the Board has the discretion to declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
subject to the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company and alll

applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the

Group;
(i) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

(iii) economic conditions that may have an impact on the

business or financial performance and position of the Group;

(iv) business strategic of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term

growth aspect of the business;

(v) current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group;

(vi) restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group's lenders;

(vii) statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

(vii) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding
of the Group's business, the Company has established
several communication channels with shareholders and
investors, including (i) printed copies of corporate documents
(including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports,
circulars and notices of shareholder meetings); (i) general
meetings where shareholders can offer comments and
exchange views with the Board; (i) the Company’s website:
www.southshore-holdings.com; and (iv) the Company's share
registrar with whom shareholders register their shares. The
Company has established a shareholders” communication
policy to set out the Company's procedures in providing the
shareholders and investment community with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company.

In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company, where the Chairman of the
Company, Chairmen of Board Committees, other Directors and
the external auditor are available to answer questions on the
Group's businesses. In order to conduct the general meetings in
a transparent manner, it has been the Company's practice to
conduct poll voting at general meetings since 2005, way ahead
of poll voting being made mandatory for all general meetings
effective on 1 January 2009.

The most recent genero| meeting of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2019 was the annual general meeting
held on 27 August 2018. The resolutions put forward are set out
below:

Receipt of audited financial statements and reports of
directors and auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018;

Re-election of Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr Francis
Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny as
Directors, and approval of the Directors’ fee;

Re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company's external auditor;

General mandate to Directors to issue shares of the

Company not exceeding 20% of Company's issued shares;

+  General mandate to Directors to repurchase shares of the
Company not exceeding 10% of the Company’s issued
shares; and

Extension of general mandate granted to Directors.
The resolutions were passed. The results of the poll voting have

been published on the websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.
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Under the Company's Bye-laws, shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called for
the business specified in such requisition.

Also, shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights at general meetings or not less than 100
shareholders have to right to submit a written request to the
Company stating the resolution intended to be moved at the
annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 1005, 10th Floor,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

Details of the interests of Directors and shareholders in the
shares of the Company are shown on pages 69 to 71 and pages
77 to 82 of this annual report respectively.

OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION
Memorandum and Bye-Laws

There were no changes to the Company’s Memorandum and
Bye-laws during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Key Corporate Dates
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Events Dates
E-i] HEA

Announcement of 2019 interim results

R ZFB—NERHAKEE

Announcement of 2019 annual results

R B NEFE2EFXRE

2019 annual general meeting

—ENFRRBFKRE

Public Float Capitalisation

The public float capitalisation of the Company was
approximately HK$267 million on 31 March 2019, and
approximately HK$175 million on the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 5 August 2019
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report provides
an annual update on corporate social responsibility ("CSR”)
performance of South Shore Holdings Limited (the "Company,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2019.

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It aims to provide a balance
presentation of the Group's CSR key issues covering its two
core businesses, nctme|y hotel operc’rion/deve|opmenf and
construction. The report for last year covered the Company's
hotel development and construction businesses. Since the
Company's hotel has been opened during the year ended 31
March 2019, this report covers the Company's hotel operation/
development and construction businesses.

CSR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

PARTIES
&7

Board of Directors .

BEER

Corporate Governance Committee .
N = o
PEEREES

Executive Committee .
HITEREE

CSR Work Group .
PEHEEEIFNE

Departments and Business Units .
BPI R EFS B s

IMERE. A RERERHEBFERERLT (K
NE, ERENBREMEAEE) BE_F—
F_RA=T—HUEFEEWMELEHESE ((bXtEs
1) RRNEHFEEER.

RREDRBEEMEZEAERLEEZS LHIRR
fiERo7iIR . RS EEHIHMEHRAEEMELDFE
7 EVESKE RENBRRIE) NEEMEEEE
BB, ANAEAFHREREANBNAESERELE
RTIEXED. ARARENEERBEE_SF—NF=H
“+—HLEFECHS, ARESESALAEBEEKE
SBEERBRRTZER,

CEMEEENELRRE

CSR RESPONSIBILITIES
©ERTGRTHLE

Has overall responsibility for the Company’s CSR strategy and reporting
HARNBGECEEERBLEREEREBET

Review CSR matter of the Company
B ANBNEEHEEEER

Ensure the effectiveness of CSR risk management and internal control systems

HEREFHEEENEAREERNMEZRREN

Promote CSR, and organizing and implementing CSR initiatives
HECEHTEEATSMNEHERTEETRE

Develop and formulate CSR risk management and internal control system

RIS HIE XA S ESENAREE NN EZERL

+  Implement CSR practices
Brit kg sSEEFL

+ Ensure CSR compliance in daily operation

BRAOSEFPETEELTEE
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APPROACH TO CSR

The Company considers potential risks and impacts that
environment and social factors can have on the long-term risks
and returns to the Company and its shareholders. The Company
is committed to be a responsible corporate citizen by operating
in a manner that is economically, socially and environmentally

sustainable.

The Company's CSR policy consists of a set of CSR principles
focusing on 4 aspects, namely (a) Operating Practices, (b)
Employee Management, (c) Environmental Protection and (d)
Community Investment, which are instrumental in enabling our
businesses to operate in a sustainable manner.

cRMEEEHH
ARBEBIRENTERARIHARNE RERRNE
=R RAMEIHE R BE AR ML, BOLUSH 4
TNREHEAFENSNEE, UBTHERAEEE
EEARNEE.

ARBENEEHEETHRAE—ELELEEER
], EhEIUERE, ReEEFR; bETEHE;
(QFRFRE ; R(EBEHE, HRMAEBUAFES
EEEMER,

CSR ASPECTS
ERTERERE

Environmental
Protection

RIBRE

Operating
Practices
EEER

Within each of these areas, directions and principles are given
to the CSR Work Group to develop and review CSR-related
strategies, policies and guidelines for our daily operations.

MATERIALITY

The Company interact daily with a wide range of stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, shareholders

and regu|ofors. We engage our stakeholders in on-going
communication channels to understand their concerns and
expectations. Based on the concerns and expectations of our
stakeholders, the Group has identified material CSR issues of the
Group. The CSR issues considered to be material are listed out
below and will be described in detail in this report.

Employee

Management
BITERE

Community
Investment

I
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ASPECTS
Eieke

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
B’E&E

Emissions

e

Use of Resources

HRER

The Environment and Natural Resources

RERXAER

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
BTERE

Employment

(=5

Health Safety
BT S

Development and Training

RN

Labour Standards

T #EH|

OPERATING PRACTICES
EEER

Supply Chain Management
HIELEEIE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-Corruption
R&ES

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
ElEHtE

Community Investment

ClEEHtE

MATERIAL ISSUES
EREE

Carbon emission
7
+ Waste management

FEsRY e

Energy saving

BEEER

Water saving

gk

Employee environmental awareness
ETREEH

Environmental management

RIEEE

Employee welfare and working conditions
STENRTIRRER

+ Work-life balance
TIREEF

+  Safety education and promotion
ZEHENER
Safety measures on site

Tz etEhh

Staff training
BT 5

Human rights and equal opportunities

NERTFE1E

+  Supply chain management
HIEREEIE
Quality management
mEEE

+  Protection of data
ERHRE

+ Whistle-blowing
SRS

Business ethics

ES S

»  Caring for Society
apowan=-4

+  Education Support
HKIREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Emissions
Carbon Emission

Our hotel development/operation business conducts its business
by striving to improve our overall ecological and carbon
footprint, without compromising our guests experience and
satisfaction, using the most responsible working practices. We
have recognized the importance of minimizing the negative
environmental impact from our operations and are keen to
reduce the carbon footprint, while taking steps to minimize or
recycle the waste we generate.

Our construction business strives to minimize unnecessary
consumption of energy and resources during construction.

For instance, home alliances with Grade 1 energy label are
prioritized to be adopted to save electricity. As to project design,
we identify the potential deviation in the cycle of different
construction projects by utilizing the Building Information
Modelling ("BIM") technology to enhance efficiency and reduce
wastage of resources; and introduces B5 biodiesel to replace
traditional diesel used in construction sites to reduce carbon
dioxide emission.

Waste Management

The Group's waste management policy is aimed at minimizing
generation of waste for disposal as far as reasonably
practicable, encouraging use of sustainable and reusable
materials which are technically and economically viable and
requiring recyclable materials be separated from the waste pile
and reused as much as possible.

Our hotel development/operation business strives to minimize
negative environmental impact from construction wastes in
respect of the development of THE 13 Hotel generated by the
Group and its contractors.

Our construction business regularly monitors the emission
of waste gas and uses the Quality Powered Mechanical
Equipment ("QPME") as labelled by the Environmental
Protection Department.

Use of Resources

We are committed to the well-being of our planet and its present
and future inhabitants. Our objective is to ensure that resources
are not wasted and that materials are reused and recycled.

Energy Saving

Our construction business participates in the Earth Hour
organized by the World Wide Fund for Nature to combat
against climate change and raise awareness on energy savings.
It also installs effective equipment to manage the use of fuels
and electricity.

Water Saving

Our construction business treats wastewater at the construction
sites by sedimentation and recycling it for reuse for cleaning the
construction sites, dust control sprinkling, washing vehicle wheels
at the entrance/exit of the construction sites.
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The Environment and Natural Resources
Employee Environmental Awareness

As a concerned global corporation, we have a responsibility
within our industry to be a good steward of the environment.
This includes pollution reduction and conservation of natural

resources in a fiscally responsible manner.

As for our hotel development/operation business, Environmental
Policy (IMS Manual) is in place to establish and maintain
documented targets and objectives to reduce pollution and
natural resources consumption, to review progress towards those
targets and objectives at regular intervals while we strive for
continuous improvement, to operate the business in accordance
with the environmental laws impacting our industry and to
communicate to our staff the importance of good environmental

stewardship.

Our construction business devises and issues the Energy Policy
Statement to ensure all levels of staff take responsibility for the
implementation and effectiveness of our energy-management

measures.

Environmental Management

Environmental protection is closely related to the Group's
construction operations. Adhering to the principle of
sustainability, we actively promote and strengthen environmental
management. In addition to strict compliance with statutory
requirements, we have voluntarily adopted the internationally
recognised ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standards and

the industry’s best practices to minimise the impacts of

daily operations on the environment while contributing to

environmental protection.

We strive to promote sustainable construction me’rhods, so as to
make better use of resources and reduce material consumption
and construction waste. We also regularly carry out review and

monitoring of our current environmental works.

In qddi’rion, our construction business also been the Gold Patron
Sponsor of Hong Kong Green Building Council for consecutive
years to support various green building policies. During the

year, significant progress was made in promotion environmental
protection at Tung Chung construction site and we were granted
a certificate of Merit at Hong Kong Awards for Environmental
Excellence 2018 jointly organised by Environmental Campaign
Committee and Environmental Protection Department, etc.
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Over 100 Saplings to Green Hong Kong
8100 RN ERRILEE

Three cheers to PYE's volunteer team for not only going an extra mile to relieve global warming but also excelling in creativity and

craftsmanship. Participating in the “Tree Planting Challenge 2018" hosted by Friends of the Earth, our colleagues planted more

than 100 saplings to green Hong Kong on 29 April 2018. In addition, the sapling box they designed and made won the “The Most
Innovative Ambassador Award”.

AR, FREESKEL, REEXZFIKFEMZEAMIRC RN _F—/\FMUA Z+1 8 F 9 EERM
2018) iBfah = E KEVE, TEHE T BBBI001%/ i, RRBEARNAIR. DEKEETFE, AREZTHHTRE
FREXBIETE, BEASS2ERMTREML, BE(REAEEE AFERE) K,
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AEETBERNVBIRERERBFENT !

The Group's main type of emission and resources consumption
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March
HE=A=1T—HILLFE

Our hotel development/operation

business

HAMBEEEREEEER

Intensity Intensity
(kWh per employee) (kWh per employee)
kWh HE kWh BE
TR (FRE S%8T) TR (FRE S%8T)
Electricity
Consumption AEE 17,190 64 11,701 53
Intensity Intensity
(kWh per van) (kWh per van)
kWh BE kWh BE
FEE (FRE SWEH) TR (FRE SWE%)
Petrol Energy
Consumption FURMEE 71 11.89 73 14.60
Intensity Intensity
(Tonnes per employee) (Tonnes per employee)
Tonnes BHE Tonnes HE
Mg (R, §%8T) L7 (1M, §%ET)
Paper Consumption s 2.03 0.008 15 0.007
Intensity Intensity
(Tonnes per employee) (Tonnes per employee)
m? BE m? BE
IHK (Rmg,/ S%8T) ILH K (Rhg, S%E8T)
Water Consumption
(in Macau) Fx& (&PF9) 85,285 345 40,645 206
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For the year ended 31 March
BE=-RA=t—HIL=EE

Our construction business

BPINERIRERT

Intensity (Tonnes per HK$ Intensity (Tonnes per HK$

million project revenue) million project revenue)

Carbon xBEE 7E BE

Emissions NME (— & b bk Tonnes NWE EEHEBTT Tonnes NWE/ BEEBTT

(Tonne CO2e) E= g IHEEHWKA) it BHEWKA)

Scope 1 Eigls) 2,413 0.74 2,729 0.95

Scope 2 Eil==l) 1,415 0.43 1,297 0.45

Scope 3 I3 81 0.02 32 0.01

Note: The above figures indicate total carbon emissions and T - J,/(J:%Z%EE TAEEAMAREESW A TEIR

their intensities from five local projects with highest BB E N ERE, st R B #E
revenue of the Group. Scope 1 includes energy direct HERL 5 %’gﬂ]ﬂfr AIEEERRIESER ; NEEIaE R
emission; Scope 2 includes energy indirect emissions; IKEIEN S KERIBAAE,

and Scope 3 includes electricity used for fresh water and

sewage processing.

Sulphur Oxide BEEiE L

Emissions HEM E
from Vehicles

Non-hazardous EEEFY) =
Waste

Electricity AEE
Consumption

Diesel Energy SRS
Consumption

Petrol Energy RS
Consumption

Water FAXKE

Consumption

Note:

The above figures indicate total sulphur oxides emissions

(privo’re cars on|y), total non-hazardous waste, total E’]‘ﬁ ﬂ{bﬁ)‘ﬁ#m% ({%%A%Q$)
electricity consumption, total diesel energy consumption,

total petrol energy consumption (private cars only), total

Intensity (kg per veh|c|e)

Kg Kg
T (Fx=/ ﬁ%@) T
0.54 0.04 0.36
Intensity (Tonnes per HK$
million project revenue)
B
Tonnes (NI PE=T=F-5- v Tonnes
N HEHKA) UNLE
57,084 17.50 47,023
Intensity (kWh per HK$
million project revenue)
kWh  (FRE SEBHET kWh
TREF HEKA) TR
2,299,514 681.44 2,543,497
9,377,110 2,875.10 10,753,977
342,090 104.89 239,174
Intensity (m® per HK$
million project revenue)
BE
_w Ek/SERSR  w
VA S HEKA) IR
133,400 40.91 75,496

water consumption and their intensities from five local
projects with highest revenue for the Group.
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0.04

Intensity (Tonnes per HK$
million project revenue)

BE
(R SEBAT
HEWA)

16.29
Intensity (kWh per HK$

million project revenue)
BE

(TR SB8ET
HEWA)

880.91
3,724.60

82.84

Intensity (m? per HK$
million project revenue)
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(.LH*/@%%P%E
HEWA)




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI MHERERRS

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
Employment
Employee Welfare and Working Conditions

Acknowledging that our employees’ contribution and effort drive
our dynamic achievements, we try our best to provide them with

a great place to work.

Our human resources policy strictly complies with employment
laws and regulations and we offer competitive remuneration
packages and plenty of training and career prospects. The
Group operates an equal opportunities workplace where
discrimination is not tolerated and staff can function without fear

of age, sex, race or other biases.

For our construction business internal guidelines stating

the po|icies on recruitment, promotion, dismissal and
anti-discrimination are in place to ensure employees work in

a fair and level-playing environment. In addition, we offer
competitive remuneration packages, fringe benefits and career
prospects for employees to enhance their performance and
sense of belonging as well as to attract and retain talents.

Work-life Balance

Our hotel development/operation business has implemented a

Personal Enrichment Program (PEP) to provide classes, internal
and external, for staff relevant to their person0| interests with a

view to building knowledge and personal satisfaction.

Our construction business has put in place a series of
family-friendly employment policies and practices, including
compensation leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave,
volunteer leave and festival leave to enhance quality of life and
build a harmonious working environment in a proactive manner.

To enable working parents to spend more time to stay with

and take care of their new born boby, during the year, our
construction business infroduced maternity leave and paternity
leave more favourable than those s’ripu|o’red under the laws such
that working mothers and fathers enjoy 14 weeks of maternity

leave and five days of paternity leave respectively.
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Health Safety
Safety Education and Promotion

For our construction business, we protect our employees’ safety
and health by implementing practical measures. We have
formulated the “Safety, Health, Environmental and Quality
Policy Statement” which states the statutory and contractual
requirements and strictly monitor the implementation of such
measures. Our health and safety management system is in
compliance with internationally recognised standards including
OHSAS 18001 to ensure the processes from planning, design
to construction are up to the highest level of occupational safety
and health standards. In addition, we have in place a Safety,
Health, Environment and Quality Management Committee

led by top management, which regularly organises meetings on
occupational safety and health matters. We also disseminate
the message of occupational safety and health through
educational means such as organising workshops, presentations
and seminars at construction sites and through promotional
measures such as producing short video on safety and publishing
the Safety and Environmental Protection Newsletter.

Safety Measures on Site

For our construction business, sofefy at construction sites is a
key focus area of ours. Upholding the principle of “Safety First’,
we have rolled out a series of measures on the construction

sites of each project. In addition to providing adequate safety
gear, different safety bulletin boards relating to high-risk works,
lifting, work platforms, chemical goods and confined spaces
are available. We also regularly educate workers on different
safety topics and provide guidelines on safety of working at
height and safety of site vehicles and mobile machineries to
raise the awareness of workers on sofefy. Besides, sufficient
training is provided to the operational workers designated to
different construction procedures such as working on gondola
and lifting operation. During the year, our efforts to promote
safety on site were recognised by many institutions. For instance,
we were granted the OSH Excellence Award by Occupational
Safety and Health Council to recognise our proactive efforts

to promote safety on site and practise occupational safety and

health over the years.
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Introducing Innovative Technology to Strengthen the Level of Safety on Site

5 | X BT B2 il A58 T % 2K

Digital construction technology has been in the spotlight in the construction industry in recent years. We have been devoting
tremendous resources in the promotion and R&D of various technologies to optimise the construction system of the construction
industry and improve the level of safety on site.

B TIERMAREROTRENER, A8E " ERVAESERTHTRAELSENR S, UBCEEERIR
7, RIRFt THIZ 2K,

With respect to our construction project of subsidised sale flats development at Tseung Kwan O Area 65C2, we make use of VR
technology to conduct safety training where employees enter a 3D virtual site to get used to the real environment of the construction
site, and go through the "accident” simulation to enhance their safety awareness and alert. Our construction project of subsidised sale
flats development at Tung Chung Area 27 also makes use of VR in the simulated training on installing the precast facades so as to
strengthen the culture of safety on site.

ERERBsCAREENNERERRFTEERET, HAEAERERERMETZ2E, ETEESN=MHEHN
THRISHRABEEN T HRENSZBEH 2N, REZ2EHREEL. HATRRARTRENLEEEH
BETEIREGREREER, ETEBERRIMVEREIIR, MBI M2,

In addition, we actively introduce and apply state-of-the-art machineries at the sites such as automatic wall plastering machine. These
state-of-the-art machineries can replace some of the manual construction tasks and reduce the risks of workers working at height, thus

creating an efficient and safe working environment.
4, REBEBBN TS EREREMKN, W5 EERME AN, SBTERMBNATHL, BEIAS
ZTRER, BEEeMMEer TFRIR.
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Development and Training
Staff Training

Policies are in place to ensure employees (i) have the necessary
tools, skills and knowledge to perform their work, (i) are
provided with opportunities to learn new skills and enhance
knowledge, and (iii) are up-to-date with any developments in

their areas of expertise.

For our construction business, our development is
complementary to the growth of employees. We embrace the
philosophy of investing in people by providing them with a range
of training programmes that can enhance their professional skills
and knowledge. In addition to diversified training programmes,
employees are subsidised to participate in external training
programmes, including seminars and workshops to enhance
their skills and knowledge so as to effectively perform their duties
and facilitate their personal development. Besides, the Graduate
Trainee Programme and Non-Graduate Trainee Programme
are launched to encourage employees to add value and obtain
professional qualifications through education sponsorship.
During the year, we organised the Singapore Work Exchange
Programme for students of the Graduate Trainee Programme to
allow them to accumulate diversified work experience.

Labour Standards
Human Rights and Equal Opportunities

We provide a workplace without discrimination and guarantee
equo| treatment. We also establish processes and practices that
support workforce in their current and future work.
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Diversified Training to Cope with the New Era of Construction Industry

ZoiEIn R R RN

Our training programme attaches great importance to inheriting experience and provides comprehensive technical training to young
engineers. During the year, we organised two electrical and mechanical engineering technical trainings for the assistant engineers and
engineering graduates respectively. The trainings included eight half-day dfrills on electrical and mechanical and engineering led by
senior staff of our Electrical and Mechanical Engineering Department to share their experience and knowledge with young colleagues.
FEENEIIBEEERERER, ARFELEMEREAUNRMEN, FER, 2EBAMETRRMLTIZE
FEDRIEMR T MEMKE T ERMIE. BIITEEEEF RAEERTIZIIER, HERNKE LIZEFEER,
[ & 7 %0 SRR A 3Bo

In addition, we worked with Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency and organised a team building event for our Electrical and
Mechanical Engineering Department at Crowne Plaza Hong Kong Kowloon East on 24 November last year, inviting up to 80
colleagues from the head office and projects of different construction sites. The event was divided into two parts namely LEGO®
SERIOUS PLAY® training and team thinking respectively. Combining games, systematic thinking and teamwork, team spirit and

exchange among the employees were strengthened.

S5, AEEREBRERBHSF REFNBUARAEEKE T RN EENERSTRABSEREHE
alfR, 2EEEREBRERBRIETMIEE, ABZESOA. EHIIRD AHME D, 15 BLEGO® SERIOUS
PLAYOIZEIE B M B ER R E, BBTRGER. XRBERERSIFRIIR, MEE T 2B FEH R
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management
Supply Chain Management

Business partners, suppliers and clients are closely related to

the construction business of the Group and directly affect the
products and services we provide. In addition, we are committed
to influencing our supply chain positively to promote strong
efhico|, sofefy, social and environmental performonce.

In order for us to pair up with reliable partners from potential
organisations, the senior management of our construction
business closely monitor the whole process of selection, and
request that suppliers complete questionnaires to illustrate

the company's track records in law compliance, standards or
guidelines of sustainability adopted, corporate governance,
regulations of workplaces, and performance on community
projects and environmental affairs. In addition, we implement
ongoing and effective assessments on selected suppliers

and sub-contractors, to ensure that they provide stable and
reliable services and products as well as executing the work of
sustainability.

Product Responsibilities
Quality Management

Our construction business remains committed to quality and
innovation. By deploying a series of quality management
systems including ISO 9001, we have in place the
Plan-Do-Check-Act Improvement Cycle, which ensures
continuous improvement in service quality and thus customer
satisfaction. As to customer complaints and any individual or
construction behaviours that are suspected to be in breach of
regulations or rules, we immediately carry out investigation and
make rectifications as soon as possible. Senior management of
our construction business also conduct regular reviews and meet
with various departments to look into relevant measures such
that good quality standards can be maintained continuously.
In addition, we collect opinions from clients or sub-contractors
via questionnaires or interviews in order to constantly optimise

product and service quality.
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Landmark Conservation Project - The Mills
IR R B HE SR

Quality Project Management
BEEEEE

We strive to integrate the principle of sustainability into our core business management. Among which, as the main contractor of the
landmark conservation project - The Mills, we endeavour to retain the existing features of the building while revitalising a number of
old textile mills according to the owner's design to achieve parallel development of environmental conservation and our growth. A
number of measures have been introduced, including:

HH—ERFREERNRIMAIFAROCEBEE, Hf, FAMEINRERE—FBEVHRIBERER, Ffs
NEEEMERST, REBRYRERENAR, SSEEMBMEETILIRE EREEFERTT. HFAREZ
Bt TE, O

m Column strengthening with Ferroscan Technology

& FR S 5 PR R B B s B S AL N E

(2) Mastering manufacturing and assembly data through collision inspection analysis under the three-dimensional model

BB = HRUMERE DT ERERE R ER

(3) Using remote control robot to demolish non-structural parts

ERE R AT EIEAEB R

Leverage on quality project management, The Mills project has won a number of industry awards and accolades, including the *Project
of the Year”, "Winner (Construction/Engineering)” and "Winner (Community Service)” at the Project Management Achievement

Awards 2018 organised by Hong Kong Institute of Project Management; the Winner of the Community Service Category at the
"Project Management Awards 2018" organised by Asia Pacific Federation of Project Management and the Merit Award in Public
Works - RMAA Works Category at the "CIC Sustainable Construction Award 2018” organised by Construction Industry Council.
REBEEEER, MEBVHMBEREZEXEAKSE, LERNDEAEEEEESRNNTEEEIEAR08ES
MEEIEE AR @G/ TEMER—KE L HERBHEN—AE, R AEE B AR 2018FEIHE
BIRAE PERS THERBHEN—AE, WERHBERZREPN RIEERS 0 FHERERAR018 B3 HE.
RE. WENIVBELEMRN—EEE,
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Protection of Data

Protection of company data and privacy of information is

very important to the Company. In order to gain trust from all
our sfokeho|c|ers, the security of their persona| information is
important to us. The Company acknowledges the importance

in carefully handling all personal information. We have policies
in place to monitor how the personal information of our
stakeholders is collected, used and managed. The personal
information is usuc1||y collected from our vendors, emp|oyees and

other business associates.

The Company understands stakeholders use their personal
information for different purposes while performing business
activities. Therefore, it is important for us to handle this
information with care. To keep all company's data from any
unauthorized access, accidental loss and or desfrucﬂon, the
Company's hotel development/operation business adopts
appropriate security and data protection measures in the
transfer and storage of the personal data and only processes
corresponding information when necessary. In order to

ensure that our data would be safe from offocks, we have
implemented multiple layers of security features, data protection
mechanism'’s which protect and monitor the integrity of
information. Reference to best practices for cyber security and
data protection methods and the use of various software and
hardware tools, further strengthens our data protection and

network security measures.

Building and ensuring the culture of integrity within the Group's
construction business has long been a major component in
management. Protecting customers’ data and privacy is our
top priority. Non-disclosure agreements are included in our
tenders and contracts for sub-contractors, in order to prevent
the leakage of relevant information. In compliance with data
privacy laws and regulations, we endeavour to equip our
business with the most pertinent and timely data available to
help optimise operations. Employees must strictly comply with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance when handling staff or

customers’ individual particulars.
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Anti-Corruption
Whistle-Blowing

The Company has in place a whistleblowing policy and system
which enables employees and those who deal with the Group to
raise concerns, in comcidence, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

Business Ethics

Building and ensuring the culture of integrity within the

Group has long been a major component in management.

All management and staff must comply with the Code of
Conduct, which sets out our position and standards regarding
operating ethics and employee conduct, including preventing
bribery and avoiding conflicts of interest. Any breaches of the
Code are handled in strict accordance with internal disciplinary
procedures.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Community investment
Caring for Society

For our construction business, we remain committed to building
a positive influence on the community and make use of internal
resources, business network and employee participation to
contribute to the community. We fulfil our social responsibilities
in three directions from community service to education and

charity.

Connecting to the community, our construction business also
endeavours to repay the community with our corporate strengths
and resources and our efforts are widely recognised. Last year
when Typhoon Mangkhut hit Hong Kong, we immediately
called upon our colleagues in different construction sites to
voluntarily take part in the clearance of fallen trees on the road,
which earned us a certificate of appreciation from Secretary

for Home Affairs Bureau later. In addition, we are also active

in sponsoring the charitable events of different institutions

such as Goodman Magic Mile Charity Run 2019 organised

by Goodman Group to raise money for The Fred Hollows
Foundation and Happy 3on3 Basketball Tournament organised
by Hear Talk Foundation.
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Our construction business also committed to community service
and closely work with community partners, putting words into
action to care for the underprivileged.

During the year, we worked with Hans Andersen Club

and organised the Beeswax Product Making Workshop

in Lamma Island to send the message of environmental
protection to the children. In oddi’rion, we continued to
co-organise the Mid-Autumn Festival Visit to the Elderly in
Lam Tei with The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

to care for the elderly singletons. We worked with Alliance
Construction Materials, our business partner, for the first time,
in sponsoring and participating in the airport tour event named
“"Dream-Come-True-Tour" organised by The Hub Hong Kong to
widen the horizon of children from grassroot families.

Education Support

The young generation is the leader of Hong Kong's tomorrow.
We actively support and promote education programmes

to nurture future leaders of Hong Kong. During the year, in
addition to sponsoring Upward Mobility Scholarship of Future
Star 2019 organised by Commission on Poverty and other
institutions for three consecutive years, we incentivised and
recognised the outstanding results and remarkable performance
of students from four faculties of Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI) namely Civil
Engineering, Surveying, Building Services Engineering as well as
Environmental Engineering and Management by establishing
the "Paul Y. Engineering Group Scholarship”.

During the year, our charitable and other donations used for
supporting community welfare, environmental protection and
promoting health information amounted to approximately

HK$612,000.
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PYE helps with Post-typhoon Debris Clearance

1 Bh @ K4 TR IR 1 A

Super Typhoon Mangkhut lashed Hong Kong on 16 September 2018 causing considerable destruction to the city, uprooting over a
thousand trees and tearing down large branches. PYE was quick to lend a hand as a skilled volunteer from the construction sector,
assisting in clearing fallen trees from roads and helping restore normal operations to the community. We received the Certificate of
Commendation granted by the Home Affairs Bureau at its Commendation Scheme Ceremony.
TE/\FENB+ABEREBRNLTTIEE, HABZRENERERE, LHHEESAEAERARES, BERE,
FETRED. REERXZBWIBERABEESRS, SHEEROEIERSERF. Alt, EREBRIHETT 2T
g, RBEBE T, LURREEH,
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¥ for Home Affairs’CommendatigmScheme Presentation Cererm

65
SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIEMHERERRS

Sponsoring the "Digital Construction Technology International Workshop” of Chu Hai College of Higher Education

BB 2R BRI B TIFh)

Through the support to younger generation, we aim at nurturing more talents for the society, as well as motivating the youngsters to
spread and inherit the caring spirit.

BEXRHFEA, RARFEEASLEEEEZET N, UHFLEMMEEENAZRBHEBREET X,

During the year, we supported and sponsored the Back to Earth Construction Digital Fabrication Workshop — Making Children’s
Furniture Using Construction Waste Material of the Faculty of Architecture of Chu Hai College of Higher Education. The workshop
invited a number of renowned overseas speakers to give a lecture to more than 30 students majoring architecture from Chu Hai
College of Higher Education, Taiwan and Belgium where they made use of construction wastes to create a series of children'’s
furniture riding on the environmental concept and design of “Upcycling” in the construction industry coupled with digital construction
technology.

TR, REBRLZFNEBKRBEMELRSR, % 2Backto Earth Construction Digital Fabrication Workshop — Making Children’
s Furniture Using Construction Waste Material T1E¥5. TAESHHAZ MU A BN EREE, ZIRRI0AK BE. 5& K HF]
BRERREL, UIARES NRFERERBIRERET, MEBUBERN, FAERRBERE-RIIZTERE,

We also provided suitable construction wastes for the event to allow students to put what they had learned into practice through
making suitable furniture for the ethnic minority families who served by HKSKH Lady Maclehose Centre, which was conducive to

building a harmonious community and achieving sustainable development.
FEETRDHRHGENEREN, BRERMENEA, ARLGRIFEXRARORBHNIBEGEERERFE
BRYRE, BIRIIMEELE, WERFRHEREZ .

Date: 5 August 2019 HER: —FS—hF/\HAAH
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of South Shore Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associate, joint ventures
and joint operations as at 31 March 2019 are set out in note 49

to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group's business performance

during the reporting period, as well as the principal risks and
uncertainties and future prospects of the Group are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis of the annual report, the

discussions thereof form part of this Directors’ Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands the importance of sound environmental
management practices and sustainable business operations.
The Group has in place environmental policy and is committed
to minimise adverse impact that its operations may have on
the environment. The Group has implemented a number of
environment-friendly measures such as installation of LED
lighting and adoption of electronic internal administrative
processes fo replace the use of paper.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The sustainable deve|opmenf of the Group depends on the
supports and efforts of alll parties concerned inc|uding our
customers, supp|iers and contractors, porﬁcu|ar|y the efforts and
contribution of all our staffs. Accordingly, our senior management
has kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business updates with them when appropriate.

CHANGE OF NAME

Special resolution was passed by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting of the Company held on
8 May 2018 to change the name of the Company from “The 13
Holdings Limited” to "South Shore Holdings Limited” and the
Chinese name " EFEEIBR/A 5] " has been registered as
the secondary name of the Company in place of * +— =5 EH
[R25] " The change of name took effect on 9 May 2018.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
95 of the annual report and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 49% and 14% of the revenue of the Group,
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the five
|orgesf supp|iers of the Group during the year was less than 30%
of the purchases of the Group.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors, their

close associates, within the meaning of the Listing Rules, or those
shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company's share capital have an interest in any of the five
largest customers of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to

meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group's total bank and other borrowings, loan from a subsidiary
of a shareholder and loan from a related company amounted

to approximately HK$4,318,974,000 with approximately
HK$4,301,474,000 repayable within one year and approximately
HK$17,500,000 repayable more than one year but not
exceeding five years. In addition, the Group also has outstanding
convertible bonds with face value of HK$2,218,542,350 and
liability component as at 31 March 2019 of approximately
HK$812,741,000. The convertible bonds mature in February
20925. Cash, bank balances and deposits as at 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately HK$337,816,000. The Group's fotal
debts to total assets ratio was approximately 0.6 as at 31 March
2019.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$176,253,000 on property, plant and equipment and
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of expanding its business.

In addition, the Group spent approximately HK$494,277,000
for the hotel property erected on the Cotai Strip of Macau.

Details of these and other movements in the hotel property,
property, plant and equipment, deposits paid for acquisition

of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments of the Group during the year are set out in notes 13, 14
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options of the Company and Falloncroft
Investments Limited ("Falloncroft”) during the year are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2019 comprised the contributed
surplus of approximately HK$1,858,814,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive director

Walter Craig Power
(re-designated as non-executive director on 1 May 2019)

Independent non-executive directors

James Chiu, OBE, JP

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's
Bye-laws, Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen, Ir James Chiu and Mr lain
Ferguson Bruce will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific
term of approximately three years, and are subject to retirement
by rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws. The non-executive
director is appointed for a specific term of one year, and

is subject to retirement by rotation under the Company’s
Bye-Laws.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
Forﬂ']coming annual genero| meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable

by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ")), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
"Model Code") in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Interests in shares and under|ying shares of the Company

EFEHRS

ES N7

RAR B R KRR 7 2

Total number
of shares and

HRARM REF 2 ERERAE (E)

Number of Interest in underlying Approximate
Name of director Capacity shares held underlying shares shares held percentage
FrEERR 17 R
EES =4 FFRHHE  RERRMERX  HERMIEE BB s
(Note1)
(5D
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Beneficial owner 6,376,260 2,204,276 (Note 2) 8,580,536 0.85%
BREBA (FiEE2)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Interest of controlled 90,725,800 (Note 4) - 90,725,800 8.96%
IsR corporation GED)
Nl NS
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner - 2,204,276 (Note 2) 2,204,276 0.22%
sR ERHEA (H5£2)
Walter Craig Power Beneficial owner - 2,204,276 (Note 2) 2,204,276 0.22%
BEREBA (fy5t2)
James Chiu Beneficial owner - 195,350 (Note 3) 195,350 0.02%
A ERBWBEA G E))
Lee Chack Fan Beneficial owner - 195,350 (Note 3) 195,350 0.02%
=3 CEaY BREEA ChE))
lain Ferguson Bruce Beneficial owner 89,881 195,350 (Note 3) 285,231 0.03%
mEL ERBWEA (FREE3)
Francis Goutenmacher Beneficial owner - 195,350 (Note 3) 195,350 0.02%
BREBAN (FiEE3)
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny Beneficial owner - 195,350 (Note 3) 195,350 0.02%
RER ERWBA )
Notes: P5E -

1.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company were long positions.

2,204,276 share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018 and
the completion of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018) were
granted to each of Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Tom Ko
Yuen and Mr Walter Craig Power on 18 September 2015
under the share option scheme adopted on 11 August 2015
(the "2015 Share Option Scheme”) and entitle each of them
to subscribe for Shares upon exercise at an adjusted exercise
price of HK$12.531 per Share. The share options shall vest
in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as to
a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

1.

70

M ERBARRBIRN RERERNERI DI 2.

2,204,276t R E (RN —F—/\F_B+-HEM
ZRAERLN SN\ FZAZ+RHZAMERM
FE) ENIE— ﬁiﬂﬁ+[\5$§?ﬁéﬁ\_% hF
NB+—BEnEREE (TE—hFERE
5TE) 7 /DJHX%’PeferLeeCokerJr/fEE ANz RAIE
NzWalter Craig Powert 4, 124K HEZIT BB A12.531
?%Tuﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁgx/\ufﬁﬁﬁ NE D 2 1B

BRESD=HEE, —H—2BRER_S—RF
NB+\BERE, ZA=n—<BRERN_F—C
FART/\HEB BR=D7—<BREN_F

—N\FNART/\HERB. BRES 58 H MK
EE-NFABTEHEE (BEEEMX) AT
1718,

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3. 195,350 share options (adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018 and
the completion of the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018) were
granted to each of Ir James Chiu, Professor Lee Chack Fan,
Mr lain Ferguson Bruce, Mr Francis Goutenmacher and
Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny on 18 September 2015 under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme and entitle each of them to
subscribe for Shares upon exercise at an adjusted exercise
price of HK$12.531 per Share. The share options shall vest
in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as to
a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

4. These Shares were beneficially owned by Circle Swing
Limited. Circle Swing Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Rally Praise Limited which was in turn a wholly
owned subsidiary of Empire City International Limited.
Empire City International Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited which was in turn
wholly owned by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen. Mr Lau Tom Ko
Yuen, the deputy chairman and executive director of the
Company, is also a director of Affluent Talent Limited,
Empire City International Limited, Rally Praise Limited and
Circle Swing Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EENRM. ERRMNRESCERK KR (B

fysE (78

3. 19535010 RIE (AR —F—/\FE A+ - HEMZ
BASBHENMNR _ET—\F=H -+ HTmHERMmE
B)ERIES—AFAA T+ \HBBE-S—HFER
BB TS T260. e DHE. B LE
. Francis Goutenmachert 2 N[ & B4, RIS
Wﬁ@?ﬁ iﬁyl?SBI%ﬁfTTQE%ETYTﬁ%&\/\mEﬁK

RNEIRMBER, BRES=MEFEB, =n—<E
RIER-E—NFENAT/\BES, %%\_“ ol
BRENR-_S—TCFNET/\BREE SB=7—
LEREBR_S—/\FENLAT/\HEREB. BERIES
TARERBEREE_E—NFNB T+ EHBE (2E
BEMX) & FI1T71F.

4. bR HCircle Swing LimitedE 2585 . Circle Swing
Limited Z3Rally Praise Limited £ & BN E], M0
Rally Praise LimitedEl| Z5Empire City International Limited
L& E/NEl. Empire City International Limited 2
Affluent Talent Limited BV £ & B/ 5], TAMuent
Talent Limited 2| S RLE 2B R, FaRTEA
ANBINEIEEFRIAITEE, 7195 BAffluent Talent
Limited. Empire City International Limited. Rally Praise
Limited &2 Circle Swing Limited#J % =,

MREXFIEEN, RIFS-—NAF=B=+—H, &A1
BEFNEBTBRAEMERAL TN EREEEE
(EER I LIAEKRAZEXVED) < iRm. ERERGD &
TE%EPTEEWET% G 25 M ERE IR B B 3528 BEBRAR
TR EREsuLe, RBRESTRIMES
17%DA$ VB R EBEAIF 2 FBESR TUK B
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARNDERE ZLHE

DEBENTURES

(i) 2015 Share option scheme () —ES—RAFERESE
On 11 August 2015, the Company adopted a new share ARNBINIIE—AFN\A+—HFWEREFE
option scheme (the "2015 Share Option Scheme”). Details (ZE—AFEREEAEL) . B8 _F—NF=A
of movements in the share options of the Company granted — T HIEFEARNBIRE_S—HFERETS
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme during the year B BEREBE) BT

ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be issuied upon exercise of the share options Closing price of he
REREENFERALATERTRAEE Company's shares
Outstanding at Redlassified Lapsed during Outstanding ot Bredieprice  immedtely beore Everce
Name of grantee Date of grant 149016 during the year the year 3130019 pershare date of grant period
R RS
\ZE-N\E R-Z2-hE=R N0
AEARS RiLAS MA-H ENENHE ERER ZH-REXGE BRAEE  UmHEORES i
HK$ HK$
#n o
(Note3)
(F3ks)
Directors 2%
Pefer Lee Coker ). 18.9.2015 2,204,276 - - 2,204,276 12531 228 Nofel
“E-1ENRTNE Hetl
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 1899015 9,204,276 - - 9,204,276 19531 298 Note
HBR “E-nERATAE e
Walter Craig Power 18.9.015 2,204,276 - - 2,204,276 12531 228 Note 1
“B-1FRATAR (g
James Chiu 18.9.2015 195,350 - - 195,350 12531 228 Note 1
BEE “E-REARTNE BiEh
Lee Chack Fan 18.9.2015 195,350 - - 195,350 12531 298 Note 1
5% Z2-1EAATNA i
lain Ferguson Bruce 189.2015 195,350 - - 195,350 12531 298 Note
fgt ZE-RENATIA Kzt
Francis Goutenmacher 1892015 195350 - - 195350 12531 298 Note1
“E-LENATAR i
Chon Kok Chung, Johnny 1892015 195,350 - - 195,350 12531 298 Note
e “T-2EARTNA (i)
Sub-total 7,589,578 - - 7,589,578
gt
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued)

Number of shares of the Company to be issuied upon exercise of the share options

REREEORRANDRETRAYE

BARMNERE R (]

“E-LFRERESE ()

Closing price of the

Company's shares

Outstanding at Reclassified Lapsed during Outstanding at Brrciseprice  immeditely before Brercie
Name of grantee Date of grant 149018 during the year the year 3139019 per share date of grant period
FRELARE
RZE-N\E RZE-NE=ZR KAFRS
REAED FHAH mA—-H ENERHE EREH ZH-BHAGE SRAEE  WHEOHES ffeH
HK$ HK$
BT AT
(Note3)
liE)
Employees (In aggregate)  18.9.2015 3,065,271 136,458 (2,660,93) 540,803 19531 298 Notel
&8 (850) ZZ-REAATAE I3t
woe 259400 259400 5104 3% o2
“E-ENENE ' ' iR
Sub-otal
/JTEJrOO 330467 13 458 (2,660,090) 780,205
§
Other parfcpans 1892015 308826 (136.458) (2,388 - 1053 2% Note]
(In aggregate) “E-1FNATNE K3
RthBEE (B5)
1532016 43,092 (43,092) - 12,531 208 Notel
“E-1"EZBt+hR Kb
Sub-total 351,918 (136,458) (215,460)
gt
Total 11,246,173 (2,676,392) 8,369,781
a5t
Notes: B 5E -
1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third =n—

on 18 September 2016, as to a further one-third on 18
September 2017 and as to the final one-third on 18
September 2018. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 17 September 2019
(both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one

third on 8 September 2017, as to a further one-third on
8 September 2018 and as to the final one-third on 8
September 2019. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 7 September 2020
(both dates inclusive).

Adjusted as a result of the Capital Reorganisation which
took effect on 12 February 2018 and the completion of
the Rights Issue on 20 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued)
No share options of the Company granted under the 2015

Share Option Scheme were exercised or cancelled during

the year.

Particulars of the 2015 Share Option Scheme are set out in

note 37(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company to make bonus
payments to eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company’s shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any of
the Company’s shares under this share award scheme during
the year or as at 31 March 2019.

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company
are set out in note 38(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(iii) Share financing plan
This plan, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows eligible persons (including
emp|oyees, direcfors, consuHcm’rs, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares
of the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security subject always
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions under
the Listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the
Company's shares under this share financing plan during the
year or as at 31 March 2019.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the directors, chief executives or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such righ’rs during the year.

BARNDNERE L (8

() —F—LFBERETS (8
FR, BEALNEEBE_E-—AFERESIED
< B T (L S AT 5o

TE-ILFBRESEFEHRNRG M B REME
37(a)(ii)o

(i) BRipEZEh5TE
ARBNZBEANFNASNBERNZETEIEF, &
RNAIAGERAL (BREAEEZREE. EF. B
Bl EEARRIEN) UARF ZRMNBFZIVRET
i, EROBE—RBUSEABARES, B
EIEEWVRB R ZERA L.

FRNHIR_B-NF=B=1+—0, BIELALITE
EIRBULR G B B BRERARE R

AR RV EZRFHEIF B RN IR M BRERME
38(0)0

(i) B R E 2
RNBIRZBENFNASNARRNCFTEIRTSE
AT (BEAEECEE. EE. B, B AK
REN) AARNBAAEBR—B L BERUEBER
BEEEBERNBFNERD, MILERMEIEIR
FARRNBEAILR G, HATE ETRAEREE
R R EAMAERME SO 2 FR T

FRNHAR_B-NF=F=1+—H, BIELARTE
ERBILRNBMESIEETAARE R

RANFIIRBEEN, ARBENEEARBEARE, RER
EEREBRESETIIEALZH, UDELRTESIHE
BAALRTHEFHMBREE ZRMIEREZ (Z
EEZ) MERN, BER. T2THABARSF CERE
RARm+N\mZFREERBARNBES, TERF
RATIEIE R F R,
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EFEHRS

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company are interested in any
businesses apart from the Group's businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year or as at 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing Connected Transaction

On 28 March 2018, PYE (a subsidiary of the Company)

and ITC Properties Holdings Group Limited ("ITC Properties
Holdings") (a subsidiary of ITC Properties) entered into a

new business services agreement (the “ITCP Business Services
Agreement”) for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019
with the annual cap amount of HK$1,600 million. The entering
into of the ITCP Business Services Agreement constituted

a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these were set out in
the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2018.

75
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EFEHRS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered into
the following transactions with a subsidiary of ITC Properties

FHERER 5 (18)
FHERER 7 (18)

BE_FE-NF=ZRB=+T—HLEFER, £EEHEEHF
WEZ—BNBLAR REEHEEE BN LTI

and associates of the ITC Properties Group: B
Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
RFZ %M REZME ok
HK$'000
FHExT
Assets Island Limited ("Assets Island”) Construction works charged by the Group 79,110
AEBWEENIIEE
Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited ("Rosedale Hotel Kowloon”) Construction works charged by the Group 312
NEEIHEAIER R LE (TEEIHEAIE)) AEERMENIREE
Keen Step Corporation Limited ("Keen Step”) Construction works charged by the Group 993
BERARNE (25)) AEEWERAGNWITIRES
Empresa De Fomento Industrial E Commercia Construction works charged by the Group 579,122
Concordia, S.A. ("Empresa”) KREBWEREGHNIEE
Best Prosper Investment Limited ("Best Prosper”) Construction works charged by the Group 41,850
FEBNRANWLIIEE
701,387

Assets Island, Rosedale Hotel Kowloon, Keen Step, Empresa
and Best Prosper are associates, within the meaning of the
Listing Rules, of ITC Properties, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected fransactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews

of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

Assets Island. JLEEIAEE S, 725, EmpresalzBest
Prosper AN B T EREBEEFMECHMBEAL (EER

EHRAD

RRBEVBENERIBE L E5TED

A & EKE L

1EZERIZE30005% (FREF]) BRABRE LT B ERLL
N TR R2REBBRAE7T405 RANEE LS
RAPTRFHERNER 7 2 BN T ) BB R E A EE
ZFHERER Fo MBETERE L HRAIZB14A 56153
HERESRKNG, ETNHERBMNHNEH LOOREL
RHERER 7 2 BAERER Ao
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EFEHRS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

The auditor of the Company has reported his conclusion on
these procedures to the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company

have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected

transactions as set out above have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinory and usual course of the business of the

Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

On 29 March 2019, PYE and ITC Properties Holdings entered
into a conditional new business services agreement, as varied
and supplemented by a supplemental agreement entered into
between the same parties dated 24 May 2019 (the "ITCP New
Business Services Agreement”) for the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2021 with the annual cap amounts of HK$1,800
million and HK$1,600 million for each of the two years ending
31 March 2020 and 2021 respectively. The entering into of the
ITCP New Business Services Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of these were set out in the Company
of the circular dated 27 May 2019.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FHERER S (1]8)

FrERER 7 (18)
ARERBEERREEFCERAALNTAESTER
Ho ARBE2EBEIDFRITESCER L XHYZFE
FERZWHESRILEFLS ) !

() RAEBBEER—IREFDENET ;

(i) RIESBEFENNEBGEIET ; &

(i) WREERMX 2 mRET, EERARFTEHE,
TERRNBIREZEEH o

RIE—NEF=H-+hH, REEZEZNITC Properties
Holdingss] 17 B 1& M T E IR g (R L& AR

E-NFREZ+WNHEI I 2 HIRBEITER] M)
(MTCPHMEKRBE =) , FHR_S—ALFMNE—H
FIETF-RA-+—HALL, BEZSTEFNRT
EC—F-RA-+—HIMEFESFEFNFELES

&899 B! #1,800,000,00078 7T M21,600,000,00075 75, 17
B ETIRBIEI4AZE, FTILITCPITEF RS B Al A

NE)ZIHERER . BHEFBIRALBDHBEACSE
—NWERA -t HAZER,

RIFFE F R EKRGIE36MGFEZE MG E
ERRHMA T BER%EE

RTEBE-NE=ZA=1+—H, SARAEEREIETH
ANBFIH, RIFESNMERDBEBGFELANT
R TBERE S HMATRARE ZRMH R
ERAR M BETOARINT
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EFEHRS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

e

Global Allocation Fund
('Global Allocation”)

Evolution Capital
Management, LLC
("Evolution”)

Tiger Trust

Lerch Michael

Advance Tech Limited
("Advance Tech”)

RHEGRAE (RIE))
ITC Properties Management

Group Limited ("ITC

Properties Management’)

ITC Properties
ErrmE

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

("Dr Chan’)
PR (TRTEL )

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy
(MsNg')
hE (ML)

Capacity

g

Beneficial owner

ERERA

Interest of controlled
corporation

RZEH L E
ZIER

Interest of controlled
corporation

IEELLY
IR

Interest of controlled
corporation

INEELEY
IR

Beneficial owner

EREEA

Inferest of controlled
corporation

SR
;2

Inferest of controlled
corporation

N
P i

Beneficial owner &
interest of controlled
corporation

BLEE AKRE
EREE B

Inferest of spouse

EBER

Long position

e
Long position

e

Long position
e

Long position
e

Long position
e

Long position
HE

Long position
R

Long position
e

Long position
e

Long position
e

RIRE S M ERAIEI36MRF B B MATEE sk £
EREHMWAT2#ER KR (18)

(o) TERRNARB RN RERMRMN < #

Number of
shares held

FisREUE

14,220,000

14,220,000

106,110,260

106,110,260

106,110,260

106,110,260

106,110,260

/8

Interest in
underlying shares

INGEEE A 34

168,368,300

168,368,300

168,368,300

168,368,300

4,500,000

4,500,000

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Total number
of shares

and underlying
shares held
R m R
HRR G R

168,368,500
(Note )
iza)

168,368,300
(Note 1)
(Rf5£1)

182,588,300
(Note 2)
(fHEx2)

182,588,300
(Note 2)
(f5x)

106,110,260
(Note 3)
(F5£3)

106,110,260

(Note 3)
(Ff5£3)

106,110,260
(Note 3)
RS

110,610,260
(Note 3)
(Bi5£3)

110,610,260
(Note 3)
(Ffr&E3)

Approximate
percentage

R SIERadid

16.62%

16.62%

18.03%

18.03%

10.48%

10.48%

10.48%

10.92%

10.92%




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHRS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Global Allocation was wholly owned by Evolution which
was in turn wholly owned by Tiger Trust. Mr Michael
Lerch has 100% interest in Tiger Trust. Evolution,

Tiger Trust and Mr Michael Lerch were deemed to be
interested in the underlying shares of the Company held
by Global Allocation.

2. Evo Fund was wholly owned by Evo Feeder Fund
and Evolution Japan Asset Management Co., Ltd.
("Evolution Japan”). Evo Feeder Fund was wholly owned
by Mr Michael Lerch and Evolution Capital Investments
LLC which was in turn wholly owned by Mr Michael
Lerch. Evolution Japan was wholly owned by Tiger Inn
Enterprises Limited (Tiger Inn") which was in turn wholly
owned by Evolution Japan Co. Ltd. Evolution Japan
Co. Ltd, was wholly owned by Evolution Japan Group
Holding Inc., which was in turn wholly owned by, Tiger
Holdings Ltd. Tiger Holdings Ltd was wholly owned by
Tiger Trust. Mr Michael Lerch has 100% interest in Tiger
Trust. Evo Feeder Fund, Evolution Japan, Evolution
Capital Investments LLC, Tiger Inn, Evolution Japan
Co. Ltd,, Evolution Japan Group Holding Inc., Tiger
Holdings Ltd. Tiger Trust and Mr Michael Lerch were
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company

held by Evo Fund.

3. Advance Tech was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ITC Properties Management which was in turn a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties. Dr Chan and
Ms Ng (the spouse of Dr Chan) have approximately
27.10% and 24.96% interest in issued shares of [TC
Properties respectively. ITC Properties Management,
ITC Properties, Ms Ng and Dr Chan were deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by
Advance Tech.

RIFE S M B GRAIEI6MRF B BT £
ERRHMATZEREREE (8)

(o) EERRNARNE RN RBRIRN 22 (18)
By 5L -

1. Global AllocationFiEvolution®= & #EH, MEvolution
FTiger Trust2 E# Ao, Michael Lerch/CEHEH
Tiger Trust 100%1Z 25 Evolution. Tiger Trustz
Michael Lerch’t 4 1578 23 52 Global AllocationFT#5 A
REMBRAR M RHEE R,

2. Evo FundFEvo Feeder FundXzEvolution Japan
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (TEvolution Japan )
2B, Evo Feeder FundfMichael Lerchic 4
KzEvolution Capital Investments LLCE E S,
M Evolution Capital Investments LLCE! F5Michael
Lerch/cE 2 E# S, Evolution JapanH Tiger Inn
Enterprises Limited ([ Tiger InnJ) £ & %5, MTiger
InnB!l FHEvolution Japan Co. Ltd. 2 & #EH . Evolution
Japan Co. Ltd. FHEvolution Japan Group Holding Inc.
2E¥EAE, [MEvolution Japan Group Holding Inc.8l
HTiger Holdings Lid 2 & # &, Tiger Holdings Ltd
HTiger Trust 2 E#EHo Michael Lerchdt A Tiger
Trust#E B100%/E %50 Evo Feeder Fund. Evolution
Japan. Evolution Capital Investments LLC. Tiger
Inn. Evolution Japan Co. Ltd.. Evolution Japan Group
Holding Inc.. Tiger Holdings Ltd\ Tiger Trust}z
Michael Lerch5t 4 45 18 2 12 Evo FundFTHE AR B] A%
1 R .

3. BHEITC Properties ManagementZ 4 & [ J& 22
5], MITC Properties Management 2 B #E 31 7 7 &
BB B, BEL kALt EEL 2R
DRI B AN B RITRMN RHEE2710% K
24.96%1# %o ITC Properties Management. 1Z2£EH#
E. ARt REBLOREAREERFSALE
R 10 RS ko
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL BIEESNPERAENRMEEEC B LM £

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons

ERFRHMATZEERKE (B)

(b) ATz fEat

Total number of

shares and
Number of Interest in underlying Approximate
Name of person Capacity shares held  underlying shares shares held percentage
KRR, GiERdianyd
HtA L2 a7 Gitstint G P2 TR MRS BEa
(Note1)
(Rf5£1)
Circle Swing Limited Beneficial owner 90,725,800 (L) - 90,725,800 8.96%
EREEAN (Note 2)
(Fi5t2)
Rally Praise Limited Interest of controlled 90,725,800 (L) - 90,725,800 8.96%
corporation (Note 2)
R EHEE )
-2
Empire City International Limited Inferest of controlled 90,725,800 (L) - 90,725,800 8.96%
corporation (Note 2)
NS b (frE2)
2o
Affluent Talent Limited Interest of controlled 90,725,800 (L) - 90,725,800 8.96%
corporation (Note 2)
NN (fyzE2)
2o
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Interest of controlled 90,725,800 (L) - 90,725,800 8.96%
=y corporation (Note 2)
REEH L E (Fyz2)
B
Lau Tom Ko Yuen Beneficial owner - 2,204,276 2,204,276 0.22%
2sR BREBA
Omega Capital Partners, L.P. Beneficial owner 59,952,977 (L) 11,760,243 64,713,220 6.39%
EREAAN (Note 3)
(Bf5£3)
Omega Operating LLC [nvestment manager 59,952,977 (L) 11,760,243 64,713,220 6.39%
REKE (Note 3)
(F¥5£3)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL

EFEHRS

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE

SFO (Continued)
(b) Interests of other persons (Continued)

RIRE S M ERAIEI36MRF B B MATEE sk £
EREHMWAT2#ER KR (18)

(b) Htt ALz % ()

Name of person

HttA L%

Total number of

Tiger Partners Trading L. L.C.

Tiger Partners, L.P.

Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C.

Tiger Management L.L.C.

Tiger Management Corporation

U. S. Trust Company of Delaware as
Directed Co-Trustee of the
Julian H. Robertson,

Jr. Revocable Trust dated 19 December
2005 as amended (the "Trust")

U. S. Trust Company of Delaware, {E 2 [ £8
ABERETZE N HZdion H.
Robertson, Jr. Revocable Trust ({&1£5T) (5%
Bt e ZETEFZEA

Julian Hart Robertson
("Ms. Robertson”)

Julian Hart Robertson

(TRobertson 221-J)

shares and
Number of Interest in underlying Approximate
Capacity shares held  underlying shares shares held percentage
Ll ERHm R
g% R nEE IR HRAR R R BBt
(Note1)
(Ry&£1)
Beneficial owner 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
ERHEFA (Note 4)
(Bi5£4)
Interest of controlled 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
corporation (Note 4)
NEEHEE (Fi54)
-2
Interest of controlled 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
corporation (Note 4)
REEHLE (Fi5E4)
2o
Investment manager 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
REIRE (Note 4)
GEZ)
Interest of controlled 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
corporation (Note 4)
NS (FfyzE4)
2o
Interest of controlled 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
corporation (Note 4)
NS GEZY
2o
Interest of controlled 54,703,784 (L) - 54,703,784 5.40%
corporation (Note 4)
AR ERIEE (Fi5E4)
2o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE
SFO (Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons (Continued)
Notes:

1. (L) denotes a long position.

2. Circle Swing Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary
of Rally Praise Limited which was in turn a wholly
owned subsidiary of Empire City International Limited.
Empire City International Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of Affluent Talent Limited which was in turn
wholly owned by Mr Lau Tom Ko Yuen. Mr Lau Tom
Ko Yuen, the deputy chairman and executive Director
of the Company, is also a director of Affluent Talent
Limited, Empire City International Limited, Rally Praise
Limited and Circle Swing Limited respectively.

3. Omega Operating LLC as investment manager
of Omega Capital Investors, L.P., Omega Capital
Partners, L.P. and Omega Equity Investors, L.P. (the
"Omega Group”), was deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by the Omega Group.

4. Tiger Partners Trading L.L.C. was wholly owned by
Tiger Partners, L.P. which was in turn wholly owned by
Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C. Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C. was
wholly owned by the Trust. Ms Robertson has 100%
interest in the Trust. Tiger Partners, L.P., Tiger Partners
GP, L.L.C, the Trust and Ms Robertson were deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
Tiger Partners Trading L.L.C.

Tiger Management L.L.C. was 89.48%-owned by Tiger
Management Corporation which was in turn wholly
owned by the Trust. Ms Robertson has 100% interest

in the Trust. Tiger Management Corporation, the Trust
and Ms Robertson were deemed to be interested in

the shares of the Company indirectly held by Tiger
Management L.L.C.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Company
has not been notified of any interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.
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RIFFE S NI RO E336MG6FE 2 ESLMATEEEE
ERRHMATZEREREE (8)

(b) HEA L2 (18)
PYEE

1L (LFEIr 2.

2. Circle Swing LimitedZRally Praise Limited Y 2 &
Mt/E /N 5], MMRally Praise Limited 8| 2 Empire City
International LimitedBY 4 & B /X 5)o  Empire City
International Limited 23 Affluent Talent Limited 39 & &
&N E), MAHluent Talent LimitedFH 2 5 R 55 4
LEHR, ERAEARLNINEFFRN
1182, 719 Bl Affluent Talent Limited. Empire
City International Limited. Rally Praise Limited A2 Circle
Swing Limited 9 & =,

3. Omega Operating LLC/F 2 0Omega Capital Investors,
L.P.. Omega Capital Partners, L.P.. Omega Equity
Investors, L.P.X2Omega Overseas Partners, Ltd.
(FOmego%J) ML ERER, %ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ@(}mego%
BT AL B RGPS k.

4. Tiger Partners Trading L.L.C.F3Tiger Partners, L.P.Z
EH¥EE, MTiger Partners, L.P.8lJHTiger Partners GP,
LLC L& B, Tiger Partners GP, LL.CH%1E5
2B, RobertsonZZ T2 E5EH BEB100%1#
Zto Tiger Partners, L.P.. Tiger Partners GP, L.L.C..
521555 NRobertsonZZ =118 2 T2 Tiger Partners
Trading L.L.CFTHFASN B B R B A 4o

Tiger Management L.L.C..7 89.48%/% 2% F

Tiger Management Corporationt# 74, M Tiger
Management Corporationfl] HEZE5t 2 E A,
RobertsonZZ T2 E st FHEE100%E 450 Tiger
Management Corporation. %15 5t MzRobertson2z 1=
A 2T Tiger Management LL.C B FTIF AN 5
R0 RS ko

R EXPIEESN, RIS—NEFE=ZB=1+—H, BE
B M A ERAB336IG A N B AT B2 B L MATECER,
ANEMERN B EMA T HERR T ZR M RIERHT
RN IR TH B
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EFEHRS

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES AND OTHER POST
EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group's retirement benefit schemes and
other post employment benefit schemes is set out in note 41 to

the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits

of the Compony against all actions, costs, chorges, |osses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
illful negligence, illful default, fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance during the year and as at the date of this
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 and has
odopfed most of the recommended best practices stated therein.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 24 to 46
of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date
of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

IRRAEF 518 R Hth BB R AR F 5 &I

AEERIRBAGETE A tEE B R EN 8 2 BN
iR & M B RE M54

EEGH
FAME N FEERALE2MAERERTDE
B BB RITHER.

ST RERY

RRBZNEHBRAIRE, ARDEFHEEHAER
TTHRBREEERAS I BREZ 2 — Ve RA.
H. IR BENMAS, BRIUEARSEENENTE
BWE, HIWMETEANEANERR. WEKXE.
HEFE BB R 2 EREH,

FARRARE B, ARNECRREBEZEFNER
BEEERR.

BiREEE
ARBRNEMAS B REAN N ERABILEEE
G, MEARRBBERFRULOINIRERRIZEHE
o

©EER

BE_ES-NF=ZA=+—HLFE, ARFBETL
MARRY B+ AP E B E B T RIZPAE STRIMESS, 75
ERMED RO EZRET R,

PREARESEFIINAFREUEES465,

B NAFFRE
RBARBASZLAREMRARTREESEMA, AR
BARBE_E-NF=ZRB=1T—HLFERBELRS
H—E#F EHRRA Az RELARITRE.

BE. HENBRIANE LHES

N, AREHHEEANBEAEMEREE. HESEME
KRB EHES.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of approximately HK$612,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 June 2019, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with a third party to dispose of the Group's total of
twenty-four motor vehicles for an aggregate consideration of
HK$24,000,000 and the consideration was received on the

same date. For details, please refer to an announcement of the

Company dated 26 June 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information on the work of the Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of the annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 August 2019

BR
REBNAFEELH612,00078 702 B E N EMBR.

BEHRER

RTEB-NFAATTAEH, AEER-RE =511
BEWE, RENE24008 B THES 485,
W EREHERAE BREFEFERREALR AT
E-NFERNB TR BR R

BREEY

BE S NFZRA=T—HLFERKEZFSYBR
XHBEREZECER. BWEREE S TIFRHERK
NZERFNEFRREEELBR S,

A G
BE_F-NF-A=+—HLFEZFREMBREE
ERE. MERSDGEITER, BE-FEBRS S5
TRREBREBEFAE LRE, ARNERBNRKREEF
ARG L RE-BRZRRERRY-WERS ESOTH
Z/NSI P Gl

REBEEEY

Peter Lee Coker Jr.
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of South
Shore Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 95 to
280, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give

a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position

of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibihﬁes in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of HK$5,841,248,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
the Group had net liabilities of HK$576,612,000 and had

net current liabilities of HK$4,343,927,000 as at 31 March
2019. In addition, the Group had not complied with certain
covenants in respect of bank borrowings in the amount of
HK$2,941,924,000, as stipulated in the relevant bank loan
agreement. The Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and maintain sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to pay its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the foreseeable future is dependent on whether the financing
plans and measures as set forth in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements can be successfully executed.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that based

on the assumptions that these financing plans and measures
can be successfully executed, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to pay its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
However, the likelihood of the successful imp|emenfoﬁon of
these financing plans and measures could not be determined as
at the date of our report. These events or conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters *hat, in our professionod
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

EEFBEREERCERTEERR

EIEROUBRENG, 29RA S£EEREEC
E-NF =B =+ —HILFEEEFEIEH5,841,248,000
BakEIEZE BXEENFEENRABEESFEDF
#4576,612,00078 71 M24,343,997,000/85 70, ok, SHE
BB E T ERITEN IR B A22,941,924,0007F
TTRITERNETRE, SEELUFEREEERE
E I ENE B S U ENEHE EESEB NN
BRI A B EENENERNRE B IR E M5
IFTE I 75T 8 R B HERE TS A Th B Hlo

BERFIBERR, RREMBMINANTHYHet8 RIEHE
%, EXERERHEEESUENHEEESR
RIRE] SR RBI M BEE. AT, BRI ERRX
ER T8 MIEREC Pl EME, IMARS BRI REEIFL
HEE. ZEFESEMEMURGEMBREMEIPTEE
WEIEXR, FEEATHEERAR Y S5EEEE
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86

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZEENR S

Key audit matters

FREZEE

Impairment assessment of cash generating units ("CGU")
of hotel operation

BEEEELREEM (EERSEM) < BENE

We identified the impairment assessment of CGU of hotel operation
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the management
judgements involved in the determination of the recoverable
amounts of the hotel property based on the anticipated cash flow
generated by these assets.

BEEEE LR B R ENE A TROESEE
EERe B AESGHENSBEESSER, DERE
EERHRCMBERRBEEMREFER, AAREXFE
EEECRSIIRENEEBEYREZ A WC & ERATTE
EIEEYE

The hotel property of the Group is located in Macau as an
ultra-luxurious ho’re|, as further described in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, and as such is intended to

be unique in the Macau hotel industry. The carrying amount of

the CGU of hotel operations, including hotel property, prepaid

land lease payments and property, plant and equipment

of HK$4,330,000,000, is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment as at 31
March 2019.

BSEEBEEYEMNRR, EuAs—ERETEA
I, E—THBHENFEEMBIREKRMNGT4, BUIRITIS AR
BIEERBNREIES RZB-—NF=A=1+—H,
BEEE (QFBESEYF) . AN HEERIERYIE. #
1 N2 5% (i R £ 3R < BB (U BYRR 1B {814,330,000,00078 T2 Al A
MREHTE R HERFHAEY Ko
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
AIZBENTEEKPNRIES E

Our procedures in relation to assessing appropriateness of the
impairment assessment of the CGU of hotel operation included:
AR TH MO ES S EE LR BAL 2 BE G
EORGBEZIEFIE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of

the vcu|uer;

SHEEEMVERE. e RFE8IL

Obtaining an understanding of how the management
develops their assumptions to be applied in the valuation
mode|, inc|uc|ing the use of relevant market informoﬁon,
where ovqi|ob|e;
BREREARESARGERINRE, 2
ERBEMTIHEN WER) ;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the anticipated cash
flow generated by the hotel property by comparing the
key assumptions, including average hotel room rate per
square feet, occupancy rate, growth rate of hotel business,
and discount rate for hotel property, adopted in the
valuation model to relevant market data where available,
on a sample basis, and assessing the appropriateness of
adjustments made by management to relevant market
data to develop assumptions that are applicable to the
circumstances of the hotel property;

BB BN EERAPTRAC TB2RE (ZEET
ARFEGBEEEFB. BEEBZAEER BREXR
BEEYRZAEIRE) BARRRT S EE, (ER) H
Sel L BEYEEEC R IRERAELGE, Wt
HEERERMERNESYRBE RN BRR AR
TEEBELCHBEERGIE

Checking the arithmetical accuracy of the value in use

co|cu|o’rions; and

REFBEERBECEMERNE &

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZEENR S

Key audit matters

FREZEE

Impairment assessment of cash generating units ("CGU")
of hotel operation

BEEEELREEM (EERSEM) < BENE

As set out in notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management reviews the carrying amounts of the hotel
property, prepaid land lease payments and property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that the
assets have suffered impairment loss at the end of the reporting
period. If any such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

BRI MENET R4, NIBEHKR, EEEERE
EYIZE. B THEETRRYE. M kRE 2 REE,
UEEERTELTAPRETZFEERTAEBE, W
BEFEEM LRBR, JHEsTEEZAIRESERLUET R
BEEE (E) 2EE.

The management of the Group determined the recoverable amount
of the hotel property, prepc:id land lease payments and property,
plant and equipment by estimating the higher of anticipated cash
flow generated by these assets, which was valued by Greater China
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional valuer, or fair value
less cost of disposal. The anticipated cash flow are based on a
number of key assumptions, including average hotel room rate per
square feet, occupancy rate, growth rate and discount rate for the
hotel property. Due to the unique business model, these estimations
are highly dependent on the hotel being able to successfully meet
the Group's operational forecasts upon further marketing and
promotion work to be carried out and the successful launching of
the other hotel facilities in the future. The valuation of the hotel
operations is highly sensitive to these assumptions, as illustrated in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
SEEEEREZBMGTHBIERGEEMEETERRER
BETHECKSTEEELE R RS RUBEEBEY)
F. AN LHEERIBERYE. #iRk&ime P olE5E,
FRTFEBRLEERE URSERE) , BstReRIRE
ZEIZRBF/LE, EFIESFIRITEEFE. A
ER CAENEZIBRERLAERR, ANIERIESER
I, ZFEFHEERRANEERERITE EXENE
BRI LUETTE—T R REBITFU L BREDRI
HHEMBER . BEEENHEREZZZSRER
g, FRFOMBmEME.

As the recoverable amount of the hotel operations as at 31 March
2019 is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss of
HK$4,697 million on the CGU is recognised for the year.
R_E—NF=A=+—H, BEFEEZKELEERR
HEfEE, MERNESELRS B RERB46.97EE

TCo

88

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to evaluate
the magnitude of their impacts on the value of hotel
property.

HEZWABBETEREDN, UEHEEEAS
MEBEXEZZE,.
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Key audit matters
FREZEE
Impairment assessment of trade debtors and contract assets

H 2 BRI R G & E R {EF L

We identified impairment assessment of trade debtors and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a who|e, and
the significant degree of estimations by the management of the
Group in estimation of expected credit loss ("ECL") of trade debtors
and contract assets which may affect their carrying values. Trade
debtors and contract assets of the Group carried at HK$541 million
and HK$2,129 million as at 31 March 2019, which represents 6.47%
and 25.47% of the Group's total assets. The provision of ECL for
trade debtors and contract assets as at 31 March 2019 are HK$14
million and HK$1 million respectively.

FIZHENTR E 7 BRI &N & E 2 BiEsHER
~EREXEE, DHREBEBRRRSMBREAEZ
LLERESER, B SEEESEEN G EEHR
HENEZ VBRI R ENEEZ RIREERHE (a5
EEBR) KPS RNEXEEMLST. RTFE—NF=R
=+—H, E&£BEZEERERNLRGHNEEDHIZ
AR #3541,000,00075 77 122,129,000,0007E 7T, HER &
EEREE 2647%/%2547% M _EBE—NF=B=+—
H, ESBURINGNEECRREEBERREDH A
14,000,000/ 7T £21,000,00078 7o

Agreed payment terms are sometimes extended particularly when
unforeseen delays occur in construction. The Group may be exposed
to risk of default in respect of trade deb’rors and contract assets.
BREERGIERERE, THEEIRBREAIERZ
HEER, EHRETREAZBEZ IR R ENEERIENZ
JEL KR

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group determined the ECL based on the
Group's historical default rates, past-down status and the financial
capability of individual debtor.

BIARE M MEMT4PTIRE, SXEEEEREREE 8
EREEENE. REIBERNMEREB A2V BENETE
TREEEBIE.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
debtors and contract assets included:

FBENMTH B Z BIRAR NN EEZ BB G2
BFE:

Obtaining an understanding of how the management
assess the ECL of trade debtors and contract assets;

BRER RN LB SRKER RGN EE 2R
HEEBE

Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the ECL model, including trade debtors aging
analysis as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis
with the relevant construction contracts, invoices and other
supporting documents;

FB RO ENIEEREMERGKN. R
EMEZRx s, mullEeEBmaUREEHEEsE
BERACENTEN, JBEZRIEIN %
—\FOE—BERZFS—NF=ZA=+—HZEK
i s

Making enquiry with management on their basis and
judgemenf in determining credit loss allowance on trade
debtors and contract assets as at 1 April 2018 and 31
March 2019, including understanding the trade debtors’
credit quct|ify and their past payment hisfory and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in each category in the
ECL model (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and
nEEBERRSEHECEZRURIARENEE

R B N\FOA-—BAR"F-NF=ZR=1+—H
ZEEBERRERKYE, JETREZEW
%%ZETT%&L@H%%%&%%ET%?E
NEEFEENGESERCER (BE2E28
NERETEEERD ; &

Testing subsequent settlements of trade debtors, on a
sample basis, by inspecting supporting documents in
relation to cash receipt from trade debtors subsequent to

the end of the current reporting period.
BB E F B TR S ARRE 5 BBRRUR £ R
SFEAE, HRAE B S BB R EREE B T
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Key audit matters

HREREE

Recognition of revenue and profit from construction contracts How our audit addressed the key audit matter
REREGHBA R EF ARBETEEZFNRIES A

We identified recognition of revenue and profit from construction Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue and profit

contracts as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant from construction contracts included:

to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and management's AREENTHHERERG WA AT 2 BF e

judgment is involved in measuring the Group's inputs to the

satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total +  Assessing the forecast revenue and forecast costs by making
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation enquiry with the quantity surveyors who are responsible for
under the construction contracts. the preparation of the budgets of construction contracts
$$§§YEWTTFHEE WELHA%H&A&&%U%%‘J?%%ﬁﬁ%%& on their basis of estimation of the budge’rs, inc|uding but
RIE, NVHRESEHIFSBERERBE AR, BBIEBENE not limited to the variations and claims that included
5 E£E ifﬁ%%%’]ff{ e A BB REEESKNT in the budge’r, and inspecting the under|ying contracts
ERMEER AR E A EREER R 2T E I E, and documents with the employer of contract works and
subconfrocfors or suppliers;
The accounting policy for construction contracts is disclosed in note FlEaEeEREBEEEGHRENERGNTERE T
3 to the consolidated financial statements. Revenue and profif from /E\UEEfﬁiuﬁ EETERWARTERMA, SIEETER
construction contracts are recognised based on the management’s RINATBECBENRE, IREEWIERER
estimate of revenue and the completion status of construction AT ER 2 BRSNS
works which requires significant judgement. Variations in contract
work and claims are included to the extent that the amount can be +  Evaluating the reasonableness of their estimated profit
measured reliably and its receipt is considered highly probable. margins by taking into account the profit margins of similar
BERAENCGTBERNIGE M BIRERMNEITRE. 2RE projects on a sample basis, to identify and investigate if
WA R 2R RIEEIEB Y WA RERE TS TACTRIE there is any significant difference;
B, BERFETHERYIE. GNIREAREZZE) K& B RRE BN ERMRF GG TIEERZ
EEREr] EMET B RN AR EEEAZBR T BUHEHTHEEESEEREARER ;
PN
Assessing the reasonableness of the stage of completion
As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the by re-computing the percentage of completion on
Group recognised revenue from construction contracts at HK$9,377 input method with reference to the total cost incurred in
million for the year ended 31 March 2019. proportion to the total forecast costs; and
BEREHHREMESRE, SRERBE_F—IF BB B EFTELERRAEBRANAZLHE
= A=+ —HIEFEEFRREKIUAY,377,000,000E 7T, HtB A AT ITEDL, ST IEERESS
2, X

Checking the accuracy of the total costs incurred for

the year ended 31 March 2019 to the latest payment
certificates/invoices issued by the subcontractors and
suppliers before cmc| cn(fer year end, on a sample basis.
MEREBE T -NEF-_A=+—HLFEEE
i@&Kﬁ%@ﬁ&ﬁWﬁMﬁ%Em%%ﬁzﬁ
B B R R,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZEENR S

OTHER INFORMATION
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
cmd, in doing SO, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears

to be moferio”y misstated. |F, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Compcmies Ordinonce, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIAZEENR S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve co||usion, Forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content

of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disc|osures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

RBEMEZFEMBREARENET (@)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
5 August 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
raERR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

2019 2018
NOTES —E-hEF “E-)N\F
F5E HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt BT
Revenue WA 5 9,381,863 6,799,529
Cost of construction business EER T RRER A (8,987,047) (6,500,794)
il T o |
4 N KR H A A '
services
Other income B 6 8,627 4,518
Administrative and other expenses TN BRI (587,125) (478,158)
Finance costs BE A 7 (445,105) (193,803)
. N = % 3 :E\
Impairment loss on hotel property/ /EE#ZJ%/%%EP@EZ/WE 13 (3,710,630) (1203,000)
hotel under development B8
Impairment loss on prepaid land 4 4y o mEEE 6 (752,137) i
lease payments
|mpoirmenT loss on property, |o|cm’r ¢@¥\ 4%%@&&%91%2/@{@@5?% 14 (234’233) B
and equipment
Impairment allowance on financial SREBEENGNEEC (6,469)
assets and contract assets /)Ejﬂéﬁéﬁﬁ ' i
Share of results of associates B E N EE (2,560) (448)
Share of results of joint ventures BhoErEERE 2,293 2,116
Loss before tax FRIRBIESIE (5,837,044) (1,570,040)
Income tax expense PSR~z 9 (4,204) (334)
Loss for the year FEEIE 10 (5,841,248) (1,570,374)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:  FE{EFE (B518) /afl
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE T Z=PN (5,847,646) (1,573,795)
Non-controlling interests IEIRRG RS 6,398 3,491
(5,841,248) (1,570,374)
Loss per share SR EE 12
Basic (HK cents) EHA GEAL) (577.3) (630.5)
Diluted (HK cents) #5E (B (577.3) (630.5)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e RHEMEEBRR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-NF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T8
Loss for the year FEEB (5,841,248) (1,570,374)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: FEHME2EH Bix) W&
[tems that may be reclassified subsequem‘/y HEOJBEEH 78 F 18252
to profit or loss: EHH :
Exchange differences arising from MBEBNEBEEC
- 4,608 8,648
translation of foreign operations FE =28 ( )
. _PEEM AR /NS
Share of frons|of|.oh reserve of an %EM%\%HW = A a\)} . (5,490) 8,367
associate and joint ventures SEhECEDFHE
(10,098) 17,015
Total comprehensive expense for the year FELMBZIEZE (5,851,346) (1,553,359)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FEEG2m FE)
for the year attributable to: ey St
Owners of the Company EN/NCIE 2D (5,852,872) (1,564,987)
Non-controlling interests IEIR G R 1,526 11,628
(5,851,346) (1,553,359)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2019
RIE—h&E=B=+—H

fRe MR AR

2019 2018
NOTES —FNEF TENF
F5E HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Hotel property/hotel under . . - .
BIEYZ ERTBIS 13 3,438,569 6,961,944
development
Property, plant and equipment MIZE. TR 14 370,841 328,409
. . . ) 4 N a3
Deposits paid for ocqwsmo.n of ”y%#@%\ T N 85 14 29 8492 991698
property, plant and equipment [N
Deposits for investments W& & 15 - 110,000
Prepaid land lease payments FEN T HIFHE IR 16 603,679 1,403,121
Goodwill Sk 17 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HihEF &E 18 8,062 8,092
Interests in joint ventures EE PR 20 94,144 97,510
4,606,783 9,192,420

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2019
N_E-NAF=-B=+—H

fRe MR AR

2019 2018
NOTES —hE =— \F
F5E HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepaid land lease payments B T EIE 16 47,305 104,591
Amounts due from customers for F‘?Hﬁz@)ﬂ /EJ\%@I;E%KIE o _ 1,056,904
contract works
Inventories 75 22 40,629 46,998
= = =1g
Trade or?d other debtors, fE\% K EL e FIE, 03 1,037,049 2,115,160
deposits and prepayments ST NTENFTIA
Conftract assets ENEE 24 2,129,237 -
Amounts due from associates FEUERE /N B FIB 25 18,462 12,628
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW S & ZEFNTE 25 28,637 121,705
.. . /\)\J\ /\M
Amounts due from j.0|{nf operofpns/ JEWE % S o5 55,345 55,077
other partners of joint operations EWE%%@%—TIE\
A ts due f bsidiari
mounts cue Tlom subsidianes FEN— 2B e B A B 2UE 26 94 17,495
of a shareholder
Other loans receivable Hirew e 27 56,162 32,159
Taxation recoverable EEE 1,421 1,592
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 28 16,044 17,020
Short term bank deposits ISHRSRIT AN 28 94,638 271,887
Bank balances and cash TS ER IR 28 227,134 899,554
3,752,357 4,752,770

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2019
RIE—h&E=B=+—H

fRe MR AR

2019 2018
NOTES —T-hEF TE-)N\F
M5E HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Amounts due to customers B B A TI2EE o ) 1,085,395
for contract works
Trade and other creditors B 5 N HMENFUEN
and accrued expenses JEETRESZ 2 3,156,846 2,046,098
Contract liabilities ey =i 24 323,822 -
Deposits/earnest money received qung/gﬁf%% 30 249,000 179,000
Amount due to a joint venture fEN—BEEbEIE 25 - 592
Amounts due to joint ot O s 2y
operations/other partners mgf@;@ig% SERD 25 58,436 58,283
of joint operations
Amount due to a subsidigry JEN—ARE Z—E]
of a shareholder N ENCIE O] 26 2,244 470
Amount due to a related company FEN—BIRLENBIFUE 3] 2,340 -
Loan from a subsidiary —HREC—E
+ 2 75, 75,
of a shareholder IS ENEIE T 3 5000 5000
Loan from a related company —[EIRENEER 3] 107,350 -
Taxation payable FERTFRIE 2,122 2,354
Bank and ofher borrowings —ER BRI T R 2 33 4,119,124 4,116,054
- due within one year
8,096,284 7,766,876
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaERE (4,343,927) (3,014,106)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS WAERATER 262,856 6,178,314

CURRENT LIABILITIES

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED

99



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2019

RZEB-—NFE=B=+—H

fRe MR AR

2019 2018
NOTES —FNhE “EN\F
b= HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREBEE
Bank and other borrowings *E%@J%Zfﬁﬁ&ﬁmfﬁ% 33 17,500 97,500
- due after one year
Convertible bonds Bl ES 34 812,741 684,611
Obligation in excess of T .
. . 4 BHEtE N EER BT 19 9,227 6,836
interests in associates
839,468 718,947
(576,612) 5,459,367
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR K HE
Share capital [iEZN 36 202,591 209,591
Reserves &1 (1,006,047) 4,942,013
Equity attributable to R e—— -
:/NETE 2SNy (803,456) 5,144,604
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEFERR AR
Share of net assets of subsidiaries (LB NG v EERE 226,844 314,763
TOTAL EQUITY TarERs (576,612) 5,459,367

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 280

and the statement of financial position of the Company on

pages 266 to 267 were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 5 August 2019 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Chairman (Executive Director)

FE (RTEE)
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Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
SR

FITE (BTEE)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
roEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_ES-NFZA=1+—HILEFE

Nnn-foMmHMg inferesfs

Converble ~ Shoresheld Share Share Shoreopfion Shareof
Shore Shore  Cortrbuted Specil bonds forhore opton aod  Tndation Other ~ Accumuloted reneofo retaselsof
mp\'ﬂ‘ premium SUYQ‘JS resenve reserve  award Xchemi reserve resenve reserve resenve ‘US%S Sub'mm‘ S\mﬂd\ﬂr‘{ Xubﬁ\d\aﬂeﬁ SJb-'O?a‘ Tﬂm‘

=t

A i

HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSO0O  HKSOOD  HKSO0O  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKS00O  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSO0O

—+
il

M
i

i
M

i

(Notei)
At Aprl 2017 18474 208041 - (53767 179497 (46759) 93,544 5980 16347 (1539) (5035) 5680446 3103 3031% MO0 6000684
Exchange dffeences aring rom
44 - - 4 - 8207 8207 8646
rondation of fcve\gn operafions
Shere ofrondation reseve of n asocicte N _
8367 - - 8361 - - - 8361
ondjint ventures
(Lo pof forheyeor 15579 579 . 340 w5
Totol comprehensie income expense) . )
) 4406 S (o8 . 1608 e s5)
Tor Me ear
Captol reducton (1833 - 18331
[ssue of ngNs isue shores 184174 828780 - - - - - - - - - 1,012,954 - - - 1,012,954
Tronsachioncosts offbutoble o
109 . . . . . . . . S o) . : S o)
Issue: OF ﬂgmi Issue: ihﬂ’?i
Recogrifion of eqity-etfed shore based
payment expenses ofthe shre opfon (m) - - - - (I - - - ()
cherne of he Company (Note 7o)
Recogrifion of equty-setfed share-bosed
payment expenses of the share award scheme 1,089 - - - 1,089 - - - 1,089
ofthe Company (Note 38(a))
Sharesvesed underthe share award scheme .
5690 S ow . . 0 nm . . . o7
(Note 38(a])
Transfer upon apsed of share opfions (65,0%9) - - - 102002 37103 (3m03) - (3m03)
At 31 Morch 2016 20051 30685 183331 (3761 179497 (13063) 27 5980 B (0530 (6347 )60 - 34763 T 54936
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
roEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_ES-NFZA=1+—HILEFE

Aitrbutable to onnersofthe Company Non-ontolingirterets

Comvertble ~ Shoresheld Share Share Shore opfion Shareof
Shore Soe  Contrbuted Special bonds forhore opfion ovrd  Trondofion Other ~ Accumuloted reseneofo net osselsof
coptl premium s resene rene  anardschere resene resene resene resene bses  Sbiotol  wbidoy  whidoies  Subdotdl Totl

L]
n

= @
BE : 3

HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000

HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKS00O  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSO0O

(Netei) (Noteii)

(lh

Adisens Note?) 3 S s L s a4
At Aorl 2018 restted) 202591 3068152 1803317 (153,767) 1794970 (3063 217 5980 pall 1559 (79460) 5048631 - 005318 205318 573949
Exchonge difeence rsingfom tanslfion of . . .
064 - - 064 - (487 (4670) (4608)
foreign operatons
Share o andetion reene of on ssocioe ond . p
(5490) - - (5490) - - - (5490)
it erues
(Los) profitfortheyear (5847646)  [s847646) - 639 639 (5,841048)
Totol comprehensie(expense) ncome e - .
) 652) o s ) . 156 EY
Tor ﬁ‘e year
Recognifon of equiy- setfled shore-based
payment expense o he hare option scheme 185 - - - - 8 - - - 16
ofthe Company (Note 37))
Tronsfr upon apse of shore averds (3509) - - 3505
Tronsfer upon apse of share options (62m) - - - 627
A3 Morch 2019 R 202591 3068152 1803317 (153761) 1194970 (13063 20,840 2415 19,945 (1530 (756736¢) (803.45) - 006844 006,84 (576612
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
roEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

Notes:

(i) The special reserve of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) includes the

following:

(a) a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing
the difference between the cost of acquisition of two
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of their share
capital at the date on which they were acquired by Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group Limited ("Paul
Y. Management Contracting”), a subsidiary of the
Company, before the reverse acquisition as mentioned
in note (b) below; and

—
RS

a debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing

the reserve arising from the reverse acquisition of

Paul Y. Management Contracting and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as "Paul Y. Management
Contracting Group”), net of refund from ex-shareholder
of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the shortfall
in net asset value of Paul Y. Management Contracting
Group upon completion of the acquisition by the
Company from PY| Corporation Limited, the former
ultimate holding company, of the entire equity interest
in, and shareholders’ loan to Paul Y. Management

Contracting Group in January 2005.

(i) As at 31 March 2019, the balances of HK$13,063,000
represents cash held through an independent trustee for
purchase of the Company's shares for eligible persons under
the share award scheme and there was no shares of the
Company held by the independent trustee at 31 March
2019.

(iii) The other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the redemption amount paid and the carrying
amount of the share of net assets attributable to the
non-controlling interest redeemed by Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

e RER

Depreciation of hotel property
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Release of prepaid land lease payments

(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of other intangible assets
Impairment allowance on financial assets and
contract assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of other debtors

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of amount due from an associate

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of hotel property/ hotel under development

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of prepaid land lease payments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, p|onf and equipment

|nterest income

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Share-based payment expenses

EER
FRIRATES 1
FLTYIERETRHE
BIEY)EZHTE

WD~ IR 2 3T ES
BREAN A ENIE
HEDE - AR EZ
(W am) B548
HEHEMBIEEZEE
TRMEERGNEELZ
BIER
T EL 8 W R TR FE BT
MBS IE
T — S A BIRIE
HESB Z BB RS 12
PRSI R TIEE
HEEB Z R B RS 18

TR T AR SRR 2

BEEE

RYIE I 2 Yyt

BIERE

MUPgAn AR 2 (B <

2019
=4
HK$'000
FH

(5,837,044)

307,022
90,817

104,591
(5,077)
30

6,469

3,710,630

752,137

234,233
(8,627)

445,105
2,560
(2,293)

785

2018

.

HK$'000
TATT

(1,570,040)

34,250

52,583

281

2,867

4,732

1,203,000

(4,518)
193,803
448
(2,116)

(1,129)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

e RER

2019 2018
—NE L
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
Operating cash flows before movements in XRETEEESEHEI 2
. - 198,662 85,834
working capital REXEBFENE ( ) ( )
Changes in amounts due from/to customers W%Hﬁz/ﬁ%ﬁ BHIIERIB
s - 351,319
for contract works o]
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERLD (2N 6,369 (5,005)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other debtors, BN EMEREIE N 5T2 M
+ 67,589 386,252
deposits and prepayments B FIERL (8 0) ( )
Increase in contract assets BHIEERI (802,852) -
Increase in amounts due from associates JE Uk Bt = A B FR IS A0 (5,963) (1,497)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from S @
S ERIE (B ) A (23,510) 44,157
joint ventures
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from joint JEWEaEET / S EEHEHM (268) 6564
operations/other partners of joint operations FreEa (g ) Rb '
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries of a FEW—R KRB B ABRIE
o 17,401 7,354
shareholder B
. . [e=z] = NI 1’%%
Increase (decrease) in trade and other creditors g5 &/gﬁﬂﬁ_{j I8 K E st 1110,907 (6,088)
and accrued expenses BEsZI 0 CRisl)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHhaERb (373,922) -
Decrease in amount due to a joint venture A —BaE bETRERD (52) (15)
Increase in amounts due to joint operations/ %Tﬁé%%%%/é%%%ﬂ1ﬁ 153 1599
other partners of joint operations L RIEIE I '
Increase in amount due fo a subsidiary EN—2KRE —EHRB AT 57 58
of a shareholder FIEE
Cash used in operations AN EER o Be (202,753) (73,710)
Hong Kong profits tax paid AR ENER (3,841) (2,760)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREFEFER 1,708 -
Overseas tax paid BAEINGIE (2,199) (13,125)
Oversea tax refunded BIRERINGIE 64 -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES AR EEHK 2 RE 35 (207,021) (89,595)

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
e ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2019 2018
A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXR
Additions to hotel property/hotel under development & B[E Y2,/ 2 R AL (368,909) (192,837)

oy . . . epe / S E = B
Additions to depf)s#s paid for acquisition of property, EREYE BRAERE (85,623) (88,597)
plant and equipment Bl ®
Additions to property, plant and equipment REYIE MRS (81,278) (1,985)
Advance of other loans receivable EEMEWRERE (30,000) (5,000)
Earnest money received B ES 70,000 -
. &= 5 =1
Proceéds from disposal of property, plant and H & Z];% A e 5% 5,561 9389
equipment Frig

Interest received B U E 3,785 1,230
Repayment from joint ventures HETEER 2,328 -
Advances to joint ventures AEETER; - (7,435)
Additions to other intangible assets EHMEBELEEE - (470)
Placement of pledged bank deposits GABEFRIRITER - (6)
Deposits received BWEI& - 179,000
Repayment of other loans receivable BIREMEWE - 12,000
Dividends received from a joint venture PEW—BEErERE - 867
Release of pledged bank deposits BEDIKHERITENR - 725
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ AR EEHZREFEE (484,136) (ho,n9)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

ma e RENR

2019 2018
A E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EBBIRT R EMED (2,223,640) (1,658,640)
Interest paid BT E (239,218) (188,773)
Loan management fee paid BENEREERE (18,152) (15,210)
NE]
Repayment of loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder %{Z% A B AT (5,000) -
BEE™
Repayment of loan from a related company —RBREASEEEN (3,800) -
New bank and other borrowings raised FEIRIT R EMER 2,216,710 1,853,840
Loan from a related company —ERAELSEM 11,150 -
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder —EZRE—ENBABER 5,000 43,000
Trr.?msocfion‘ cos’rs- attributable to 67T BB R FEAE 25 52 Bl A ) (41,102)
issue of rights issue shares
Proceeds from issue of rights issue share BT R PTIERIE - 1,012,954
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM (AR REMEEHZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REHE (156,950) 1006,069
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE ReRERESFMHEEE (D
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DI IDE R (848.107) 806,355
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE e o 2 4 2 0
RATE CHANGES SMNEEEREEF Z RE (1,562) 4,657
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R
ReRHEBSSET
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR FNREKREFEFEER 1,171,441 360,429
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
RIVE HIBSE(FHIE
END OF THE YEAR FRAEREREEEER 391,772 1,171,441
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
I8 < ek EXEpE]
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R RRRE S ERE DN
Short term bank deposits SSHERIRITIE AR 94,638 971,887
Bank balances and cash IRTTE R RIES 227,134 899,554
321,772 1,171,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

South Shore Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is an
exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate

Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associate, joint ventures
and joint operations are set out in note 49.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the

functional currency of the Company.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$5,841,248,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and as of that date, the
Group has deficit in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$803,456,000 and the Group had net
liabilities of HK$576,612,000 and net current liabilities of
HK$4,343,927,000.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group's future liquidity and cash flows,
taking into account the following relevant matters:

(i) Likelihood of obtaining waiver for the non-compliance

of certain loan covenants in respect of bank
borrowings

The Group had not complied with certain covenants
in respect of bank borrowings in the amount of
HK$2,941,924,000, as stipulated in the bank loan
agreement which required The 13 Hotel (the "Hotel")
to open no later than 31 March 2017 (subsequently

extended to 31 July 2017) and to obtain and maintain all

authorisations for the operation of hotel business.

The Group applied for a further extension of the hotel
opening date to 31 August 2018. The Group obtained
all the licenses for the operation of hotel business in
August 2018 and the Hotel opened on 31 August 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(i) Likelihood of obtaining waiver for the non-compliance

of certain loan covenants in respect of bank
borrowings (Continued)

In addition, the Group also had not complied with
certain financial covenants as stipulated in the

bank loan agreement which required the Group to
meet certain amount of consolidated tangible net
worth and certain ratio of its consolidated net bank
borrowings to consolidated tangible net worth, after the
recognition of the impairment loss on the hotel assets

at HK$4,697,000,000 in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 March 2019. The Group has applied
for a waiver from strict compliance to meet with certain
of these financial covenants.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, such applications for extension

and waiver for the non-compliance of the covenants as
stated in the bank loan agreement are in process by the
bank. As a result, as at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, such bank borrowings
are repayable on demand.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not been rejeded
on the application for extension and waiver for

the non-compliance of the covenants nor received
any written notice from the bank demanding for
immediate repayment of the entire borrowing. The
bank has frequent communications with the Group
and also shows the positive support on the Group.
Therefore, the directors of the Company do not expect
to receive any request from the bank for demand

for immediate repayment for the entire borrowing

of HK$2,941,924,000, except for the repayment of
HK$456,289,000 as falls due on 15 August 2019,
for at least the next twelve months from the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(i) Likelihood of the proposed disposal of a principal

subsidiary

The Group has previously announced the proposed
disposal of a 51.76% interest in Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited ("PYE") (the "Disposal”), a principal
subsidiary of the Company, for consideration of
HK$300 million and has obtained the shareholders’
approval at a special general meeting held on 8 May
2018. The Group has received deposits of HK$179
million regarding the proposed disposal of PYE up to
31 March 2019. The receipt of the remaining proceeds
from the proposed disposal of HK$121 million is subject
to certain conditions precedent for the completion of
transaction. The directors of the Company consider
that outstanding conditions precedent in relation to the
proposed disposal of the 51.76% interest in PYE by the
Company may not be fulfilled prior to the long stop
date of 31 July 2019, which was subsequently extended
to 31 March 2020. It is expected that the Company
will only proceed with completion of the Disposal (i)
after completing the transaction contemplated under
the memorandum of understanding dated 4 January
2019 for a potential investment in the Company's
subsidiary that beneficially owns The 13 Hotel; (i) after
settling in full all outstanding balances, including all
outstanding principal amount of loans together with
the interest accrued thereon due from the Company
and its subsidiaries to PYE and its subsidiaries; (iii) after
the remaining group having a positive net assets and
still maintaining the listing status of the Company at
the completion date of the Disposal. The directors of
the Company are uncertain at present if these criteria
could be met. As such, PYE would remain a subsidiary
of the Company and the Group would continue to have
access to the cash and financing available in PYE to
finance the Group's operations and to meet its financial
ob|igoﬁons for at least the next twelve months from

the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements. Management anticipated the deposits

of HK$179 miillion plus the liquidated damages of
HK$32 million will have to be paid back to purchasers
if the Group is not able to complete the Disposal in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreements.
On the other hand, it is anticipated that there is positive
operating cash flows from PYE and an unutilised
banking facilities at approximately HK$824 million of
PYE as at 31 March 2019 continue to be available for
use fhroughouf the next twelve months from the date of
0pprovo| of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

> ZS
4=
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GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iii) Likelihood of successful execution of further financing

plans

The Group continues to seek new sources of funding

in the form of debt and, or equity, including via its
placing agent, Opus Capital Limited, which has a
continuing mandate to procure placees to subscribe

for the loan notes with an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$740 million in accordance with the
placing agreement dated on 19 October 2017, and
subsequently extended the drawdown date to 30
September 2019. The Company further entered into
indicative term sheets with the Opus Financial Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries ("Opus Group”) as dated
on 27 June 2019 in relation to the conditional offer of
HK$1,000 million in the form of debt financing, which
is subject to satisfaction of the lender’s due diligence
requirements, due and valid execution of all loan
documents and provision of documents and information
that the lender may require. Such conditional offer will
be expired on 30 June 2020, subsequent to which, any
undrawn amount shall be cancelled.

On 4 January 2019, the Company also entered into

a non-binding memorandum of undersfonding (the
"MOU") with an associate of a substantial shareholder
of the Company (the "Potential Investor”) for a potential
investment in the Company’s subsidiary that beneficially
owns The 13 Hotel for a consideration not exceeding
HK$1,500 million. The Company had received earnest
money of HK$70 million up to 31 March 2019.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the
Company has continued negotiating with the Potential
Investor in relation to the transaction envisaged under
the MOU. Subject to contract, the Company envisages
that the transaction could extend a disposal of 60%
interest in a subsidiary of the Company that beneficially
owns The 13 Hotel together with its respective bank
borrowings of approximately HK$2,942 million and
the interest accrued thereon for a consideration of up
to HK$1,200 million. The Company has appointed a
financial advisor (the "Financial Advisor”) for handling
this transaction. Taking into account the advice of

the Financial Advisor, the directors of the Company
consider that the proposed disposal is viable, subject to
satisfaction of material conditions precedent.

The directors of the Company consider that, taking

into account the above-mentioned financing plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
for at least the next twelve months from the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) for the first time in the

current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment

Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4

“Insurance Contracts”

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the other new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had

no material impact on the Group's financial performance

and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
“Revenue’, HKAS 11 "Construction Contracts” and the

related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Fur’rhermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS

15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
and/or final accounts have not yet been finalised

with customers at T April 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
HKAS 11 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

Construction contracts

Development management, project management
and facilities and asset management services

Hotel operation
Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS

15 and information about the Group's performance
obligations are disclosed in note 3.

2. FERHMEIRICETTZEEMBREER ((FEMB
WEZER) (8

RAFE BB ERFET RIGETT EEMBHRE %

A (18)

(o) EBMBREERESRRETFEHHAL
AEEERAFEERERAETEVBREERS
1558, EEBMBI|MEERBSSHMATEEES
EREeTRIA . BEEERENR 2RE
#9) M AR EE o

AEECERERAEEMB|RSERESEE, M
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RERIRETS B (REMIBSAEANEL D, WHEA)
$ﬁu&1ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬂom%,@ﬁé%ﬁ
B S R EISRANEEEY, AEECEEE
HRTE—/\FHE—BHERTMR i RE
ERRESREENSNENERZER, HIt,
ETHEENRUERREEBE5TERF8
. BB G ER BN AR BT IR AV L
ERHER L,

AEERBEREE PTG NI ZEZRIRE
WA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERIEIRRIET 2 EBUBREER ((EBHH
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING H|RELER]) (18)
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily MRAREEBHNEN T ISESTEEBMEREE
effective for the current year (Continued) Bl (&)
(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (o) EEMBREENESHIKBREESHNZHAL
(Continued) (18)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HIE EFH & B IR & ZE R B T B E
HKFRS 15 Vi
The following adjustments were made to the amounts T?‘J%?}tﬁf:%—/\imﬂ —BZREHERR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial FHEF S FEPTIER AR, /ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ:%m =07
position as at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not IEEH AN OETE R,
affected by the changes have not been included.
Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously reported under HKFRS 15
at31March 2018 Reclassification ~ Remeasurement at1 April 2018*
FCEIR BEMBRE
—E-N\EF R85 TR
=B=+-8 ) _ ZE—]\FmA
ERNEEE BHOE BHHE —BRREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TAETL
(Notes (i)
and (i) (Note (iii))
(PR R (i) (B (i)
Current assets REEE
s [ A T 50
Ar‘:z:;:jfoiﬁm customers for F'&Eg%)ﬁ ST 1,056,904 B (1,056,904) B
Trade and other debtors, deposi’rs and S5 M HMERIE,
orepayments T2 REAIE 2,115,160 (1,029,409) (2,515) 1,083,236
Contract assets BRBE - 1,143,349 183,594 1,326,943
Amounts due from associates FEW =\ B FE 12,628 (129) - 19,499
Amounts due from joint ventures FEl A& EIE 121,705 (n3,811) - 7,894
Current liabilities piE=k
% A T AD
Amounts due to customers for F%iﬁ_%)i SIE 1,285,305 i (1985,325) )
contract works B
Trade and other creditors and B5 L EMECFHA
accrued expenses RS 2,046,098 (114,637) - 1,931,461
Contract liabilities EHaE - 114,637 583,107 697,744
Capital and reserves BRI
Accumulated losses REtEiE (1,633,473) - (89,876) (1,723,349)
Translation reserve P O R T 25,155 - 16 25171
Non-controlling interests JEIERYREL 314,763 - (83,747) 231,016
*  The amounts in this column are before the * ﬁtﬁﬁpﬁ%ﬂﬁ\fﬁﬁé}gﬁjﬁﬁ&i HEBI| S o%h M
adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9. AR S%E,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Notes:

(i) At the date of initial application, unbilled
revenue arising from the construction contracts of
HK$535,720,000 and HK$97,472,000 previously
included in trade and other debfors, deposifs and
prepayments and amounts due from joint ventures
respectively are conditional upon the satisfaction by
the customers on the construction works completed
by the Group and the works is pending for the
certification by the customers. A|so, retention
held by customers arising from the construction
contracts of HK$493,689,000, HK$129,000
and HK$16,339,000 previously included in trade
and other debtors, deposits and prepayments,
amounts due from associates and amounts due
from joint ventures respectively are conditional
upon the satisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over a certain period as stipulated in
the contracts. These balances, in aggregate of
HK$1,143,349,000, were reclassified to contract
assefs.

(i) At the date of initial application, advance receipts
from customers in respect of the construction
contracts of HK$114,637,000 previously included
in trade and other creditors and accrued expenses
were reclassified to contract liabilities.

2. FERMEIIRSETZEEMBREER ((EEME
WEZER) (18

MAFE R ERFET RIGETT BB BREE

81 (&)

(o) BEAMBRELLBSEEEETEEHNZHAL
€=)
HIETER & B IR &R BT E = B
W (#8)
PREE

() MYRIER B, faist ABZ M AMIE
WHRIE. B NTENIBREWSE
FIE. AERENELECKREZIWAD T
535,720,00075 77, 8297,472,00078 70 AF & B
HAEBFTHNERTIEER T maER A E
EOEMTIEBFEFPRA. L4, SrlFt

B 5 N AMEWIIE. 5] LFEFIA
JEW & N Bl FIE N JEW & & (P FUA.
RERENEECERAFECREED 7
493,689,0005 75, 129,00075 7T 216,339,000
EIUENEFPRENEBe —FREHERE R
BERKRTMEERAHIEE, ZHFEERET
1,143,349,000/ 5 Tt EEFT D B E SN E E,

(i) MARIERBER, Birist ABZ NEME
NABENEFARASCBRENCRBEER Z
FEW FUIEN14,637,0008 T EEFI D EEESHN
af&,

115

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i) The adjustments represented the remeasurement
upon adoption of HKFRS 15. In relation to
construction contracts previously accounted for
under HKAS 11, the Group changed to apply input
method in estimating the performance obligations
satisfied up to date of initial application of HKFRS
15. Under input method, costs that related to satisfy
performance obligations are expensed as incurred.
Under HKAS 11, construction costs were charged to
profit or loss by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract, which is measured by reference
to the total value of contract works performed to
date. Construction costs that have been incurred
but deferred to be recognised in profit or loss
and previously included in amounts due from/
to customers for contract works were charged to
opening accumulated losses.

The remeasurement from amounts due from
customers for contract works to contract assets
under input method represented the Group's right
to considerations in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to customers that is not yet
unconditional. The remeasurement from amounts
due to customers for contract works to contract
liabilities under input method represented the
Group's obligation to transfer services to customers
for which the Group has received consideration from
the customers.

Under HKAS 11, cost incurred during the tendering
process were included in trade and other debfors,
deposits and prepayments. Under HKFRS 15, costs
can only be capitalised if they are both expected

to be recovered and would not have been incurred
if the contract had not been won. Therefore, upon
adoption of HKFRS 15, costs previously included in
trade and other debtors, deposifs and prepayments
were charged to opening accumulated losses.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presenfed
on a net basis.

2. ERFEIRIKES T < BEEMBREER (EEMH
WEER) (8

R R T R BT BRI

81 (5

() B BB RS K EER BOZUN
T B B R R ISR SR
e (1)
e - ()

(i) FEFBNHFAEEPHRES ERBHE
St 8. RARRBEEE G ERENTEA
FRZBREHNME, AEBEWBEARAE
RAGFTEEP S BAEEMBRESERES
MEBITZBENE R RBIRAE, HER
BREEHEBINARELER I, BEES
BEEHERIEN, TIEMAK2ESNTNR
EERBBAENRER, ERNHKEREZSALE
BEETENIENBENE. DELEBIEL
EERRMEBRITHIGT AR, NER BT
BRIEe T2RA BB RsT BT R,

RIBRA AR BRSPS T RFUREHT
EESNEEEAERERNEREEBE R
Pl 7S AR 2 IR BB VE B, 1RiE
RNERENEL SN I EFIREHHEE
GNaEEAEERE RE R WEEMR
MEFERRE S F

RIBFEEGHERENG, RESEREEEN
A A BB R EMAENEIE. T4 LB
B, RBEEBYVHWMSERIBIHE, WMAE
RIBEIR I [OE%ERR, BRERH %Wﬁ
/e, MIASELEEENIBENER N6k
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PR, FAIETABZ REMBWIA T8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15 (Continued)
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019 and its
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 March 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

2. FEREIRIRETT 2 BEBMBREER ((FBMB
WEZER) (8

Bﬁﬁ&;rgﬁiﬁ%ﬂE?&Z%ﬁﬂ&@%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ
A (18
(o) EEMBHREERBISSRREZTR EHZBAL

(%8
I IEFT & BRI IR S BRI BT BN E
HiZ (18)

TERBRERAEBM RS ER B RN AEER
R_EBE-NF=ZA=+—BZREFHFRRER
HRBE_S-—NF=_A=T—HILEFEZRE
BRmERM. o T@*&EWJEEWEE&%E\E
TRIENTE, FEZEHTENETHEEL
SIETE N

HR-F-NFZA=+—HZFEEMFTRRE

position as at 31 March 2019 Ep-A=s
Amounts without
Amounts application of
as reported Reclassification ~ Remeasurement HKFRS 15
REERE AN
HIRE LB
REEHE BH0E BHEtE e ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FTET
Current assets mEBEE
fE = A,\\ (m]
Amounts due from customers for Jtiy.%)i e Tie ) ) 1,345,691 1,345,691
contract works B
Trade and other debtors, deposi’rs and 85 MEMERTIE.
1,037,249 1,542, 291 9,579,97
prepayments Ji&%ﬁﬁlﬁ /037, /542,503 19913
Contract assets EHNEE 2,129,237 (1,648,489) (480,755) -
Amounts due from associates Al n=YNEIEN ] 18,462 129 - 18,591
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW A& EIE 28,637 81,488 - 110,125
Taxation recoverable EEGE 1,421 - 472 1,893
Current liabilities REER
ERTR RAK 2
Amounts due to customers for ICPL-%)E' e TiEe } } 797,094 797,094
contract works B
Trade and other creditors and %%&H\@Wgﬁﬁ@
accrued expenses MIEETRE S 3156846 283,703 B 3,440,549
Contract liabilities ENEE 393,802 (308,065) (15,757) -
Taxation payable FERTRIE 2,122 - 176 2,298
Capital and reserves BARR R
Accumulated losses RETEE (7,567,386) - 79,689 (7,487,697)
Translation reserve fE R EEfE 19,945 - (1) 19,924
Non-controlling interests JEEROREL 296,844 - 74,248 301,092
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERFEIREST 2 EBYBREER ((EBHH
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREZER)) ()
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily MAFEERHER T RISMESTE BB REZE
effective for the current year (Continued) Bl (&)
(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (o) BEEMBHREENESHIKBEESHNZHAL
(Continued) (18)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of FIGAFE FH 25 5 B 7R 3R & 2E Bl B 1558 B B 2 85
HKFRS 15 (Continued) HIEZ (18)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss HEE_E-NE=ZB=1+—HLEEEZFGE
for the year ended 31 March 2019 WERNEE
Amounts
without
Amounts application of
as reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
BEEREHS
B 5 IR S 2R
REEEHE AR B eE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FAET
Revenue PN 9,381,863 (881,737) 8,500,126
Cost of construction business BRTRREBRNA (8,987,047) 835,344 (8,151,703)
Administrative and other expenses TR REME R (587,125) (2,064) (589,189)
Finance costs R E B AR (445,105) 28,479 (416,626)
Loss before tax FRAR el R R (5,837,044) (19,978) (5,857,022)
Income tax expense TSR =2 (4,204) 296 (3,908)
Loss for the year FEEE (5,841,248) (19,682) (5,860,930)
118

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

WEZER) (8

EUNC))

effective for the current year (Continued)
(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

2. FERHMEIRISETZEEMBREER ((EEMB

RAFE BB ERHET RIGETT BB BHIRE %
(o) EEMBHREERBISSRREZR EHZBAL

(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss

(&)
G IET B BB IR T BRI BIS I BN T E
HZE (8)

HBE_F—NFZA=+—HLFEZFEHE

and other comprehensive income for the year ended HREMEmBERNEE
31 March 2019
Amounts
without
Amounts application of
as reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REEAEE
MRS 2R
REEH AE B eE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TF#ET
Loss for the year FEEIE (5,841,248) (19,682) (5,860,930)
Exchange differences arising from BB BNEBEL E
translation of foreign operations BAERR (+,608) ©) (+,617)
Total comprehensive expense FELHEBYBE (5,851,346) (19,691) (5,871,037)
for the year
Total comprehensive (expense) income EhaFEEL@ FER)
for the year attributable to: W 2R AR R
Owners of the Company Z/NSIE 2SN (5,852,872) (10,192) (5,863,064)
Non-controlling interests FEIERG 2 1,526 (9,499) (7,973)
(5,851,346) (19,691) (5,871,037)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
(a) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

2. BRI RIEEST < BEMBREER (EEMH

WEER) (8

ﬁi\\ﬁﬁ)rﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂE?&Z%ﬁﬂ&%@%ﬂ‘é%ﬁ?}ﬁ%&%ﬁ
A1 (18
(o) EEBMBREENBISRREZTREHZBAL

(Continued) (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HE fEH & B IR & ZE R B T B E
HKFRS 15 (Continued) HZ (18)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows HEEZ j'Lﬂf B=+—HIFEZHFER
for the year ended 31 March 2019 @mt@ﬁﬁﬂ’] =
Amounts
without
Amounts application of
as reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
QR
_ pBmEEa
HRETEHE AR B EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT F#ET
Operating activities (R ST B
Loss before tax PRI B RS IE (5,837,044) (19,978) (5,857,022)
Adjustments for: LA IEEE TR
Depre‘cioﬁon of property, plant and #@i\ eI N 5 s 3T 90,817 (2,608) 88,209
equipment =
Operating cash flows before movements KT 18 & £ B HH] EU Z
in working capital REEXBREMRE (198,662) (22,586) (221,248)
Changes in amounts due from/to FEWFENE R & T
customers for contract works eI ) ) (844,534) (844,534)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other %—%&/HJ@WEEH&%UE\
. 52 MFENFIE R 67,589 (511,043) (443,454)
debtors, deposits and prepayments
(1270
Increase in contract assets EEESE (802,852) 802,852 -
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from [EW & & (BZF015E (12
joint ventures ) (23,510) 32,323 8,813
Increase in trade and other creditors and & 5 Nz EL M FE(T 7B N7
accrued expenses FESTFEsZI8 0 1116,507 169,066 1279,973
Decrease in contract liabilities aasEd (373,922) 373,922 -

The explanations of the above changes affected in

AN EEGER BN EEFTERIERsHK

the current year by the application of HKFRS 15 as 7@@55 2 RAFEERIERSEMERES D SES
compared to HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and the related SpE T R A YRS Y ARIB IR S SR ST

interpretations are similar to the explanations set out

= R4 4ok TS % A e B | SR8
in notes (|) to (iii) above for describing the Gdjusfmenfs SI):':A(IB’;FH = f?EEJlL%K‘OrV\] /;éiﬁjﬂ’;{i a‘J%]Sﬁﬁfﬁ
made to the consolidated statement of financial position :f[ ZEN\FHA-BZREMBIRRREHZ
as at 1 April 2018 upon adoption of HKFRS 15. 73 %o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for (i) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial ||obi|iﬁes;
(i) expected credit losses ("ECL") for financial assets and
contract assets and (jii) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at

1 April 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between the carrying amounts as at 31 March
2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 are
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in note 3.

2. FERFMFIRISETTZEEMBREER ((FEMB
WEZER) (18

MRARFEERE ER T RBIETEBHFHFREE

A (&)

(b) EEMBREENEHREMIE
RAFE, AEECEREEYHRESENH
I eRmTE ) REMEBMHRSERAEREN
$EJ+¢‘§§TO BBV BREERBoRM) TR EE

TRMEBENDEBENHE. (©EREEREGNE

FE’J?EHHT:. EE518 (FREIEEEEL) Kii)—i
B ESTS | AR,

AEECREBEEMBREERBoTEAENE
BIRXEREEVBRESERBR, BH =
—/\FE—H (BXEABH) HARRK ISR

WIBEHERNEBKEEX (FEEHEE
BETHREE , MIENER_-5—/\FUA
—HRIEESEHNTEERAERBRENR. RZF—/\
FZR=T—HZEREBER-F—/\FMUE—
HzREEBNERR AR BE R EMELR
B0 REERR, WEEI LB E K,

i, ETHEEERNRNERREEEE5T 2R
B3 e T B | NI BIFTIRR LB E
FHEH L&

ERERE BV BIRES ERBSRPELENEST
BRI A 39 BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement (including impairment) of financial assets
and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application i.e., 1 April 2018.

2. FEREI RIRETT 2 BEBMBREER ((EB/MB
WEZER) (8

%ﬁ%gﬁﬂiﬁz%ﬂ&@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
A (18
(b) EEMBHRSEFR ST E

(géﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁ%%

Z

TEREAEMEERRBEEEMHRS ERE

PREB G ER B30T FAHE EBEFTIRIR

WHMBEERBERBM (CE-—N\FHA—
H) MnE&kst 8 (FRE) -

Amortised cost

(previously classified
as loans and Accumulated Non-controlling
receivables) Contract assets [osses interests
)N
GHHEARR ‘ _
RIEWFIE) aihEE REtE4E ElEi i
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TEL
N ZE-\F=R
At 31 March 2018 - HKAS 39 (audited) j;%i%ﬁw 3,314101 ; (1,633,47) 314,763
=) (=]l at
308 (81
Effect arising from initial application of %ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ EEUBES
KRS 1 PP B EISRELNE (1143,349) 1,306,943 (89,876) (83,747)
&
Effect arising from initial application of mi@gﬁgﬁfjﬁﬁjgﬁ
HKFRS 9: R
Remeasurement BHEHE
H (=1 o 4 b
Impairment under ECL model (Note) %EEEEEZEEEE—F (1,306) (505) (6113) (5,698)
RZE—/\FMA—
A1 April 2018 - HKFRS 9 (restated) A-&EuBmSE 9,159,446 1,306,438 (1,729,462) 995,318
2 Eo5: (E71)
Note: MIEE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach FEEERA *%Eﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁu%%ﬁ%fbﬁtﬁ
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade EEZENFIE. aNEENEIRGEDRE.

debfors, contract assets, and trade balances due

from joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of
joint operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder. To
measure the ECL, these assets are assessed co||ecﬁve|y
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
Retention held by customers and unbilled revenue
included in contract assets have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade debtors for the same
types of contracts. Therefore, the Group has estimated
the expecfecl loss rates for trade debtors and the
contract assets on the same basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost, which moin|y comprise other debfors, other and
non-trade balances due from associates, joint ventures,
joint operations/other partners of joint operations and
subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans receivable,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits and
bank balances, are measured on 12-month ECL ("12m
ECL") basis and there had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of HK$6,113,000 and HK$5,698,000 have

been recognised against accumulated losses and
non-controlling interests respectively. The additional loss
allowance is charged against the respective assets.

Loss allowances for financial assets (including trade
and other debtors, and other loans receivable) and
contract assets as at 31 March 2018 reconcile to the loss

2. FERFEIRIRETT 2 BEBMBREER ((FBMB
WEZER) (8

MRAFE R ER T RICETT EEMBREE
A (#8)
(b) EEMBIRSEFMRERMTE ()
G IEFT B BRI B IR BRI BN ELCTE
ZHEE (18)
BisE - (8

RN AStENEMEREENBER BT E
AEEMENTIR, BIEENE. a8 hE.
A“%ﬁ BEEBAMBH K— %&%ZW
TZE@&%T Zraen. HEWER. BEE
HIRIT R ?%ﬁﬁf%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ,ﬂ&m
EREREERIE (12E8EMEERHE) £
ﬁg,ﬁmfﬂﬁééﬁﬁﬁukiﬁﬁ%ﬁmo

RZE—/\FEMUA—H, BHMEEBERED D
6,113,00078 71 125,698,00078 71, B A R T EH1E I
JEPERS e IR FEER. RBSVEE BB R AEREE E N
F&o

RIZB-NF=ZB=+—HZEZ REMEUR
BENEMENEREEMEEURGNEEZB
BERER -/ \FOA—BeBiEiisc Y

allowances as at 1 April 2018 are as follows: AROOF
Trade and Other loans
other debtors Contract assets receivable Total
255 _
HtnrEWIE BWEE  HMEKER fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET FTET FTET FTET
RZE-\E=R
. =t+—-B-%%
At 31 March 2018 - HKAS 39 (audited) STHER|EI0% 3,833 N/A - 3,833
(RER)
Amounts remeasured through opening éj:@/ﬁﬂ *ﬂfi 5B
BEHTEZ 9,698 505 1,608 11,81
accumulated losses 5
;A
R TE—/\FH
At1 April 2018 - HKFRS 9 (restated) A—B- %% 13,531 505 1,608 15,644
sk & 28] ' ' '
Sz (E5)
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E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

(c) Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

financial position arising from the application of all

new standards

As a result of the changes in accounting policies above,

the opening consolidated statement of financial position
had to be restated. The following table shows the
adjustments recognised for each individual line item.

2. FERFFIRIRET 2 EBMBREER ((EBMB
WEZER) (8

RAFEBBERZ T RETTEBMBIRGE

A (18)

() FERABHERBBIGAMBRARKAEEZ

2 4

e

MR ERESTHRNES), IR eMBRR
KABS, TREIHZERIEBSIEE R

="

iEo

At 31 March 2018 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 At 1 April 2018
(Audited) (Restated)
RIE—-N\F FEAUBERE SAUBRE RIS\
=B=+-H R 55 R Zo5% mMA—H
(IR&E%) (E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FET FTET
Non-current assets FrREEE
ltems with no adjustments BEREIER 9,192,420 - - 9,192,490
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from customers for contract  [EINE A &1 T 723 056,904 (,056.904) i ]
works 18
Trade and other debfors, deposiTs and %%&E@FEW%E\
: - 2,115,160 1,031,924 9,698 1,073,538
prepayments e MBNFIE ( ) ( )
Contract assets ENEE - 1,326,943 (505) 1,326,438
Amounts due from associates G =YNCIE =] 12,628 (129) - 12,499
Amounts due from joint ventures W EELERE 191,705 (13,811) - 7,894
Other loans receivable HitfeWwER 32,159 - (1,608) 30,551
Other items with no odjustments REHECHMER 1,414,914 - - 1,414,214
4,752,770 (875,825) (n,8m) 3,865,134
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2. FERFMFIRIRETTZEEBMBREER ((FBMB
WEZER) (8

RAFEBHERC T REFTTEBMBIRGE

. . a1 (&)
(€) Impacts on opening consoldated statemen of () EEAREFRERS MR EER AR B E
inancial position arising from the application of all ()
new standards (Continued) =
At 31 March 2018 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 At1 April 2018
(Audited) (Res’rafed)
\ZE-\F  BAUBRE SEMEBERS RZE-N\E
=B=+—H AR B155% R Bo%E mA—H
(k&%) (&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET
Current liabilities mEaR
Amounts due to customers for contract Fgﬁgﬁ' /E\WIE% 1,085,305 (1,285,395) B )
WO?’I(S I/E\
Trade and other creditors and accrued %%&ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁlﬁ
expenses TRE Y 2,046,098 (114,637) - 1,931,461
Contract liabilities ENEaR - 697,744 - 697,744
Other items with no adjustments REREEMIER 4,435,453 - - 4,435,453
7,766,876 (702,218) - 7,064,658
Net current liabilities P =N EREEE (3,014,106) (173,607) (1,81 (3,199,524)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 6,178,314 (173,607) (1,811) 5,992,896
Non-current liabilities FrREan
ltems with no adjustments REREZEE 718,947 - - 718,947
5,459,367 (173,607) (m,8m) 5,273,949
Capital and reserves BEA KRR
Accumulated losses RErEE (1,633,473) (89,876) (6,113) (1,729,469)
Translation reserve [E DR 25,155 16 - 25171
Non-controlling interests FEERER 314,763 (83,747) (5,698) 995,318
Other items with no adjustments RERAEZEMER 6,752,929 - - 6,752,922
Total equity R 5,459,367 (173,607) (n,81) 5,073,949
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement'

Amendments to HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures!

Amendments to HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
E-B—AF=A=t—BILEE

9. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERFI MBI EBMBREEDN (EBMHE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases’

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 "Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on

the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by

a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value

of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash ﬂows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments

as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own
use while other operating lease payments and presented

as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be both
presented as financing cash flows of the Group. Upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as
investing or operating cash flows in accordance with the
nature as appropriate.
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$55,805,000 as disclosed in note 44. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable

rental deposits paid of HK$8,385,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments

to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered

as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets.

2. FERMEIRSETCEEMBREER ((HEME

WEZER) (18

BERMERERZHET RIEETT BB HRSER
(&)
BEEVBREER Bt MEE ] (18)
RIBFEEBSENE7R, AR (FAEEN B
sofH & T HIAERE < TR IHER. EAEEBMBR
SERBeTG Pl ENBRFEECHE, BREY
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EE—AZ5.
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ZEETER, WHERELEAKEENEAKEE
HESRMERS

4, BB HREERBIFEREEZ 2o

NZE—NAF=B=+—0, A&E (EARAEHEN)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases” (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group elects the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified

as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group does not
reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group elects the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
recognises the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening accumulated losses without restating comparative
information.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepored
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EEREFEER @
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an NFERRFTEHME2EEENERRERZHH
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction EEEMWE SN EZESEBT (T 2B, MAmH
between market participants at the measurement date, BRELTAN TEEEEINSHAEREMEES
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or EEET. RNEFTEENEECATER, AEETE
estimated using another valuation fechnique In estimating ERmG2HaERTE0HEEG 8B TCEBRAE
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into EBZIEEENBECFE, NEERAMBHRED
account the characteristics of the asset or |ic|bi|ify if market T/E%'%&/@HEE@EH R NFENRIEEEET,
participants would take those characteristics into account LAV HRGTERE TURMAER (I
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. N UBRNABER NN S, &5 T2£8E
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in 17REEN HER S, UNENFEBLBIIE
these consolidated financial statements is determined on NEENGTE FINEEEEASE FE 17
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions BINRERNE AL ERB365 & EREBIER
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “"Share-based BE) FRote

Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair vo|ue, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36

‘Impairment of Assets".

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value 4, B REMS, QN FEFSEBRBELFES
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based SEZRABBUEREE NG ABBH N EE
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value CEREEUDEAE N BIRIE=N, &
measurements are observable and the significance of the DU

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active - BB AEASENSTEHE S UEUS 2 E
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity FIEEREERNETETHBCRE GRKREAE) ;
can access at the measurement dofe;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices - BINBABBANEENSEEEXEEIR
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset R B AR (E—hARIIEZRERIN ;&

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or . BEWASBRAEENE G N OB AR
liability. o
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. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has righfs, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair vc|ue, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair vc||ue,
except that:

deferred tax assets or |iobi|i’ries, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered info to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 "Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)

over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired

and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess

is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised

amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made

on a fransaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business
When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the assets which are subsequently measured under fair value
model and financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
licbilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such transaction does not give rise to goodwill

or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups

of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the

lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TEGHEE (@

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwi” is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the
cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a
group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures

used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under

the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of an associate or a joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any |ong—ferm interests fl’]CIf, in subsfcmce, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediofdy

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures

the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate

or joint venture and the fair value of any retained inferest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to

fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from

the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to

the assets, and ob|igcﬁons for the |i0bi|ifies, re|oﬁng to the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, |ic|bi|iﬂes, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, |iobi|iﬁes, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale

or contribution of assefs), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase
of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the
gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

Hotel property/property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
|osses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful |ives, residual values and deprecioﬂon method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Hotel property/property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Hotel under development

Properties in the course of construction for hotel operation
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
The relevant costs include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Such properties are
classified as hotel property when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets property, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their infended use.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land
are accounted for as operating leases and are stated initially
at cost and released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The released prepaid land lease payments in respect
of a parcel of land in Macau is capitalised into hotel
property during the construction period and recognised as
expenses subsequent to the completion of the hotel property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible
assets, measured as the difference between the net disposo|
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be idenﬁfied, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)

is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less cost of o|isposc|| (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or

a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a firsf—in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers upon application
of HKFRS 15

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when

(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance ob|igo’rion is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers upon application
of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right fo consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers upon application

of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

()

(b)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
fowards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Input method

The progress fowards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
mefhod, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group's performance in transferring

control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration

in relation to the variation works and claims for
prolongation, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using either

(a) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the fransaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating

its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers upon application

of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects

of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains a
significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise
of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied
by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses whether
these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of
other relevant standards, failing which it recognises an
asset for these costs only if they meet all of the following

criteria:

(i) the costs relate direc’r|y to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
iden’rify;

(i) the costs generate or enhance resources of the
Group that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing
to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(i) the costs are expecfed to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. The asset is subject to

impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers upon application

of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(e) Performance obligaﬁons for contracts with customers
The Group provides management contracting services
and property development management services to
customers. Revenue from such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time using
input method as the Group's performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the

Group performs.

The Group's certain construction contracts include
payment schedules which require stage payments over
the construction period once certain specified milestones
are reached. In addition, the Group requires certain
customers to provide upfront deposits or advance
payments for construction works, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds the
amount received.

A contract asset, net of contract |ic1bi|ify related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the construction services are performed representing the
Group's right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group's future
performance in achieving specified milestones or the
value of construction work has been agreed with the
customers. The contract assets are transferred to trade
debtors when the righfs become uncondi’rionoL which is
typically at the time the Group obtains the certification
of the completed construction works from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers upon application

of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(e) Performance obligaﬁons for contracts with customers
(Continued)
Hotel room revenue is recognised over the stay of guests.
The Group receives deposit from customers when the
hotel room reservation is made. The deposits received
from the contracts prior fo meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are recognised as contract liabilities.
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 - 60
days to its tfrade customers.

Other hotel income mainly comprises ancillary service
income which is recognised at a point in time when
control of the services is transferred to customers or
over the service period, depending on the terms of the
contracts.

Retention held by customers, prior to expiration of
defect liability period, are classified as contract assets or
liabilities, which ranges from one to two years from the
date of the practical completion of the construction. The
relevant amount is reclassified to trade debtors when the
defect liability period expires. The defect liability period
serves as an assurance that the construction services
performed comply with agreed upon specifications and
such assurance cannot be purchased separately.

Revenue recognition before application of HKFRS 15 on 1
April 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as

described below.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of works performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue recognition before application of HKFRS 15 on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

Development management, project management and
facilities and asset management services income are
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can

be estimated re|iob|y, contract revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of

the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured based on the proportion that the value of works
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
revenue. Variations in confract works and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured

reliably and its receipts is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract works.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract works. Amounts received before the related works
are performed are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position, as a liability, as advance receipts from
customers. Amounts billed for works performed but not

yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under trade and other
debtors, deposits and prepayments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their infended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit and other post-employment benefit
costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other post-employment benefit schemes are recognised
as expenses or capitalised in contracts in progress or

hotel property, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where

the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(ond tax |c1ws) that have been enacted or subsfon’rive|y
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combinoﬁon, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the

dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting

period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade debtors arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial |iobi|iﬂes, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected

life of the financial asset or financial |icbi|if\/, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, o the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9
Classification and subsequent measurement of financia
assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objecﬂve is to collect contractual cash ﬂows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All of the Group's financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impoired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
asset improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets (inc|uo|ing trade and other deb’rors,
amounts due from associates, joint ventures, joint
operations/other partners of joint operations and
subsidiaries of a shqreho|der, other loans receivclb|e,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits and
bank bo|c1nces), contract assets and financial guarantee
contracts which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3. FEEFEE (18)
eI E (&
EREE (8
(a) IRIEMHE B BHEERE5E (1B)

Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group applies simplified approach to recognise
lifetime ECL for trade debtors, contract assets, trade
balances due from joint ventures, joint operations/
other partners of joint operations, subsidiaries of a
shareholder. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward looking estimates. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by the management of the Group
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors

is updated. Retention held by customers and unbilled
revenue included in contract assets have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade debtors for
the same types of contracts. Therefore, the Group has
estimated the expected loss rates for trade debtors and
contract assets on the same basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss

allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether

lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant

increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.

(i) Significonf increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the

financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument

as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and

forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
info account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the financial instrument’s external (iF 0v0i|0b|e)
or internal credit rating;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debfor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk for financial guarantee contfracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers

that default has occurred when a financial asset

is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under ECL model for trade debtors, and trade
balances due from fellow subsidiories, associates,
joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of joint
operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder over
90 days past due based on the good repayment
records for those customers, continuous business with
the Group and/or other reasonable and supportable
information.

(iii) Credi’r—impoired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

3. FEF

BB ()

eMIE (&)
TREE (@)
(a) iAW HE B BHREERERE (B)

BB ERE (1B
(ii) e

BRIESR

AAEMEERREEMS, ~EERD, &

IS TE A ERSE SO B B 1 SRR B KRR
TEF ATKT@E%%&F@H%\%/\ (afEAE
=) BN CREt AL B EMERR) K

Elgea

Eam ABNME, AEERR, MEiE
EREIBE0H, BISEENSEMF, FRIEXR
EEEcENEEBRNEHNEHERRNE
MREBSEE, BIIFER5R.

BERERER ERRRI A EEE
FREEHER, &/ REMESERAIENE
KL, AEBEEHER AR 2B 5 FEW
A N PRI R 3R [ B T & NEl. &8
T BEER/SEEBEMBHENR—2
BB LB B2 RN TRAEEBE
BT 2 ER R

(i) T:./\/WEZ MEE

2 :’f/XT—#Y%fﬁFE%@%# HEEHE
%TE%H&%E%%%%&K%‘J%%) A B
REERE. eMEELREERENER
EEMUTEARERESE

BT ARBRAHRERMFHEZE ;

B, W EUREASES

BERANERARE RERA LR HR
#RYS %/%‘YA%I%EEWWM RAMHER
AT ERTEBNER

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)
« itis becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments fo reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor

or any other party.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following

basis:

Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group's trade debfors, contract assets, and
trade balances due from joint ventures, joint
operations/other partners of joint operations

and subsidiaries of a shoreho|c|er);
Past-due status; and
Nature and size of debtors.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue to

share similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Upon application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with the
corresponding adjustment recognised through a loss

allowance account.
(b) Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade

and other debfors, amounts due from associates,

joint ventures, joint operoﬁons/ofher partners of joint
operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest rate
basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is obiec’rive evidence fhof, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debfors, assets that are assessed not to be impoired
individuo”y are, in oddiﬂon, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
debtors could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit periods
ranging from 60 to 90 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on debtors.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
\E_B—NEZB=+—BILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESEHEEKR (8

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade debtors, where the carrying
amount is reduced fhrough the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a debtor is considered unco||ecﬁb|e, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed Through proFi’r or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the financial assets at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity

are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting alll
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award schemes by the share award scheme trust,
the consideration pctid, inc|uding any direcﬂy attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “shares held for share

award” and deducted from total equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
mainly the liability and conversion option components

are classified separately info respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s

own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible

bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,

representing the conversion option for the holder to convert
the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be released
to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.

3. FEEFEE (18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (inc|uding trade and other credifors,
amounts due to a joint venture, joint operations/other
partners of joint operations, a subsidiary of a shareholder,
and a related company, loan from a subsidiary of @
shareholder and a related company and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 April 2018)/HKAS
37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018); and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset o another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments

at the date of grant without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed or capitalised in
hotel under development on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises

its estimates of the number of equity instruments that

are expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under
development such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve. For share options that vest immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss or capitalised in
hotel under development.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Awarded shares granted to employees, consultants and
advisers providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of awarded shares granted at the date of
grant is expensed or capitalised in hotel under development
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of number of awarded shares that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.

When awarded shares are vesfed, the amount of the
relevant treasury shares (presented under the shares held
for share award scheme) will be transferred to share award
reserve and accumulated losses. When the awarded shares
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
shares award reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
ob|igoﬁon, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate

of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
E-B—AF=A=t—BILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4, FTHEEGHZEERER

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

(a) Construction contracts
The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation measured based on input
method. Notwithstanding that management reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract revenue
and costs for the construction contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in terms
of its total revenue and costs may be higher or lower
than the estimates and this will offect the revenue and

profit recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. FHEEMET < TE2RIR ()

(Continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment, hotel property (2018: (b) W2, MWK BEWE (CSE—/\F &%
hotel under development) and prepaid land lease BHERE) URFEM il ERUE
payments
The Group assesses regu|or|y whether property, p|onf AEBERBAZHHECHTEY . B
and equipment, hotel property (2018: hotel under B BIEME (CE—/\F  ERTBE UEAE
development) and prepaid land lease payments NI ERBESETARENR. AEEE
have any indication of impairment in accordance REZEEE %/ﬁ‘?ﬂﬁfﬁg‘h ETEYE.
with its accounting policy. The Group determines NEsfE. BIEYZE (T5—/\F  ERFAE) 2L
the recoverable amounts of the property, p|on’r &%Efjiiﬂj%ﬂ ?ﬁIEZTL&@/i\gé AEE =
and equipment, hotel property (2018: hotel under UBERGREN, WEHBRESERERE T
development) and prepaid land lease payments based REFETHE,

on the estimation of the economic benefits generated
from these assets. The situation will be closely monitored
by the Group, and adjustments for impairment will be
made in which there is an indication of such adjustments
are appropriate.

In particular, the hotel property of the Group is located LTHZ, AEEVEEMEMIEP, 2—BK
in Macau, as an ultra-luxurious hotel that is sfy|ed like ﬁ.%@ 513 DJFTTL@ZE)_LHET ﬁ%%‘%ﬁﬁ /@
a French palace and has a total of 196 suites/villas &, ®EHER M NFERRBMENF
ranging from around 2,000 and 10,000 square feet, #92,0002£10,000 F AIRNVERE FIE, BEN
with 24-hour butler service. The hotel's business model EBFEAMABPMEMBEEEL®R, Hntst
is not directly comparable to other hotels in Macau, HREMES RSN EERBEUANEIEREHHE
and as such the valuation of the Hotel for the purposes BRI ER A S A BN EET. ZEMETHEEN
of assessing impairment is highly dependent upon ARIVBIEEED I & A E B EETE A LUETT
management'’s estimation of the inputs to the valuation E—TNHEENEBETIEURBERESKINELY
model described in note 13. These estimations are in H 7 15 5% o

turn highly dependent on whether the Hotel is able to
successfully meet the Group's operational forecasts upon
further marketing and promotion work to be carried out
and the successful launching of the other hotel facilities

in future.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of RIFS—NF=ZA=1+—H, ¥WE. HBHXk&
property, p|om’r and equipment, hotel property . BEYE (CE—/\F ¥ERTAEE) UK
(2018: hotel under development) and prepaid TEN TR SR IE 2 BRE{E 79 75! %3370,841,000
land lease payments are HK$370,841,000 (2018: BT (CFE—/\F | 328,409,0007871) FIRE
HK$328,409,000) (net of accumulated impairment STRE N HTE610,797,0008 71 (ZE—/\F 1]
and depreciation of HK$610,797,000 (2018: net of PR R ETH7T8343,662,00078 70) ) . 3,438,569,000
accumulated depreciation of HK$343,662,000)), EHT (CE—)\F  6,961,944,000E7T) GOHRE
HK$3,438,569,000 (2018: HK$6,961,944,000) STRE N2 4T E5,220,652,00078 7T (ZF —/\£F
(net of accumulated impairment and depreciation of 1,203,000,0007E 7)) N2650,984,00078 71 (—
HK$5,220,652,000 (2018: HK$1,203,000,000)) F—/\4F 11,507,712,0007%8 70) ABRRETREIE
and HK$650,984,000 (2018: HK$1,507,712,000) (net 752,137,000/8 70 (& —/\F | #)),

of accumulated impairment of HK$752,137,000 (2018:
Nil)) respectively.
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax asset (c) IEERIBEE
As at 31 March 2019, a deferred tax asset has been ATE—NEFE=H=+—H, ERxFHEREE
851,257,000 70 (ZF—/\4F : 53,007,000 1)

4. FHEEMGFTEEZRR (8)

recognised in respect of unused tax losses amounted

to HK$51,257,000 (2018: HK$53,007,000) in

the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised

in relation to the remaining unused tax losses of
HK$1,254,376,000 (2018: HK$1,084,566,000) in
the consolidated statement of financial position due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams (see note
35). The redlisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
are less or more than expected, or change in facts

and circumstances which result in revision of future

taxable profifs estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax asset may arise, which would

be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

(d) Share-based payment expenses
The recognition of share-based payment expenses
requires the estimation of the number of options and
awards that will ultimately vest at the end of each

reporting period. The impact of the revision of the

estimates during the vesting period is recognised in profit

or loss whenever a revision arises.

(e) Goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$61,646,000 (2018: HK$61,646,000). Details of

the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note

17.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(f) Impairment for trade debtors, retention held by

4. FEEEMFTEEZRKIR ()

() BREUWHE ERHFERESNENEENR

customers and contract assets

Upon application of HKFRS 9

Trade debtors and contract assets are assessed for ECL
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings on the historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
cost or effort.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
debtors and contract assets are HK$540,594,000 and
HK$2,129,237,000 respectively.

The allowance for ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade debtors and contract assets are disclosed
in notes 23 and 24 respectively.

Before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have

not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expecfed, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2018,

the carrying amounts of trade debtors and retention
held by customers are HK$1,006,560,000 and
HK$493,689,000 respectively.
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ERMEIARRIBENE. BEBESBEREER
HERGFTRKRIBERE FEESRESEZH
BEEFE RZTcREERTEERNX B8
IRHESSBFET B v BIFEA =) BhIR CIRERM v £5
FrE. MERERRRBESREDNIEHS, @‘JAFEE
BRBEBE N_F—/\F=-F=+—H, &
SENAIBNERFE 2 RE®CEREED A
1,006,560,0007% 75 17493,689,00075 716
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue of the Group represents the contract revenue from
management contracting services, gross proceeds received
and receivable from property development management
services in connection with contract works performed

and contract revenue with customers arising from hotel
operation.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 March 2019 amounting to HK$20,246,000,000.
Management expects that all the remaining performance
obligations will be recognised as revenue over the contract
terms up fo four years from the end of the reporting period.

Details of the Group's performance obligation for contracts
with customers are disclosed in note 3.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
is organised info divisions for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment focusing on
the types of services provided. Specifically, the Group's
reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
"Operating Segments” are as follows:

Management - building construction and
contracting civil engineering

Property development - development management,
management project management

and facilities and asset

management services

Property investment - investment in properties
through investment in a

joint venture

Hotel operation/ - hotel operation with ancillary

development facilities

5. WARDEER

FEFWRAEEARZEERBHENKA. BAAET
B LIZRY) 3 R E IR AR C U L FE IR AV IS AR
BUNRBEEEELERE RGN AL

RIEBE—NE=A=1+—H, "EXE&H &
KWEE CRBTHE D XET) NXZEBEA
20,246,000,000%5 7T, SEEEHFER TENES
AR RS AR ENEN S EIANMERR AW
Ao

AEEREEF SN ENEEFFBENM S,

WK VERTEE (FBEERRE) ERAFER
NEERERRFEZER, ETLFARHRFEE

REINE. ERME, AEBRBEBUHREE

RZBest TIEE 0 BR) 2 Pl IR S NS E D BT

HEEE - BFRENEIAIE

MEEREE - RREE BEHEEMN
Ree&etin N B B B IR
%

MERE - RERYE BBREN

—Begtx)

BIEEE/#E - BIEEE, ERWEBR

ifg
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group had invested in an operating segment of the
hotel operation in Macau with provision of ancillary facilities.
The remaining segments are held under a major subsidiary

of the Group, Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
or at terms determined and agreed by both parties, where

no market price was available.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned or loss
incurred, by each reportable and operating segment without
allocation of corporate income, central administrative costs
and certain finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

The assets of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposifs, bank balances and cash and other

unallocated assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable
and operating segments except for certain bank and other
borrowings and other unallocated liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER ()
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from UTAAREERBEPL MWW AN EBIRHRE N
contracts with customers and results by reportable and RE DB Z AT -

operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE_E—hhE=B=1+—HLEEE
Hotel
Property operation/
Management  development Property development Segment
contracting  management  investment PYEtota EEEE/ totll  Eliminations ~ Consolidated

REEE NEXRER  YERE GEREGH BB IR E3fi &8

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

TiEx TiEn TiEx TR TER TR T#n TiEr
SEGMENTREVENUE ~ HEMA

External sales HAHE 9,377 364 28 - 9,377,392 4471 9,381,863 - 9,381,863
Inter-segment sales PHEERE (29,755) - - (29,755) - (29,755) 99,755
Segment revenue DEA 9,347,609 28 - 9,347,637 4,471 9,352,108 29,755 9,381,863

Timing of revenue recognition NG

Over time Famsf] 9,347,609 98 - 9,347,631 3008 9,350,645 29755 9,380,400
At a point n fime RERH - - - . 1463 1463 - 1,463
Segment profit (oss) PR (B8) 189,474 (1734) 2,147 189,887 (6,022.95)  (5833,066) 9950986 (5,607,970)
Corporate income = 8,607
Central administrafive costs ~ FRARITBUALA (193,089)
Finance costs EEDES (44,619)
Loss before fax RAIEE (5:837,044)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

At 31 March 2019

5. WARDEBER ()

U BEEEEEREERAIRE MEEDE 27
o

A _FE-hE=H=+—H

Hotel
Property operation/
Management  development Property development Segment
contracting  management  investment PYEtota EEEE/ totll  Eliminations  Consolidated
REEE MEREEE  VERE GEREEH E HH e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEn TEn TER TEw TEn TER TER TER
ASSETS aE
Segment assefs HEEE 3,755,651 11,845 97,662 3,865,158 4,406,711 8,271,869 (399,927) 7,671,942
Pledged bank deposits BEARTEN 16,044
Short term bank deposits BRI 94,638
Bank balances and cash RiTRSRES 207,134
Other unallocated assets AR PEEE 149,382
Consolidated assets EREE 8,359,140
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilfies NEEE 3,149,006 6,457 40 3,155,503 5,496,467 8,651,970 (837.944) 7,814,026
Bank and other borrowings 57T EH0ERT 722,200
Other unallocated liabilties ~ AR EEE 399,526
Consolidated liabilites Feak 8,935,752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's other information
by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Management
contracting
REER
HK$ 000
TER
OTHER INFORMATION Ht&#}
Amounfs included in the measure of segment profit loss) or segment assefs:
(65) 3 B EE .
Additions to hotel property HEEENE
pedors oy TR AR 130
plant and equipment
Additions to deposits paid f
i \onf ‘c? eposits paid for REREYL BELDES
acquisition of property, - -
: Bl
plant and equipment
Depreciation of hotel property EENENE -
Depreciation of : T
iR g BRI 29900
plant and equipment
Finance costs RERK -
Gain on disposal of property, W T T
oot wenR wAREEZE 60
Loss. on d\s.poso\ of other WEHMER BT B :
intangible assets
Release of prepoid land lease BB HAENE 575
payments
Impairment loss on hotel property BENECAERE -
Impairment loss on prepaid land B HRERE, SAES )
lease payments
Impairment loss on property, plant W BELREAEES )
and equipment
Inferests in joint ventures BELFES 1176
Share of results of associates and BB\ TRALSPLLE (2.33)

joint ventures

15T 2
2155 T
TERT T

,—hM—+/I i LE/\ G
/TAA%Z/*—*/\E;_L =

Share O{ revenue 0\( associates 39’“2

and joint ventures

5.

Property
development
management

NEURERE
HK$'000
TR

173

(310)

23

WA R EE R ()
LU AAEBEEME LA IR E RIEE DT Do

BE_F-NF=ZA=1+—HLFE

Amounts regularly provided fo the chief operoﬂng decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit loss):

Hotel

operation/

Property development
investment . PYE ’rof_a| BESE,/  Undlocated  Consolidated
MERE FEREEH BB *n b=
HK$’00£) HK$'00£) HK$'90_() HK$‘QO_0 HK$'909
TEx TAn Thn Thn Thn
- 494971 - 494971
18,304 1,433 61,719 81,456
) 94797 . 94797
- 307,022 - 307,022
29,900 54,361 6,556 90,817
400,493 44,612 445,105
(5,061) . (10) (5,077)
- - 30 30
575 104,016 - 104,591
3,710,630 - 3,710,630
752,137 - 752,137
234,933 - 234,933
92,968 94,144 - - 94,144
0,374 (267) . . (267)
5,612 4111 - - 44177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2018

5. WARDEBER ()

DUF B AREBEIWARERR IR S MIEE D827

o

BE_F—/\FZA=+—HLFE

Property
Management  development Property Hotel Segment

contracting  management investment PYEtotal  development totl  Eliminations  Consalidated
REEE NEREEE  ERE REERXEH  BERE  nfEH B e
HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEn TERL TEL TER TER TER TEn

SEGMENTREVENUE ~ £EBlA
External soles Hi\EE 6,799,126 403 6,799,529 6,799,509 6,799,529
Segment revenue PRI 6,799,126 403 6,799,529 6,799,529 6,799,529
Segment profi (oss) PERT (BB A (6,812) 9,398 113361 (1531,76)  (1418.400) (55 (141845)
Corporate income rENR 4518
Central administrative costs ~ THOTEF A& (144,516)
Finance costs EEREN (1587)
Loss before tax FREEE (1,570,040)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER ()
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and UTAAREREENEBBIZIRE MEENE 27D
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. Mo
At 31 March 2018 ZE-/N\F=ZA=+—H
Property
Management  development Property Hotel Segment

contracting  management investment PYEtotal  development totl  Eliminations  Consalidated

REEE NEREEE  ERE REERXEH  BERE  nfEH fise e

HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERL TEn TERL TEL TER TER TER TEn

ASSETS BE
Segment assefs PHEE 3,887,574 15,280 103,641 4,006,495 9,315,013 13,321,508 (628906) 12,692,602
Pledged bank deposits BEARTEN 17,020
Short term bank deposits BRBAED 97,887
Bank balances and cash WIEgERRES 899,554
Other unallocated assets HttkniEEE 64,197
Consolidated assets GREE 13,945,190
LIABILITIES B
Seqment b e 3160,048 6.9 5 36636 506500 BN (8070 7424981
Bank borrowings RIER 749,130
Other unallocated liablities  EMF P EEE 319,412
Consolidated liabilties o=t 8,485,823
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEBER ()
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's other information DU 27 2 [ E A S 3 B SR A5 Y A A% 350 43 Af
by reportable and operating segments. o HETED ¢
For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZE—/\F=A=1t—HILFE
Property
Management  development Property Hotel
contracting manogemenf investment PYE total deye|opmenf Unallocated ~ Consolidated
EEEE WEEREE  MERE RERRMGH  EEER K& e

HKS000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
TiEn AL AL T T TiEn TiEn
OTHER INFORMATION EftE#

Amounts included in the measure of segmem profit (loss) or segment assefs:
HESHBN (B AHBEEF G

Addj'm‘s fobofeunder HERRDESE - - - - 46,607 - 446,607

evelopment

Addiﬁohsfo property, p\onfond ?JR\E‘»W‘%\ T%W&EQ/J% 957] ) i 957 i 1466 1037
equipment

Addmonsfg deposits paid for REWEYE BETBEY
acquisition of property, BATA - - - - 90,287 - 90,287
plant and equipment e

Additions to other infangible assets FEEAET EE - - - - - 470 410

Depreciton of proper, g, BREREZNE 27,494 1 : 27495 1870 4885 420
plant and equipment

Finance costs E@éfﬂk - - - - 182,216 11,587 193,803

Losondspo ofpropety, eupss wigmzniss e 1l . . 1o . 162 28
plant and equipment

Los§ on dis.poso\ of other YEEMETEEVES ) ) 5 5
intangible assets

Reoszcfpresaidondeoe sy + e 55 - : 575 59,008 - 59,563
payments

Impairment loss on hotel under SENEEHEEE i i ) ) 1903000 i 1903,000
development

Interests in joint ventures BELEER 1309 - 96,901 97510 - - 97510

Share jrgsu\fs of associates }%/D gypﬁ B4 xﬁﬁ:\%%% (645) (]]é) 0,49 1668 i ) 1,668
and joint ventures

Amounts reqularly provided to the chief operating decision makers but not mcluded in the measure of segment profit (loss):

EHEHTIEEEARE BT ORK BN TR R 28

Sorefevnuechosodles g SpagaRil 4578 80 6,042 441865 . - 441865
and joint ventures JE—

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong AEBCEBETEMNES. B REARHEMN

Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic of China ("the PRC") (MR Ey) (BEERCEPIFRIN) LUR ST N3 K B2k i

(excluding Hong Kong and Macau), and Singapore and R

Malaysia.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue based
on geographical location where construction works or other
services are provided:

WA R EE R ()

DUNBAEBEWAREHER TR A MARTPIE
& AL Bz AT

2019 2018
—E-NE “E2—NEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong 55 8,283,884 5,436,397
Macau P 1,043,178 1,215,582
The PRC i - 128,835
Singapore and Malaysia FTONR N B 2k PR R 54,801 18,715
9,381,863 6,799,529

The followings is an analysis of the Group's revenue based
on types of goods and services:

LN A EBRBEY RRFBEREI D BIKA DT

2019 2018

S — L5 —EN\&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TETT

Management contracting EETIE 9,377,364 6,799,126
Property development management MEZEREE 28 403
Hotel operation B EE 4,471 -
9,381,863 6,799,529

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of
non-current assets based on the geographical location of the

LN AR EERABREEMTHELEZD
#r

assets:
2019 2018
—E-NEF “E)N\F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET BT
Hong Kong E575 225,813 184,371
Macau P 4,984,214 8,908,220
The PRC = 94,963 97,8992
Singapore and Malaysia TN K 2k PR en 1,793 1,937
4,606,783 9,192,420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER (1)
(Continued)
Revenue from customers contributing more than 10% of the WA SRME A EEFRW A BEI0%NE /0T

total revenue of the Group are as follows:

2019 2018
——nE T\
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT TET
Customer A ZEA 1,281,153 Note
Customer B =FB 1,123,713 1,160,032
Customer C EZRC 1,113,275 Note
Customer D =FD Note 707,365
Note: This customer contributed less than 10% of total et  ZERPCWRABRMGAEEHE_S—N1LF
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March H B N\F-HA=+—HIEFERIAD
2019 or the year ended 31 March 2018. R10%.
All these customers are under the management contracting FEEROBEAEEEDER.
segment.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. Ha
2019 2018
—E-hE “Z-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Bank interest income WITH B W o 1,373 803
[nterest income on other loans receivable HiEWEZ o F] B % 6,836 3,668
A . FEW—BEaEERRIAZT
Interest income on amount due from a joint venture & 374 4
B
Others Hit 44 46
8,627 4,521
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel under B BREEPREER 3)
development %8 )
8,627 4,518
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERK
2019 2018
e —EnE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT TH7T
Interest and loan management fee on BT REMERCFHERE
bank and other borrowings TEEE 306,275 266,452
— |
Interest on loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder %H2$ﬁ1ﬂ§ SEIERZA 5,362 4,005
Interest on loan from a related company —EENBENCHE 3,340 -
Effective interest on convertible bonds AR ES CEBRAE 128,130 107,904
445,105 378,361
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B ERERANIIEER
j - (21,830)
contracts in progress e v
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BT E EAURIE M.
hotel under deve|opmenf and property, MM RBEERZE - (162,728)
p|c1nf and equipment #8
445,105 193,803
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 March ﬁéa%:’:&*[\fﬁzﬂ =+—H ifﬁgm [SE¥:N(d
2018 arose on funds borrowed specifically for construction Zﬁﬂig@ﬁ% =] ii?%@%/ﬁ\ﬁ@\ HERAIBIE K.
contracts, hotel under development and property, plant and BN R B S A2 B o
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE

R SRR M EE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight
directors (2018: eight directors and one former director)

which include the chief executive officer are as follows:

==
=

(o) EZERETEITHAEMSE
ENREMN\LES (T
—REIEE) (PETBHER) EAZBIE0T ¢

8. EENFETHAEBNAMURSFHIMASHSE

—N\FI\REER

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions payments Total
o DN BARER  URDA
Be  HtEN  BHERL SEIME Bl Hast
Name of director and chief executive HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EENTETHABHES FET FTET FHERT FET FET FET
2019
—ET-NEF
Executive Directors
HITES
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Note i)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Bff5E1) 347 6,98l ) 310 e 191
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Note i)

. - 579 6,981 - - 279 7,839
Bl R (M5E) ' '
Walter Craig Power (Notes i and iii)

Walter Craig Power (Fff &FiXziii) 47 8,268 ) 43 e 2307
Independent non-executive Directors

BIFAITES

James Chiu (Note ii)

. - 1, - - - 2 1,391
FEHEE (M 5Ei) 366 5 3
Lee Chack Fan (Note ii)

. - 1,162 - - - 25 1,187
Z =75 (P i)
lain Ferguson Bruce (Note i)
- 1,246 - - - 25 1,27
mE+ (i)
Francis Goutenmacher (Note i)
Francis Goutenmacher (B 5Fii) 1,343 ) ) ) 25 1,368
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note ii)
. - 44] - - - 25 466
E3 G EED)
6,831 22,230 - 723 962 30,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

8. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE 8. EERFETHRAEBRAMUEEHFMAEME (8
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (o) EERFETBRAEMNS (B
(Continued)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions payments Total
Ei Kz RIRFEF] MBI 73
bk B=iur=rl BETEAL SRS BB a5t
Name of director and chief executive HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEENTETHABSS FET FAET TR TR TET FRT
2018
—E-N\F
Executive Directors
HITES
Stephen Hung (Notes i & iv)
= - 283 - - - 4,098 3,815
HKEE () wose) e
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Note i)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Bff5Ei) 347 6,981 ) 310 1ot 8,655
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Note i)

L - 579 6,981 5,000 - 1,017 13,577
2= R (M5E) ' ' ' '
Walter Craig Power (Note i)

Walter Craig Power (B 5Fi) 47 8,268 i 43 Lo 10,045
Independent non-executive Directors
BIFRITES
James Chiu (Note ii)
o - 1,366 - - - 90 1,456
FEHEE (M 5Ei)
Lee Chack Fan (Note ii)
e - 1,162 - - - 90 1,252
Z =75 (B i)
lain Ferguson Bruce (Note ii)
- 1,246 - - - 90 1,336
et (i)
Francis Goutenmacher (Note ii)
Francis Goutenmacher (Ff 55ii) 1,343 ) ) ) 70 11433
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note i)
. - 44] - - - 90 531
BRE R (MIEh)
7114 22,230 5,000 723 (597) 34,470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

8. BEERFEBTHAENAUSSFMASHE ()

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (o) BEERFETBRAEMNS (B
(Continued)
Notes: B EE

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

(i) The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their service as
directors of the Company.

(iii) Mr. Walter Craig Power was re-designated from
executive director to non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2019.

(iv) Resigned on 25 January 2018.

Mr Walter Craig Power was also the chief executive
officer of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive officer for both years. Mr. Walter Craig
Power resigned as chief executive officer with effect from
1 May 2019.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether direcﬂy or indirecﬂy,
subsisted at the end of both years or at any time during
both years.

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to
the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. Neither the directors
nor the chief executive of the Company waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.
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() EXFIReRTESME I RERARARER
FEE 2 FHRMIRBMES,

m)tY%?Zﬁi%ﬁﬁ%%M%ﬁﬁﬁEK
RNEEFRHERBMES.

(i) Walter Craig Powerst & B TE R AT AIE
WITES, BE—NGFAA—HEER

(iv) R=F—N\F—B -+ hHH#E

Walter Craig Powerst 4 78 28 AN B 2 1T BUE AL,
HR FR T HM o E BN M EFEE R 1T
EAEE FTIR AR TS 2 Bl <50 Walter Craig PowerT
TERTCOTERE, B -E—hERB—HEE
o

RAFEREHBRNFENERFE, AREHE
UERARBEENEFERNEEEEEAE
BCEBERF. WHRER.

HMETAIZEARERE RS, BAXRTERAL
KHISMAtMFMEE. BMEARSECESRHT
TN EMEZMIEFEZE AL,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

8. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE 8. BEERFEBTHAENAUSSFMASME ()

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEBNE
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for AEERAFERANESHFMAERE=24AR
the year included three (2018: three) directors of the SESE (CE—)\F . =LA NEES), HiS
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above in FEIBEHN M EE8(a)e BR TR (CE—/\F !
note 8(a). The aggregate emoluments of the remaining W) IEBARNNBDESTHNAEEETETHAEY
two (2018: two) highest paid individuals who are neither e AB B0 -

a director of the Company nor chief executive of the
Group are as follows:

2019 2018
—T-nE  —E s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Salaries and other benefits FHEN N EMEF 12,055 7,591
Discretionary bonus BT TERL 15,800 925,425
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRERETEHE 27 36
27,882 33,052
The emoluments were within the following bands: MEMSFTBERENT
2019 2018
—T-nE  —E s
Number of employee
BEA#
12,000,000178 L%
HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000 12,500,000 71 1 _
H - ZX
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 ]3’%07%’001%Ei13’500’000 - 1
H Lz
HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 ]5'%0%001% 7LE15,500,000 1 -
19,500,00178 71,2
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 20,000,000 7 - 1
2 2
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group REMEERN, AEETEDLIUESHMAE (2
to the five highest paid individuals, including directors EARNBDESNAERFTETHAL) IS UE
of the Company and chief executive of the Group, as AMAREBHNIMAREE R 2528, IFAEE

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B E,
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

9.

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE . FISMEHR
2019 2018
—_E-NE B N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Tt
Hong Kong BH5E
Current tax AHRIRIA 1,082 1,390
Overprovision in prior year W FE B - (20)
1,082 1,370
Macau and other jurisdictions PSRN Hfh B A E R
Current tax AR IR 1,008 373
Under(over)provision in prior years BIEFERE (B%8) B 92,114 (1,409)
3,122 (1,036)
4,204 334

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gozef’red on the fo||owing d0y4 Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits

of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificanf to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profifs for both years.

ATE—\EFE=A-+—H, 85 ATEE"SE
—CERE (BE]) (750 B Ex (B8 ZE)),
HEIAMLHIFISHREFIE, BHAEENR_F—/\
FZAZ+/\BHEERALEURIHHEEFR,
IREMRGFERESE, cEKEEEENS28
BTN F1E8.25% IR KR, MBiEeaEE
TR R 716 5% IR KR AR S Mk
MEGFEERNEREE RN AT FHIEIR6 5% 8
—IRE IR,

RRBEFRER, REMRmRSIFEREGE R
HROEEIRSHBREME TR, MRWIEFE
EEBHSROLMESTERIET]BN6 5%t B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019

9.

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

R SRR M EE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FAIEMRER (B)

Taxation arising in Macau and other jurisdictions is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. fele o IRITHRETE,

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to

the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit B BEROT

or |OSS as FO”OWS:

TERFI R H M B AR & A o IR THARBABRA B &

REEZASRERREFGBRERMZRIRAE

2019 2018
el . N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before tax R EIE51E (5,837,044) (1,570,040)
TR E16.5% (—F—
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) ?ﬁﬁ ﬁ]iﬂ;;)ééi/%(z*ﬁdié \ (963,112) (259,056)
Tax effect of share of results of associates BHEE N &Aﬁﬁ:\ii
o - 44 (275)
and joint ventures BB
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax o) fﬁﬁ?ﬂ%ﬂ Bz 970,989 001,438
purpose METE
2% 75 BB AR
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose Ei;;zggﬂ R 2 (4,492) (1,319)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences RERINAERERE R
A 5 48 184
not recogmsed R
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible El)iE ?ﬁﬁu REESR AR E R
) ) ) - (1,980) (27)
temporary differences previously not recognised ERRCRBRE
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REESRIR B IR R & 34,643 75,718
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously B SLE R ERIRIBEE
iy ,922 12,39
not recognised WEzE (3 ) (12,399)
Tax effect of deferred tax assets previous|y not SRR ESRIRIERIEE E 2
. i ; (28,650) -
recognised REE
HMa)s S ABERKR I
Tax effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ~ \1m§;§$% @ REfR2i (1,478) (2,505)
A=
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFERE (B%8) 3 2,114 (1,429)
Income tax expense for the year FECERER 4,204 334
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 35. IEIEARIE 2 S IE I FA B 5E35,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FEBIE
2019 2018
Notes —E-NEF “ZE-)N\F
fyEE HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Loss for the year has been arrived at after FEEBEDIOR G
charging (crediting): A
Auditor’s remuneration B EMEN & 5,037 4,839
Depreciation of hotel property BIEIECITE 307,022 -
- 4% ot T S0 [
DepreAaohon of property, |o|c1n’r and MEE. WA (@) 90,817 34950
equipment g
(Gain) loss on disposo| of property, p|cmf HEMZ=. MR
and equipment < (A B8 .077) il
Impairment loss recognised in respect FLE M FEWFNIERESE 2 9867
of other debtors AEEE ) '
Impairment loss recognised in respect FLEW — R E N ) 4739
of amount due from an associate MIBHES w BBEEE ) '
EHMETLE
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets Hj]{g R EE 30 5
Legal and professional fees AN EEER 44,905 40,789
Net exchange loss (gain) FE 2518 (®A)) /558 3,084 (2,541)
Operating lease rentals REHERE (b) 165,998 40,185
Release of prepaid land lease payments  ER#5 78T - A & 7118 (c) 104,591 52,583
Staff costs ET A (d) 961,848 246,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

10. £EEIE (8B)

Notes: P EE -
2019 2018
—e-nE T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
- (o) ME. BERBRETR
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: = -
Owned assets BEEE 90,817 39,658
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BTREERENIREE (2,135)
contracts in progress N | '
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRERPREER (3,073)
hotel under development L BER '
90,817 34,250
(b) Operating lease rentals: (b) EMEHES !
Premises YIS 46,905 56,382
Plant and machinery TR N 14 25 119,093 91,777
165,998 148,159
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BREEENIREE (96,776)
contracts in progress Fi v | '
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRERTAEER (1,198)
hotel under development ! '
165,998 40,185
(c) Release of prepaid land lease payments: (c) BREEFEN T HIHE RIS ©
Release of prepaid land lease payments TR T AR E A 104,591 104,591
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BRERTAEEAR (52,008)
hotel under development e '
104,591 52,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

10. FEEE (@)

Notes: (Continued) EE @ (18
2019 2018
—E-NE —\£F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(d) Staff costs: (d) ET A :
Directors emoluments (Note 8) EE R ET)) 30,746 34,470
Other staff costs: HME TAA
. . . T S n =
So|or|es,_d|screhonory bonus and other %@J_H\ B E 16 RN Bl 904,806 861,295
benefits BH
Retirement benefit scheme and other BIRERIFTE) N H b gE
post-employment schemes contributions, B st a8, bR
net of forfeited contributions of AU F3,734,000 26,007 29,315
HK$3,734,000 (2018: HK$4,209,000) BT (CE—/\F:
4,209,00078 7T)
Equity-settled share-based payment DIBREREE IR D AE 089 (1.735)
expenses A REN 2 '
961,848 916,345
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BTREEENIREE ) (580,236)
contract in progress A&7 '
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BR R RIE XY
hotel under development and *. HMAREE - (89,946)
property, plant and equipment A Z2E58
961,848 246,163
1. DISTRIBUTIONS . 7
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁflifﬁ%%ﬂﬁ T B AR B A SRR

of the Company during both years, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period for both

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Loss

12. FREE

RRBEENEECESREANBEGEDRET
S BUIEET R

518

2019 2018
—2—nE —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T8
Loss for the purposes of basic and SESRERANEEEHIE Y
diluted loss per share: 548 -
Loss for the year attributable AT A AL R IR (5,847, 646) (1,573,795)
to owners of the Company
Number of shares R E
Number of Number of
shares shares
R & ieany 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary = n o =
shares for the purpose of basic and IR SRERRAMEHR L 1,012,953,711 249,618,851

diluted loss per share (Note)

EoER T ()

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares
adopted in the calculation of basic and diluted loss
per share for year ended 31 March 2018 have been
adjusted retrospectively to reflect the impact of
copi’ro| reorganisation and issue of rights shares as
disclosed in note 36 and have been arrived at after
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company

by an independent trustee.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 does not assume the
exercises of convertible bonds and the unvested shares
awarded outstanding for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018 since assumed such exercises would result in a
decrease in loss per share. In addition, the computation of
diluted loss per share for years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018 does not assume the exercises of the Company's share
options outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018 and the computation of diluted loss per share

for the year ended 31 March 2018 does not assume the
exercise of exchange right granted to option holder under

a subsidiary’s share option scheme because the adjusted
exercise prices of those options and exchange rights were
higher than the average market price of the shares and
assumed such exercises would result in a decrease in loss per
share during both years.

et ARGt EBE_S—/\F=B=+—HLHF
ESREANEFHE 2T RRMNE T I
BEIFHEMTE, LU BRHIEE36PTINEE < B
FERNRBTHRRN CEE, THiREB
UREAUEEEARETREFHE ZRNE

B,

ARREREE_S—NEN_SZS—/\F=HA=+—
Bﬁi&ﬁ%ﬁ@tTﬁ&ﬁ%&Eﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%
Zﬁ’lf/ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂgyfﬁﬁiﬂx%%ZD?”J\ WETBEE

—NENF—NF=A=1+— Etiftt
k%%%%lﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ@om%,$ﬂﬁ

—NWFERZE—\F=F=+— Eiifﬁ%ﬁ
@ZK \EIIERECKBARTEELREET f*ﬂ
F=A=1+—HIEFEHRITERE —EHNE
az%&@%%&%%&%%EAZWW@Z@%
EOHEasRNBRRN FEmEL RFBEITER
EREEMEFESREERY, HErEEE_S
—NEATE-N\FZA=+—HIFECEKREZ
SEES IR MR AR A BT,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

13. HOTEL PROPERTY/HOTEL UNDER 13. BIEYMEBRPERE
DEVELOPMENT
The movements of the hotel property/hotel under HE_E—NFN_F—\F-F=1+—HILFE
development for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 BIEE,/BEPBECEBSHEIWT

are set out below:

HK$'000
FHET

COsT D%
At 1 April 2017 NoE—t&mA—H 7,718,317
Additions NE 446,627
At 31 March 2018 R_Z2—NF=A=+—H 8,164,944
Additions NE 494,977
At 31 March 2019 NZE—-hFE=A=+—H 8,659,291
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT AND DEPRECIATION R RERITE
At 1 April 2017 NoE—t&mE—H -
Impairment loss recognised EESRIEEE 1,203,000
At 31 March 2018 RZZ2—N\F=ZB=+—H 1,203,000
Provision of depreciation for the year FRITERS 307,022
Impairment loss recognised EESREEE 3,710,630
At 31 March 2019 RIE-NF=A=1+—H 5,220,652
CARRYING VALUE EREE
At 31 March 2019 RNIE-—NF=A=1+—H 3,438,569
At 31 March 2018 RNIE—-N\F=A=+—H 6,961,944
The hotel property is depreciated over the remaining lease BISHIZER THER NEEANGHRITE, MiTEE
term of the land and depreciation commences from the F—/\F/N\B=+—HAEHERLRE,

opening of the hotel on 31 August 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

13. HOTEL PROPERTY/HOTEL UNDER
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The hotel property/hotel under development is erected on
a piece of land on the Cotai Strip of Macau which is held
under a medium-term lease. The amounts capitalised in
the hotel under development mainly represent the release
of prepaid land lease payments, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, effective interest of convertible
bonds and bank and other borrowings, share-based
payment expenses and share award expenses, directors
and key mcncgemen’r's emo|umenfs, other staff costs,
direct construction costs as well as other professional fees
including design fee and consultancy fees. The capitalised

share-based payments, share award expenses, directors and

key management’s emoluments are based on the roles and

functions of each individuals and their relevant time spent in

relation to the hotel under development project during the
year.

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units ("'CGU")

of the hotel operation/development segments has been
determined based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.

Management of the Company estimates the anticipated
cash flow generated by the underlying assets and was

valued by Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent

professional valuer. The value in use calculations are
calculated based on the asset’s current condition upon the
commencement of hotel operation during the current year.

According to the valuation report prepared by Greater
China Appraisal Limited dated 26 July 2019, the value

of CGU is HK$4,330,000,000 as at 31 March 2019
which showed an indication of impairment as at 31 March
2019. Since the recoverable amount as at 31 March 2019
is less than its carrying amount of hotel property, prepaid
land lease payment and property, plant and equipment in
the CGU, impairment loss of HK$3,710,630,000 (2018:
HK$1,203,000,000), HK$752,137,000 (2018: Nil) and
HK$234,233,000 (2018: Nil) are recognised on the hotel
property/hotel under development, prepaid land lease
payments and property, plant and equipment in the hotel
operation/development segment respectively for the year.
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13. BEYMRBERPEE (E)

BIEWE /B ERBERIRPIE KSR BN —
ettt IM¢%@T%EOH%E¢@W%A
EXAC AT EREBRAN THASNIA. Y%,
BIRRE R, TREES LRI EE
BEFE. DURD 2 E R 2 R 2 K&t 22 B
X BEENTEEEASME. HWETHA. E
BERTEMANEMEXRER (SERFTBRNE
BER) . BERTEXAZURNDAER AR RN
HPAX. EERTEEEASZMEEEER
ALz BERBEENFRRARRETEE 2 AREE
B/ o

EEEE BESNvEERsEN ((EEReH
A1) 2 P [B1 %8 ThiR N FE 8 B E A A B B
BB EEET,

ANBEEEMGFEHMEEEENTRIREM,
MBI BXRGHEMREFEBRLTETHE. &
REBEZTENERAFEBEES ERBREERN
BT B

RBEEEFEERLIN_F—NEFLA-+A
HiREZGERS, RIES—AF=B=+—H

EFReE ME@AL 330,000,000 71 B A — 55
—NE=B=1+—HHIERE BN _E—hE
—B=+—HrE£BENREEEIRSEN
FUBEEYZE. BN THAE ﬁﬁ&%¥ T 1Al K2 2%
BOREE, ERNEMBEEE,EEDHTE
(B, AT MBERBRLYZE. BINLERIED
Bl HE SRR E 5 53,710,630,0008 70 (Z S —/\F ©
1,203,000,00087T) . 752,137,00058 70 (—F—/\
F 1) 11934,233,0008 T (ZF—/\F  HF),
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
\E_B—NEZB=+—BILEE

13. HOTEL PROPERTY/HOTEL UNDER
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

13. EEYEFERPEE ()

Valuation methodology, value of inputs, basis and
assumptions and sensitivity analysis

The valuation methodology, value of inputs in the current
and previous year used in the valuation together with the
basis and assumption are as follows:

Valuation Methodology
HE7 =

Discount Rate

BhIRE

Number of Gaming Tables
ErEE

Commencement of Gaming Operations
Rl SIERE

Average daily room rate in year 1
B—FVIBHERER
Occupancy rate in year 1
B-FALEX

Sales revenue in year |
BE—FHEWRA

Growth rate in sales revenue

WERABESE

Growth rate in average daily room rate

FHBHERERERX

Growth rate in occupancy rate

AR ESE

Long term growth rate

EHRER

IHETE 1EAZFEE. THCEERERR

R 7T

HEN A HEMAREAFERTFEZBA SR
BEEREERRRUOT

Current Year Valuation Report

Last Year Valuation Report

AEEGERS RAFEEMERS
Income Approach Income Approach
W& WA E

10.5% 13%

N/A 66

~EA

N/A Year 2

B BF

HK$6,050 - HK$35,000
6,05078 752 35,00078 7

HK$10,625 - HK$32,593
10,62578 75 2232,59378 70

12% - 46% 51%

HK$274.1 million HK$550.4 million
274,100,00078 7T 550,400,00078 7T
Year 2 85— & | 47% Year2 85— 11,266%
Year3 BB =1F | 42% Year3 55 =4 1 5%
Year 4 VUL | 29% Year 4 FEVULE [ 5%
Year5 & FHF 1 19% Year5 B A F 5%
Year 2 88 — 4 3% - 29% Year 2 55 —4F 1 22%
Year 3 =F | 3% - 19% Year3 =4 ! 2%
Year 4 VUL [ 3% - 17% Year 4 SBVULE | 2%
Year 5 B 1 3% - 15% Year 5 5 1LF 2%
Year 2 88 " 4F [ 8% - 21% Year 2 28 "4 [ 47%
Year 355 =45 1 8% - 18% Year3 55 = 1F © 3%
Year 4 B5VUEE 1 7% - 12% Year 4 SBVULE 1 3%
Year 5 B LE | 4% - 7% Year5 BHF | 3%
3% 2.8%
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e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
E-B—AF=A=t—BILEE

13. HOTEL PROPERTY/HOTEL UNDER 13. BEYE REDEE (B

DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Valuation methodology, value of inputs, basis and
assumptions and sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Valuation method

Income approach and use of discounted cash flow method
("DCF") are applied for the valuation. The reason for using
this method is as follow:

- Under the "Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36”, the
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit can only be assessed based on its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use (i.e. DCF);

- The value of the hotel business is determined by its
potential ability to generate a stream of benefits in the
fufure;

- The future cash flow of the hotel business can be
identified based on the hotel performance record and
forecast prepared by management of the Company;

Oﬁd

- Market approach (i.e. fair value less costs of disposal)
is not applicable due to infrequent sales of hotels on an

open market basis in the locality of the hotel business, i.e.

Macau.

The reason for significant changes in the value of the
inputs and assumptions adopted in current year from those
previously adopted are as follows:

The entering into of a formal agreement with any
concessionaire or sub-concessionaire as operator in respect
of any gaming operations in The 13 Hotel continues to
remain subject to, amongst other things, the operator
making an application and obtaining approval from the
Macau Government to conduct gaming operations in

The 13 Hotel. Given that no such formal agreement has
been entered into, a significant reduction of anticipated
occupancy and room rates as well as forecast revenue

has been made in our business plans, taking into account
of current market conditions. Accordingly, the Company
has taken a prudent approach in preparing the financial
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019, by revising the
operating forecast of the hotel project, which includes but
not limited to (i) offering certain promotion discounts on
the room rates in year 1 to year 5 in order to attract more
customers; and (i) restructuring source of hotel revenue by
focusing more on holding events/exhibitions/parties, etc. at
The 13 Hotel in order to substitute the business of gaming
operation.

15E5E 1EBASFEE. ITHIEERERE
R ZE T (#8)

HESE
HEERBRAERERAMRRSRE (IRRE
M) E. BRI ENRENT !

— RBIEBEFT RSB, EENELRTE
By PIUR [O] & 2B 12 P ARE H N BB & A K2
EAREE RRERRSRE) &7,

— BEEXEGBENREBRELFERNEIE

A=

— BEEBHARRESARBERF LR RAR
B EEERENBASEG ; &

— HmHEE @R FEREERE) L ER, REZ
BIEEBAEM (BIRF) NS5 DBERE
R 75 T BR%

AFERTHRNE A B BENRRERFIHENE
HIREXREHIRANT ¢

B = AEE A SR R RS P I A 2 0 TS
HE (FRAEER) ST L ENMEEERT (HPhd

1) S E 1T I A SR MR P U A A R+ = B S A
LEXER. BRERTLEMEN GRS, KEE
RITHRE, HABREBTEIRRRFBAE FHEA
ERREFBRERLULBEAWA. K, FNBERRE
BE_S—NF=ZRB=+—HLFECZUHRER
EERIEIERE, §8E5EEEEEERERET.
HEMRAFEREFANMGES AL ENE,

SHEBRERONE-—FEBLFUEFEBREM

ETHRITILURS B2 ER ; MiBFENT=
BIERITES,/BE,/REE, ERAEKRARR
DARBEBEER.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

13. HOTEL PROPERTY/HOTEL UNDER
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Valuation methodology, value of inputs, basis and
assumptions and sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The effect of the reasonably possible change in key
assumptions on the calculation of value in use of the CGU of
hotel operation, which would cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount is disclosed below.

If the average daily room rate during the cash flow
projection period increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables are held constant, the carrying amount of the
CGU of hotel operation would be increased by HK$410
million/decreased by HK$420 million as at 31 March 2019.

If the occupancy rate is 5% higher/lower and all other
variables are held constant, the carrying amount of the
CGU of hotel operation would be increased/decreased by
HK$640 million as at 31 March 2019.

If the growth rate is 0.5% higher/lower and all other
variables are held constant, the carrying amount of the
CGU of hotel operation would be increased by HK$460
million/decreased by HK$450 million as at 31 March 2019.

If the discount rate is 0.5% higher/lower and all other
variables are held constant, the carrying amount of the
CGU of hotel operation would be decreased/increased by
HK$160 million as at 31 March 2019.

The capitalisation rate applied is 6%, and if the
capitalisation rate is 0.5% higher/lower and all other
variables are held constant, the carrying amount of the
CGU of hotel operation would be decreased by HK$210
million/increased by HK$240 million as at 31 March 2019.

13. EEYEBERPEE (B

I5E A 1EEASEEE. ITHIEERERE
R /B ZE T (1)

SRABEEEELERSBUNCRAEEREEZREK
BECREBHVRE, FERREERBLH AW
RN T3

MRS REIFNFEE0EEEREMN, -
Do%, EFMTEHMBEMI A ERLT, RIE
—hWF=—B=+—RHBEEEELRESBEUNER
{EFEIRTN410,000,0007%E 7T,/ B 420,000,0007E7T0

LTSRN, B D5%, (EFTE H B B S i
ZIERT, RIE-—hE=ZA=+—HAaFSEE
IS BUMREEEL I, 8 640,000,000

TTlo

MIBERIRN,HV05%, FATEEMEBEHH ST
BoBERTN, RIB—NWE-_RA=+—HAEEE
EEEIRS BRI 8R E 8 FE 12 11460,000,0007E 7T,
450,000,000 TTo

MMALIR IR NN, /00.5%, TEATE BB EHET
BUBERT, RIE—NGF=-A=+—HABEEE
EAIRSBEMWEREEERY 2 M60,000000%E

TTo

FIRBE R LR B6%, MMERLEIGM, /D
05%, TEAEHMBEMSIIESEZBERT, R_.=
—NEZR=+—HBEEEEERELEMUNER
{EFEFI 210,000,000 7T,/ 12 11240,000,0007E7T0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS

PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Property, plant and equipment

B

(o) W3, BN ER R

4. M2, HIMNERTE B, MIRRREZEN

Plant, Furniture,
Leasehold machinery fixtures Statues
londand  Leasehold and Motor  and office and Total
building improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment artwork
RE. £B
HETH W, e EBAE  E&R 7
REF HEEE  RFEE RE FE Ziim s
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TExr  TExn TET TET  FExn TExr  FE=n
CosT A
At April 2017 RZE—CFME—H 36,044 979,154 44016 103756 - 45670
Translation adjustments ERRE - 22 562 214 - 798
Transfer from deposits BRI - - 159,343 64,937 - 994,280
Additions B - 1,679 1,808 7,550 - 1,037
Disposals HE - (433) (7,885) (4,634) (7,269) . (90,14)
At 31 March 2018 R-B-N\EFZA=1+—H - 381 265970 201,095 169,195 - enon
Translation adjustments [E Q% - (10) (423) (130) - (563)
Transfer from deposits RS - 41,633 - - 209,698 35,300 986,653
Additions PNES 38,625 75 10,248 9,649 99,795 64 81,456
Disposals HE - (35,81) (12,357) (2,503) (7,308) - (57,979)
At 31 March 2019 RIZ-NE=A=+—H 38,625 41,708 263,851 207818 394950 35,386 981,638
DEPRECIATION AND TERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At April 2017 RIE—tEMA—H - 34,878 169,178 31,145 85,708 390,909
Translation adjustments EREE - - 20 436 183 639
Provided for the year rEEER - 1399 95,034 4,759 8,336 39,658
Eliminated on disposals HERHHE - (4m) (5,869) (4,207) (7,057) (17,544)
At 31 March 2018 RIE—\F=E=1—H - 35,796 188,563 39,133 87,70 343,662
Translation adjustments [ERRE - (10) (304) (115) (449)
Provided for the year AEEHER 999 8,18 26,069 1,567 40,777 3,087 90,817
Impairment loss recognised ~~ CHERAIESE 12,488 - 120,704 89,688 1353 934,933
Eliminated on disposals HEREHE (35,81) (12,105) (2,431) (719) . (57,466)
At 31 March 2019 R_E-NFEZA=+—H 999 90,591 209,57 161,649 210,401 14640 610,797
CARRYING VALUE EEfE
At 31 March 2019 R_E-NE=ZA=1—H 37,626 o117 61,334 4669 183,849 90,746 370,841
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=1—H - 15 77407 168,962 82,025 - 398,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS

PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land and
building

Leasehold improvement

Over the terms of lease

Over the shorter of the
term of the lease or 3

years
Plant, machinery and 10% - 33"/ %
equipment
Motor vehicles 162/ % - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33‘/3%
office equipment

Statues and artwork 20%

(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
As at 31 March 2019, the Group has deposits of
HK$29,842,000 (2018: HK$221,698,000) paid to
independenf third parties for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

(c) Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Since the recoverable amount of the hotel segment
as at 31 March 2019 is less than its carrying amounts
of assets in the hotel segment, impairment loss of

HK$234,233,000 (2018: Nil) is recognised on property,

plant and equipment in the hotel segment for the year.
Details of recoverable amount and impairment loss are
set out in note 13.

. DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a refundable earnest
money of HK$50,000,000 paid to an independent third
party as deposit to secure an investment right in production
of a movie. Also included in deposifs for investments, was
refundable earnest money of HK$60,000,000 paid to an
independent third party in respect of a potential property
investment.

The Group had a senior secured other bridge borrowing of
HK$300 million outstanding as at 31 March 2018. During
the year, the Group has recognised a HK$30 million loan
facility fee payable to the lender. The Group received a
Notice of Assignment dated 8 May 2018 from the original
lender that it assigned and transferred all its rights, titles,
interest and benefits of the HK$300 million senior secured
bridge loan to a new lender, of which HK$110 million has
been settled by offsetting arrangement with the deposits for
investments.

4. M2, BN WEBYE. BIRKRREZEN

T ()

() Y. BB ()
i BB B TS
fE -

HE L RIET AR
HEEE TEAA3E
UBIEE R %)
P~ 1 a3 K 10%-33"/ %
B
RE 162/ % - 20%
RENKERWAE  20%-33" %
G
Bt 5 R Z2:1M7 o 20%
(b) MR, HWMNRiBZENTE

ATE-NF=ZB=+—H, AEEEHRK
BBz, MWL REEBIIE =S 5%
29,842,000/ (—F—/\4 : 221,698,00057T) o

() M. B R iwRIERBE

AR —E—NF =B =+—HBESE &R A
ClEBEREAEDHEENREE, FHE
FUBIE D ERBIMISE. WM AR R HE SRR E 5 18

234,933,0005 70 (— 5 —/\&F 1 ) , BRI0IU
(O] %8 N B (B 518 B EE B & PR B 513,

- REF®

ATE—N\F=ZBE=1+—H, AEEERBEIE=
7754 BHEIEH = 450,000,0008 7T, EAEIEE
EEER B, URBTEYEREDBIISE
= HZ A ALREME 60,000,000 710

N _E-N\EFZB=+—H, XEEBEEKESR
Zm%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁmkﬁ MAEFN300,000,0007E TTo
FN, 2EEERENTERAZENREER
30,000,00075 70, AEBIRERENAUWE—1H HEA

BB \ERA\DCEBENE, Bit, 25
300,000,000 7T & A L8 2 i%f%kz 4

. PFrat. BENABIEENEEZTHEDA,
& 0,000,000 0 B F B IR E T & H I8 27 5E
H o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

been granted an irrecoverable and exclusive power
of attorney ("POA") in respect of interest in a parcel
of land situated on the Cotai Strip of Macau

(the "Land”). Taken into consideration of a legal
opinion, POA is considered to be a legal instrument
commonly used in Macau to grant, assign or

transfer rights, interest and powers on or relating to

the Land.

Since the recoverable amount of the hotel segment
as at 31 March 2019 is less than its carrying amounts
of assets in the hotel segment, impairment loss

of HK$752,137,000 (2018: Nil) is recognised on
prepaid land lease payments in the hotel segment
for the year. Details of recoverable amount and

impairment loss are set out in note 13.

197

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS le. FafT L MBERIA
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: THERENMATUOT
2019 2018
—E-NE — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT T8
Non-current assets ERENEE 603,679 1,403,121
Current assets AEEE 47,305 104,591
650,984 1,507,712
The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise AEE BN T HABAERIBIEMNR U TS 2 -
leasehold interest in land situated in: HWHEEL
2019 2018
E— I —/\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T8
Hong Kong =55 16,236 16,811
Macau (Note) BPY (ff5+) 634,748 1,490,901
650,984 1,507,712
Note: New Concordia Hotel Limited ("New Concordia”), MEE © A BEBR AR (FiE), ARNBzE
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has BB NE)) BR THREFBKE KB —

et (T3h)) 2 A eI#el RIg Rz IR
(TMUER) ., KREREFEERR, AIERR
RARPIEBERZEEXE, URH. 15
52 OB RR B T ARRE 2 R B N T,

HR-E—-hE=F= + HBE D BREA]
WESBENREBEDHEENERE, F
NEREIED :.BE@%Eﬁiima%WEEEmm
{BE518752,137,0008 70 (5 —/\F 1 #H)
BRI WCISE R ERBENFIEH N
13,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

17. GOODWILL 7. 8
HK$'000
TETT
CcosT DS
: R TE—EFOA—H. ZE-N\FRK
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 2019 —= fE-g=+—g 64,412
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT KREtRE
N — T
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 2019 t;{ijﬁgg _ E—E A (2,766)
CARRYING VALUE fREE
At 31 March 2018 and 2019 R B N\ERE-NAF=ZBE=1+—H 61,646

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of goodwill has been allocated to the cash-generated unit
of building construction in the management contracting

segment.

The recoverable amount of the above cash-generated unit
has been determined based on value in use calculations. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the management

for the next two years (2018: two years) and extrapolates
cash flows for the following five years (2018: five years) with
a steady growth rate of 5% (2018: 5%). The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 9% (2018: 9%). The value
in use is calculated based on the budgeted gross margin,
which is determined using the unit’s past performance

and the management’s expectations for the market

development.

The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

R SRR M EE

18. HEFEE

2019 2018
—T—hE T E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB7 Fiiz

Other intangible assets comprise: HMEEEEDE .
Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost EBCEEE, LA 7,000 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost BEE R8RS, HalA 1,062 1,092
8,062 8,092

The above intangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the club
membership and motor vehicles registration marks are worth

ZBEEIEEFNHEREE,

at least their carrying amounts by reference to latest market

prices.

19. OBLIGATIONS IN EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN
ASSOCIATES

19. BHEENERECEE

bPRELEESEERERTH. ANFAEFKS

ERMTISERERS EEBENERE LTS

2019 2018
—E—NnE —E—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
A WOTAN
Cost of unlisted investments in associates BRERSE EHBE LB 1,561 1,561
A
Share of post-acquisition losses BOWERCBEN
and other comprehensive expenses, Hivembas, {1k (10,788) (8,397)
net of dividends received 2 WEER 2
(9,227) (6,836)
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

19.

20.

OBLIGATIONS IN EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN 19. BHEE NEERZEE (1)
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not @R IEFE S N B o ER B

individually material:

2019 2018
—_E-NE B N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
The Group's share of loss AEE#(LEIE (2,560) (448)
The Group's share of other AEE#EEMemK G
o 169 (254)
comprehensive income (expense) (B2
The Group's share of total comprehensive expense 752 B # (4 4 [E B =% {248 (2,391) (702)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEEBHBENEER (9,227) (6,836)
obligations in excess of interests in associates SECRmEE ' '
Particulars of the Group's principal associate as at 31 March AEETEHRENTINR_S—NER_E—/\F=
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 49(c). B =+—HZFBE R EE49().
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. B EMR
2019 2018
—E-hE “E2—N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
LA A A S
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ?Xii FEREEERZ 51,773 51,773
b 5 W BRI
aree p:s _(,chws' or profl SFOOIrT 'o|o :r ved Hitemss, AkE 492,371 45,737
comprehensive income, net of dividends receive RS =
94,144 97,510
The summarised financial information in respect of the AR EAGELEMIZRELBRLBN
Group's material joint venture, AT I =M EFEE R AT, HEeEWBLSINNATBM L FEEERNE
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, NS R 12 B A (R BRBIEZEHN T, UTHBERMENIREEE
ANE] is set out below. The summarised financial information HEREEAREMMCSECEM BRI
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's &R

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

20.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Financial position of the joint venture as at 31 March:

R SRR M EE

(R (18)
&

POy

20. 5%
A2
(=)

FR=ZA=1T—HZHHNRR:

2019 2018
—_E-NE —\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT T8
Non-current assets ERENEE 219,046 239,251
Current assets mEEE 5,807 7,061
Current liabilities mENaE (15,559) (22,105)
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (23,358) (24,805)
Net assets of the joint venture BEPEEESRE 185,936 192,402
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the ThABEENEERBEIE MIEIE
following:
2019 2018
— —EN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Cash and cash equivalents BeE MBS EIER 5,379 6,868
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying amount of the SECECEESERARSREIECHE
interest in the joint venture:
2019 2018
—Ng =\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Net assets of the joint venture e EEESE 185,936 192,402
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEEBLEEPEEERE 50% 509
interest in the joint venture ey sdi]l 0 0
) L E TN P
CoAl'rymg-oAmounf of the Group's interest AEBRNEGELERRZ 99968 96,901
in the joint venture REE
20]
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

20.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 0. 5 R (J8)
Results of the joint venture for the year ended 31 March: BEPEHERA=T—HIFEZEE
2019 2018
—s—hE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Revenue KA 11,224 12,084
Profit for the year FERF] 4,748 4,858
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year & E E M4 E (Fis7) W4t (1,214) 16,936
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year FEL2E (Bx) WKiEsE (6,466) 21,794
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BRLIEBE RSt EIERIEE !
individually material:
2019 2018
e =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
The Group's share of loss AEE#(LEIE (81) (313)
The Group's share of other comprehensive AEE# L EMem FED)
) (52) 153
(expense) income e
The Group's share of total comprehensive expense 752 B # (4 4 [E BE =% {248 (133) (160)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEERGEPERTC 1176 1309
Group's interests in joint ventures RERE ’ '
Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures as at 31 AEEFTESELENR_S—NERE—/\F=
March 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 49(d). H=+—H s EE5 1M EE49(d)s
2092
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

21.

29.

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORKS

2l Bl HEFREHIENRIEA

2018
G
HK$'000
T8

Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period: R ER &S HAR Z EE S T2 ¢
Contract costs incurred BEES G 78,697,169
Recognised profits less recognised losses EHER AT RS R 518 2,070,038
80,767,207
Less: Progress billings B EER (80,995,628)
(228,491)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBMPIA -

Amounts due from customers for contract works B ER G TEREA 1,056,904
Amounts due to customers for contract works N =Ry Y = (1,285,325)
(228,491)

In response to the lead contamination of drinking water

in certain contract works, the directors of the Company
considered that the provision made for the costs of
remedial works in the consolidated financial statements was
adequate.

INVENTORIES

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally
food, beverages and operating supplies which are to be
utilised in the ordinary course of operations.

SOUTH SHORE

HEE TN TIEBKIKEN, ARFEERH
B T2 AR B B EE EFH T80 BB R

22 78

FERMAIIER, TEESRBBESERETEHH
ZEBm RmREEYE,
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 23. BB R HMEKRIEA. 5T RBMRIE

PREPAYMENTS

2019 2018

ot SN2 —E N

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade debtors B 5 el zIs 554,109 474,673

Less: Impairment allowance B BB R R (13,515) (3,833)

540,594 470,840

, ERFSERER R TR
Retention held by customers expected to be settled: EE L RED

- within twelve months from the end — iR EEEREENEE A _ 978 713
of the reporting period (Note) (bg3H) '
- after twelve months from the end — IR EHIRACE2ME B & ) 914976
of the reporting period (Note) (b335) '
Unbilled revenue (Note) FESWA (FIEE) - 535,720
Advance payments to sub-contractors M2 H S FB I8 157,894 155,154
Construction and material purchase costs ROHIBZ e ELEN
paid on behalf of sub-contractors MEHERB AR A 224,070 326,999
381,964 1,513,562
HBWIA. 5Tk
i o 115,030 130,758
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments e
Less: Impairment allowance B R ER R (339) -
114,691 130,758
1,037,249 2,115,160
Note: Retention held by customers and unbilled revenue et . EPFBEREEMRZZEWANRSE—/\F
were reclassified to contract assets upon initial MA—BWFERE AR EEER] E1557
application of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018. BEFDEEANEE,
Trade debtors mainly arise from management contracting BEERRNNIBFEREAREEER. ~AEEAE
business. The Group's credit terms for its management BIEER v EERNEE SR PER NI, BE
contracting business are negotiated at terms determined FAFH60H E90H T 55,

and agreed with its trade customers. The credit periods are

ranging from 60 to 90 days.

204

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
The aged andlysis of trade debtors, net of impairment
cu||owonce, presen’red based on the invoice date at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

STERIETHUE (1)

RI|BEHR, UHTEHRASEESRIHRRE
BlRtEZBUEGRIEZ R DT T

2019 2018

—s—nE e

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fit Fib

Within 90 days 90HN 491,086 396,699
More than 90 days and within 180 days BiE90HER180H M - 1,256
More than 180 days BiEsoH 49,508 72,885
540,594 470,840

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with these
trade debtors.

Trade debtors aged more than 90 days are past due (2018:

past due but not impaired) as at 31 March 2019.

The directors of the Company consider that there has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the trade
debtors and there was no recent hisfory of defouH, therefore
the amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Majority of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default payment history. Allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$3,833,000 was made at 31 March
2018.

The Group's trade and other debtors that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

23.

B 5 NHEMERRIA, 5T RFAMRIE (§)

KR4y B4 38 HA o £ 50 (B 2 B 57 FE W RR I8 A0 #E 46 /K
. RZE—/\F=F=+—H, RE&E
73,833,0005 710

FEBLEREEBEIEEELNCEE HEBI
Z B 5 NREMBUGEIREYIINT | REARESE
A

2019 2018

—E—nE —= N

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Macau Pataca (‘MOP") JRPEE (TRP9HE ) 477 109
Renminbi ('RMB”) AR TAEE)) 31 36,734

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 40.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

24 GNEERER

At At
31 March 1 April
Not 2019 2018*
ofe _ R
i ﬁ"" R-_BE—NE R-E—\&E
; =B=+—H eE—H*
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Retention held by customers BRRHERE® (@) 766,634 510,157
Unbilled revenue of construction contracts 25K~ REEZ T A (b) 1,679,207 1,060,843
Advances from customers of A=t
, TEWERANE RIS (0) (639,871) (941,801)
construction contracts
1,805,970 629,199
Less: Impairment allowance B BB R (555) (505)
1,805,415 628,694
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TEWE TN
(d)
LA
AN L
Contract assets SRNEE 2,129 937 1,306,438
Contract liabilities ==k (323,822) (697,744)
1,805,415 628,694
Retention held by customers BERHEERENR T
expected to be settled: B RES !
- within 12 months from the end — RS HIRAECET
of the reporting period 1218 8 A 332,447 295,181
- after 12 months from the end —IRERARECET
of the reporting period 1218 5 % 434187 24,976
766,634 510,157
¥ The amounts in this column are after adjustments for the PR TN ERE B FR G EA B NE

application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

—
=

(d)

Retention held by customers represents the Group's right
to consideration for works performed and the rights are
conditional upon the satisfaction of the service quality
by the customers over a certain period as stipulated

in the contracts. The retention held by customers are
transferred to trade debtors when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the expiration of the
defect liability period.

Unbilled revenue represents the Group's right to
consideration for works completed and not yet

certified because the rights are conditional upon the
satisfaction by the customers on the construction works
completed by the Group and the works is pending for
the certification by the customers. The unbilled revenue
are transferred to trade debtors when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group
obtains the certification of the completed construction
works from the customers.

Advances from customers include the non-refundable
payment received from customers, for which the Group
has obligation to transfer goods or services to customers.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

The Group classifies the contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle. Details of the impairment assessment
are set out in note 40.

Contract liabilities of the Group, which are expected to
be settled within the Group's normal operating cycle, are
classified as current.

Revenue from construction contracts recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2019 that was included in
the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year was

HK$651,112,000.
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2. GEERER (8)
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() ERFAZREZEAEEMATN L EER/K

HABRRER], MREFRNAFEFRNGHETHA
Z—EBREBEANHRBERRTmERS IFE,
EXSRN ARG (—RRERERERE)
ERFHEREBREE S RBNFUIR,

(b) ABEERBRAEREERNETREHERZENT

RWEAEBNEN, RaSENATERRE
AEERTHERIER S OMEE, MERILE
MERERZE. EXFRAMSEERS (—K
AREEEECSEFARECTHNBRIRER), K
ERBWABREEZ EIRIR,

REEF ZBEGEREE R R rLRE
A, AEERILERE R ERE RIS ST,

HE—-aMNERNEGNEERGHNEERS
EARNES,

LEB=S

FEERZSFENEEDEARBEE, NEAE
SERPNALEREERRNKHEEIR, RE
(CEEIEE SN TN

FEEFENERIBEARBER, HALEE
BHRAEEESEERARNEEEHRERE,

SHAEVENEaBEReE _E—NE=A=1+—
HIEFEREE 2 BE AW A A651,112,00075 7T,
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER

PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS

(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures

25. FEW IBHENE BB MR BEEE X
BHMBHRIE

(o) FEMR { Bt ﬁu/é%ﬁ%%%

(i) Amounts due from associates () FEWEt=E/NEIFIE
2019 2018
—F-NEF —EF-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Trade and other balances B 5 N HAbiEeR
_ BEESAL /N g
Retention held by an associate expected E%]Hﬁfiiﬂﬁﬂifzfﬁ
to be settled within 12 months from 9 C A - 129
: : 1218 B MfEE 2 fREl &
the end of the reporting period (Note) )
Other balances HiniEer 18,462 12,499
18,462 12,628
Note: Retention held by an associate was M5t © —EHERE %ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%aﬁé;%
reclassified to contract assets upon initial ;/\fﬁﬂﬁmj H *ﬂ:ﬁ/ﬁ\ﬁzﬁﬁ éﬁajﬁﬁE
application of HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018. HER B SRBREN D EEANEE,
(i) Amounts due from joint ventures (i) EWEEERE
2019 2018
—T—nE —E\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade and other balances B 5 N EHAiEER
Trade balances =07 s 23,841 454
_BEAEK A H
Retention held by a joint venture expected Ba A Ei:%%%ﬁ%é 7
to be settled within 12 months from the RIS HHXEDJF - 16,339
. : 1218 B MfEE 2 RE & '
end of the reporting period (Note) (HEE)
Unbilled revenue (Note) FEEZEWA () - 97,472
Other balances Hhher 129 5
Non-trade balance JEE St 4,667 7,435
28,637 121,705
Note: Retention held by a joint venture and B & *Fﬁﬁ%?ﬁi?ﬁﬁmf%.i&ﬂiﬁé%
unbilled revenue were reclassified to WA —%\;/KEEPE‘E B @bﬁﬁz\ﬁﬁ
contract assets upon initial application of %/}é\%ﬁj%%& & RSB EH D
HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018. EENEE.
The trade balances due from joint ventures which FE & E b BRIeR e THEE A
have a credit period of 90 days on average are H, ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%u T HERAEE R

aged within 90 days based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period.

A90H M,
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 25. R IBE NE] BERE AEEE GEX
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER HEHMBHRIE (B)
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (o) FEW /(B NT] /S ¥EIIE (18)
(Continued)
(iii) Amount due to a joint venture (i) FEF—REECENIE
2019 2018
—E-NF “E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Tl’ode Gnd thel’ bGlGnCe %% &Efm%ggﬂé\ _ 52
Other balance HAAEER
(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEU S &2, L ERHMBARTUE
of joint operations
Amounts represent balances due from and to joint FUBIEFEW N FEN B EER (HEAFHESE
operations, which are deemed to be borne by other EEBHMBARE) NEEEFAMBH oS
partners of such joint operations, and other partners BR, MEWEEXBNEEEHEMBM IEER
of joint operations. The balances due from joint 7351 2$1,289,00078 71 (—F—/\£F 1,021,000
operations and other partners of joint operations 71) N254,056,00078 710 (— = —/\£E | 54,056,000
are HK$1,289,000 (2018: HK$1,021,000) and BT . BUGEXBRGEXHAMBH
HK$54,056,000 (2018: HK$54,056,000), ZHEBRD B 454,056,000 7T (ZF—/\F ©
respectively. The balances due to joint operations and 54,056,0007871) 174,380,000/ 7T (—&—/\F !
other partners of joint operations are HK$54,056,000 4,997,000 7T) o

(2018: HK$54,056,000) and HK$4,380,000 (2018:
HK$4,227,000), respectively.

(i) Amounts due from joint operations/other partners () BREEER SEEFHOBANIE

of joint operations

2019 2018
“E-NEF —EN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Trade and other balances 85 N EMiger
Trade balance B 5er 769 382
Other balance HAbiEer 520 639
Non-trade balances JEE S iEER 54,056 54,056
55,345 55,077
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners

of joint operations (Continued)

(i) Amounts due from joint operations/other partners
of joint operations (Continued)
The trade balances due from joint operations/other
partners of joint operations have a credit period
of 90 days on average and the aged analysis
presented based on the invoice date at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

25. FEUWR IBHE N RE MR BEXEE ¥

BHHMBH A (8)

(b) B N EEET AEXFHMBHIE (1)

() FEREEET SEEBHEMBHENIE (B
}_‘uy/\x)\ T»j//\)\)\% ﬁ'fﬂ%@ﬁ:z %%j:

ER 2 THEEHRIA90H, MRS HIR LI
EAMAEEZRZREDFOT

2019 2018

e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH% FE

Within 90 days 90H N 609 213
More than 180 days fid=blc| 160 169
769 382

The above balance aged more than 180 days is
past due (2018: past due but not impaired). The
directors of the Company consider that there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the
joint operations/other partners of joint operations
and there is no recent hisfory of defouH, therefore

the amount is considered recoverable.

(i) Amounts due to joint operations/other partners of
joint operations

LR AR EEB180 H A ER R E (ZF—/\
F I OREERRE . AREEERHEE
X%/ CEEBHMBHCEEEREEX
B, BTHETRCE, HEAXTNR
Il dEIN

(i) BNEEEY SEXBHMBHIE

2019 2018
—2-nE -2 F
HK$'000 HK$' 000
T T

Trade and other balances 85 N EMiEeR
Trade balances =0 =l 1,920 621
Other balances Hihsser 2,460 3,606
Non-trade balances IEE SZiEeR 54,056 54,056
58,436 58,283
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 25 FEW (THEENT] b SEER GEE

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners

of joint operations (Continued)

(i) Amounts due to joint operations/other partners of
joint operations (Continued)
The trade balances due to joint operations/other
partners of joint operations have credit period of 90
days on average and the aged analysis presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

BHHMBH A (8)

(b) FEW I EEET AEEFHMBHRIE (1)

(i) ENEEERY SEXBHMBHEIE B
TENOEER /B EFHMBH CBZHE
ER 2 THEERA90H, MRS IR
EAMAELEZRZREDIOT !

2019 2018
T—NE — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt THT
Within 90 days 90HA 1,332 -
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 HE 180 H A - 621
More than 180 days BiEs0H 588 -
1,920 621
Other balances and non-trade balances due from/to Fuﬁz/ﬁﬁéﬁéi} /\M/i\%/ BEE

associates/joint ventures/joint operations/other partners of
joint operations are unsecured, inferest-free and repayable
on demand except for non-trade balance due from a joint
venture of HK$4,667,000 (2018: HK$7,435,000) which
is interest bearing at a fixed rate of 6% per annum and is
repayable within one year.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 40.
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES OF A 26. FEW, (T — &R R B L B FIE
SHAREHOLDER

(i) Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder () FEWR—2BRRERIEATFIA
2019 2018
—T—hE T E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Trade and other balances B 5 N H Ak

Trade balances B 5iEeR 94 328
Other balance Hbiger - 17,167
94 17,495

(ii)

The trade balances due from subsidiaries of a
shareholder which have a credit period of 90 days on
average are aged over 180 days based on the invoice
date and past due (2018: past due but not impaired) at
the end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the
subsidiaries of a shareholder and there is no recent
hisfory of defouH, therefore the amounts are considered

recoverob|e4

Amount due to a subsidiary of a shareholder

Trcide Oﬂd ofher bOlOﬂCQ

Other balance HAiEeR

B 5 RHEME

FEN—2REBMB LB BES G FHEEH
#A90H, MREREHARUBRZOHEAELEZRD
ABEIsOH I iRkl (CE—/\F : BiRHIEBER
BB o

NEIEFRD, BR—BRENBLRECES
%#ZEfgiﬂéﬁg%,ﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁ
B, HERARFIREN FWEL

(i) FEN—RIRR—FEHEREIE

2019 2018
—=—n% =N
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#7 T
2,244 4,710

Other balances due from/to subsidiaries of a shareholder

are unsecured, interest-free and repoyab|e on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

r the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE 27. HFEIE N
2019 2018
2T “E)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other loans receivable Hirelw sz 63,855 39,159
Less: Impairment allowance BRI E R (7.693) -
56,162 392,159

The other loans receivable are unsecured, interest beoring at
a floating rate at the best lending rate in Hong Kong plus
6% per annum and are repayable within one year.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 40.

DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The p|edgeo| bank deposifs represent deposifs p|edgeo| to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
with maturity within one year from the end of the reporting
period and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity less than three months carry prevoi|ing market
rates ranging from 0.05% to 2.65% (2018: 0.01% to 2.65%)
per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing market rates
ranging from 0% to 0.5% (2018: 0% to 0.5%) per annum.
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B RIREFH G Z B R MIEE40,

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK 28. BIEIRIRITHEN. RHBRITERRRITHEGRES
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
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28.

29.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH
(Continued)

The Group's pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

28. EE|MRITER. BHBRTERRBRITHERERES

(&)

FEELEREEBEINEEELNCEE HEBL
Z BEMIRTER BHRTERRBITHEERKRIR
EEIUT -

2019 2018
—ENnE —E N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
MOP AP 2,378 3,435
RMB AR 653 601
United States dollars ("USD") 7t (E73)) 18 3,612
TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 29. B M EMENRIBENETRHS
EXPENSES
2019 2018
—T-nE T A
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHIT
Trade creditors B ERIE 677,028 590,687
EIES BEA IS R
Retention held by the Group expected to be settled: K%LEFEZ%/;E%% :
- within twelve months from the e =
: : —REHARE2AES A 665,510 672,030
end of the reporting period
- after twelve months from the t = p
A A —HREHREFN2ER%E 253,566 164,545
end of the reporting per|od
919,076 836,575
Advance receipts from customers (Note) KEEF zEWEIE (M5 - 114,637
Other creditors and accrued expenses HERT I N FEETRE S 1,560,742 504,199
3,156,846 2,046,098

Note: Advance receipts from customers were reclassified to
contract liabilities upon initial application of HKFRS
15 on 1 April 2018.
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29. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED

EXPENSES (Continued)

The average credit period on trade creditors is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are within the credit time frame.

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

29. B 5 N EthFE(T IR R FEFT RSz ()

H7 BB FEEERA0H, *EEREE
MEREERR, BRATEEMFIRSGEEERR
Mo

RI|BEHR, UHEHHANEESRCEZEIRN
B BRE O

2019 2018

—E-NEF “E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 90 days S0HMA 645,705 499,779
More than 90 days and within 180 days BaEs0HEF180H 2,064 2,046
More than 180 days BiE180H 29,259 88,869
677,028 590,687

The Group's trade and other creditors that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

FEBLUEREREBERREER N BB R E
2B 5 R EMEMN RSSO

2019 2018

—E—hE —E)\4F

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FBT

MOP Rl kit 13,210 3,906
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30. DEPOSITS/EARNEST MONEY RECEIVED

31

On 28 June 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into sale and purchase agreements in respect of the disposal
of its 51.76% interests in PYE, an indirect subsidiary of

the Company, to Precious Year Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITCP"),

a listed company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 199), and Tycoon Bliss Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr Chan Fut Yan, the deputy
chairman and executive director of PYE and also the
managing director and executive director of ITCP, for a
total consideration of HK$300,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
As at 31 March 2019, deposits of HK$179,000,000 (2018:
HK$179,000,000) were received pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreements. The Disposal was approved by the
Company's independent shareholders at a special general
meeting held on 8 May 2018, in which the completion of
the disposal is conditional upon the fulfilment of certain
conditions as set out in the circular of the Company dated

28 March 2018.

On 4 January 2019, the Company entered into a
non-binding memorandum of understanding with an
associate of a substantial shareholder of the Company
for a potential investment in the Company’s subsidiary
that beneficially owns The 13 Hotel for a consideration
not exceeding HK$1,500,000,000. The Company has
received earnest money of HK$70,000,000 up to 31
March 2019.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY/LOAN
FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The amount due to a related company is unsecured,
interest-free and is repoyob|e within one year.

The loan from a related company is unsecured, interest

bearing at 15% per annum and is repayable within one year.

The related company is a company wholly owned by a
director of the Company.

. B —RERER

30. BRGT& HES

RIEBE—LEASABZ+/\H, ARBWBLRF L
BEEHE, NARNE)Precious Year Limited (fﬁﬁéiﬁj

EEERRNA (MEFtE)), /S LEHRFE, H
BRI RBESZPr L (R 1UAR 1 199) 22 BB LR

7)) Kz2Tycoon Bliss Limited ((REZZERIEF A T=
EREEMEEERCERITESREBRLE
LEHEECNE) HEXRNB 2 BENB A BRE
EEES 76%iE L, EEA300,000,0005 7T (Mt
E£EIEH), é:;: NE=ZB=+—H, BEE
B 95 W E 32 £179,000,000/8 70 (T F—/\F ©
179,000,000/ 7T) » HEEZEBER _E—/\F A
NEETZRERSIAE BEANS B R
E, HEZEAFE THREEENREASTN, 7
BEN AN HBA-E—/\E=-F -+/\H2&

ATE-NF—ANA, ARFEARNE—HTE
RS N\ B 5 5] SRR E IR, NARBENRHER
A+ =B 2 — B BN B #8381,500,000,000
MAETEERE, MBEE_S—HhE-BA=1+—H
ANBEIE S (A E70,000,0008 701 FH 2 &,

BIRIE, —RBIRE N EER

Wﬁ Bl REE

oty NI

,J&o

BIRAREER. RERER—F
—ERERNBERAELRR, HENKS%T B NA
R—FEREE

FERNBNANE —HES2EEBE LN
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32. LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF A SHAREHOLDER 30 —REZ—HERBEABMER
The loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder is unsecured —ARE—ERBE LB BN AEEMR, WERE
and is repayable on demand. REFE R,
The loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder amounting —S B — B B R EMEF D 71170,000,00075 7T
to HK$70,000,000 (2018: HK$75,000,000) and (Z%F—/\4F 1 75,000,000 1) £25,000,00075 71
HK$5,000,000 (2018: Nil) are inferest bearing at a (CB—/\F 8 D REEEEBNESMER
F|ooﬁng rate at the best |enc|ing rate in Hong Kong p|us % 17 ENH| N 32 B B A EK15%51 2o
2% per annum and at a fixed rate of 15% per annum
respectively.
33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33, SRITREAMER
2019 2018
—T-hEF —E)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T8
Bank borrowings WITEZ 3,541,624 3,828,554
Other borrowing HAER 595,000 315,000
4,136,624 4,143,554
Analysed as: PITAS
Secured B 3,891,624 3,998,554
Unsecured LI 3 245,000 145,000
4,136,624 4,143,554
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 33 SRIT R E AR (1)
The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: WIT R AMETZEEROT -
2019 2018
A AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
On demand or within one year wEAERI —FNEA 4,119,124 4,116,054
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 88—, B BB MR E 10,000 10,000
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BiEmE, BAREEATE 7,500 17,500
4,136,624 4,143,554
Less: Amount due within one year shown B — R RS R ED
under current liabilities BB ZHIE (4.119,124) (4116,054)
Amount due after one year shown —FRB A EIE B
under non-current liabilities IENEPa ] 17,500 27,500
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 March 2019, carrying amount of bank and other
borrowings that contain a repayment on demand clause
and are repayable within one year based on scheduled
repayment dates of the loan agreements amounting to
HK$587,200,000 (2018: HK$764,130,000) have been

classified as current liabilities.

The Group's bank borrowings carry interests at floating rates
ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR”)
plus 2% to 3.50% (2018: banks’ cost of funds plus 2.10% to
HIBOR plus 3.50%), with effective interest rates ranging
from 3.29% to 5.61% (2018: 2.81% to 4.86%) per annum.
The Group's other borrowings carry interest at fixed rates of
7% to 25% per annum (2018: 18% to 25%).

As at 31 March 2019, the secured bank and other
borrowings and the banking facilities granted to the

Group are secured by the Group's certain hotel property
(2018: hotel under development), property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments, inventories and
bank deposits with a carrying value of HK$2,863,716,000
(2018: HK$6,219,849,000), HK$32,000,000

(2018: HK$159,348,000), HK$650,984,000

(2018: HK$1,490,901,000), HK$19,725,000 (2018:
HK$30,604,000) and HK$16,044,000 (2018:
HK$17,020,000), respectively, and charges over the
Group's benefits from certain construction contracts and the
Group's interests over certain subsidiaries.
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33, RITREMER (E)

RIB-NF=ZA=+—H, WEERERKE

BEFNBIBEEN R BT ENI BN —F
PME & B H 8 4567,200,000%5 71 (ZE—/\F !

764,130,000/ 70) Z BITIEN D EA RS BB,

REBRFHAIKT B CBITER, EFHFIKER
EABTRIERE (EBBTRZERE)) M2%E
350% (ZEF—/\F | IRBPTESMANI0%EEE
RITEIZEIFRBENZ50%) 51 8, BREFZENF3.29%
ZE561% (CE—/\F | 2.81%54.86%) o AEE 7 HA
ERIRE T EHRN FT%E5% (CF—/\F 1 18%E
25%) &t S

RIB—NE-A=+—H, BEERTLEM
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 33 SRIT R EfhER (&)

Certain bank and other borrowings of the Group are
subjecf to covenant clauses, Whereby the subsidiaries are
required to meet certain stipulated financial ratios. As at 31
March 2019 and up to the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, certain loan covenants of
the Group's bank borrowing of approximately HK$2,942
million outstanding as at 31 March 2019, which require the
opening of the Group's hotel in Macau to be no later than
31 March 2017 (subsequently extended to 31 July 2017) and
all authorisations for the operation of hotel business to be
obtained. The Group has applied for a further extension

of the hotel opening date to 31 August 2018 due to the
further delay in the hotel opening. The Group obtained all
the licenses for the operation of hotel business in August
2018 and the Hotel opened on 31 August 2018. In addition,
the Group also had not complied with certain financial
covenants as stipulated in the bank loan agreement which
require the Group to meet certain amount of consolidated
tangible net worth and certain ratio of its consolidated

net bank borrowings to consolidated tangible net worth,
after the recognition of the impairment loss on the hotel
property at approximately HK$3,711 million, prepaid land
lease payments at approximately HK$752 million and
property, p|cmf and equipment of 0pproximate|y HK$234
million in the consolidated financial statements as at

31 March 2019. The Group has applied for a waiver to
strictly compliance to meet with certain of these financial
covenants. As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, such extension and waiver for the
non-compliance of the covenants as stated in the bank
loan agreement is being processed by the bank. As such,
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$2,486 million,
which had original contractual repayment dates beyond 31
March 2020, is reclassified as a current liability as at the

end of the reporting period. Other than disclosed above, the

subsidiaries has fulfilled these financial ratios and did not

break any bank covenants. The Group will closely monitor its

financial position to ensure the compliance with the relevant
financial covenants and undertaking requirements at the

end of the reporting period.
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 34, AIRARE S

(i) Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013 (the

"February 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 1,202,000,000 February

2013 Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.68 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 5 February 2013 for a total
proceed of HK$1,202,000,000 (the principal amount).
The maturity date is the twelfth anniversary of the date
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds (the
"Maturity Date”). The February 2013 Convertible Bonds
entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any fime commencing on the date
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds and

up fo the close of business on a day no later than seven
days prior to the Maturity Date (both days inclusive). If
the convertible bonds have not been converfed, fhey will
be redeemed on the Maturity Date at the face value of
February 2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, may redeem the convertible
bonds in whole or in part, at principal and interest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to the maturity date. The proceeds of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
info two components, debt and equity elements on initial
recognition. The fair value of the equity component

is HK$1,029,614,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at opproximofe|y
18.1% per annum is HK$172,386,000.

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019, the conversion
price of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds was
HK$13.18 per share adjusted as a result of the Share
Consolidation (as defined in note 36) and the Rights
Issue (as defined in note 36).

Details of adjustments to the conversion price as a result
of the Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue are set
out in announcement dated 19 March 2018.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$60,395,000 were allocated into

the debt component and the equity component of
HK$8,662,000 and HK$51,733,000, respectively, in

proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(i) Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013 (the

34. AR 25 ()
(i) RZB—=F+ A+ BRITZAIRRES

"“December 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 299,942,350 December 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an

initial conversion price of HK$8.23 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 16 December 2013 for

a total proceed of HK$299,942,350 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The
December 2013 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds and up to the close
of business on a day no later than seven days prior to 5
February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the December
2013 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,

they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the December 2013 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,
at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from early redemption date to 5
February 2025. The proceeds of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The December 2013 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 16 December 2013 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the equity component
is HK$252,551,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at approximately
18.5% per annum is HK$47,391,000.

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019, the conversion
price of the December 2013 Convertible Bonds was
HK$16.56 per share adjusted as a result of the Share
Consolidation (as defined in note 36) and the Rights
Issue (as defined in note 36).

Details of adjustments to the conversion price as a result
of the Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue are set
out in announcement dated 19 March 2018.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$12,408,000 were allocated into the
debt component and the equity component of
HK$1,960,000 and HK$10,448,000, respectively, in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.

(TZE—=F+ "B #EE%])
ANBNR_E—=F+_B+/NBIEVNTHERE
8.238 70 (S 1FH S i EFTHEE) 35717299,942,350
BESZT - S—-=—F+_HF0BERES, FEs
TEE4E 7099,942,3508 77, (A£%8) . RIEAH A
ETHFE_RAH, _E—=F+_A0ERKE
ERFHEAEAIN _S—=4+_F0#RE
ABITHIARKBENERE _E_hFE_ALHA
TOREHEZH (BEEEMH) E€XERFBER
ZHIEIRPER S c S AR NE] 2 EER. BT
S——H+_HAoBERESLEESE, SRS
ThAHECRAAAR - E—=—F+_HFoBiREs
ZEEEL, B-FS—/\F_AAHEK, A F
AR RERNHE "S- AF_FARACE&G T
EARIR A S 88 N FEH| K59, BT B BRI 28
Ny B -—=F+ _RBERRESE, _5—=
F+ T~ B ol RELE P IER Y FEsR e
DEEMEENIS - EERRAE D BRAER
DEFINERIE T 2 o R ESfHE. 5 —=
F+_ArRESHEAEEEEE BT
SEREEGEMTAEESETEBEAREN
AR -E—=F+ B +NHETEE, B
D2 N FAE #2592,551,00058 70, MEFHID 2 A
TETHRER IS 2 B EF L N8 5%E T,
47,391,00078 710

RE—N\E=ZA=+—BNK_F—NF=H

—t+—H, _ES—=F+_F0#ERES K
BABR6S6ET, TEMBRMDEH (EERW
5+36) MfH AR (E& R MIEE36) 1EH R,

HR M & H R HRERRECHE ZFE, SN
B AZS—N\FE=ZB+NLBZRHN.

RS HERRR, REBITrIRRESELE 2R FH

B5T/412,408,0005 70, WIELATEANIEEEE
DB DR D EEE S AR REAE S, Bla
A1 71,960,00078 715 M210,448,00075 76

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Contfinued)
(iii) Convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015 (the

34, OJIRRRES (1E)
(i) RZBE—AFE—HBA/N\BRT2IBRERES (5

“January 2015 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 755,300,000 January 2015
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an

initial conversion price of HK$3.00 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 8 January 2015 for a

total proceed of HK$755,300,000 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025.
The January 2015 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
January 2015 Convertible Bonds and up to the close

of business on a day no later than seven days prior to
5 February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the January
2015 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,

they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the January 2015 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
January 2015 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,

at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from early redemption date to

5 February 20925. The proceeds of the January 2015
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The January 2015 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 8 January 2015 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the equity component
is HK$629,747,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at approximately
19.9% per annum is HK$125,553,000.

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019, the conversion
price of the January 2015 Convertible Bonds was
HK$6.03 per share adjusted as a result of the Share
Consolidation (as defined in note 36) and the Rights
Issue (as defined in note 36).

Details of adjustments to the conversion price as a result
of the Share Consolidation and the Rights Issue are set
out in announcement dated 19 March 2018.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$27,915,000 were allocated into the

debt component and the equity component of
HK$4,640,000 and HK$23,275,000, respectively, in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movements of the debt component of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, the December 2013 Convertible

34. AT RAEZS (F8)

BE_ T /\F=ZRA=+—BK"FB-NF=A
—t+—HLEFETE—=F" HT}F“HRTIE\ -=

Bonds and the January 2015 Convertible Bonds for the —=F+"AH —Hﬁ‘ﬂxfi#& E—FHE—F o]
years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 are set out BECERES D 2 BEE N .
below:
February 2013 December 2013 January 2015
Convertible Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds Bonds Total
“E—F e “E-fF
"y +ZH —A
oafkEs MKEs  TARES WEEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr TEx TET TET
At 1 April 2017 A ZE—tEME—H 315,976 79,356 181,375 576,707
Effective interest expense for the year R EFF BRI % 57,092 14,652 36,160 107,904
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=F=+—H 373,068 94,008 917,535 684,611
Effective interest expense for the year FERERAN BB 67,405 17,358 43,367 128,130
At 31 March 2019 S NF=HE=1+—H 440,473 111,366 260,902 812,741
295
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

35 RERRIE
MRAEENDFFEDERZEBRIERIEEE (8
=) LU MBS T ¢

prior years:
Accelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
MBMRITE MIBE 8 4B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET
At1 April 2017 ATE—tFEMB—H 11,567 (1,567) -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RBR G A) Bk (2,821) 2,821 -
At 31 March 2018 RZE-/\F=ZA=1+—H 8,746 (8,746) -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss B GTA) kR (289) 289 -
At 31 March 2019 AZE—NF=-B=1+—H 8,457 (8,457) -
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated IR EHMBERREZNZIME, LRRERIEEE
statement of financial position, the above deferred tax assets LMEaEe T,
and liabilities have been offset.
A— =2

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$1,305,633,000 (2018: HK$1,137,573,000) available
for offsetting against future taxable profits. A deferred

tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses of
HK$51,257,000 (2018: HK$53,007,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses of HK$1,254,376,000 (2018: HK$1,084,566,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has deductible temporary
difference of HK$244,945,000 (2018: HK$257,263,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation

to such temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary difference can be utilised.

In addition, there are no undistributed earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. R A&
Number of ordinary shares
EERYE
at HK$2.00 at HK$20.00 at HK$0.20
Notes per share per share per share Amount
W BR200ET BR000ET  BR020ET E
HK$'000
TEL
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2017 "B +EMA—H 2,500,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Share consolidation Rt (@) (2500,000,000) 250,000,000 - -
Sub-division of every share of B0 HER20.00E TR (a) - (250,000,000) 25,000,000,000 -
HK$20.00 each to HK$0.20 each AER0920ET
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 n\,%f/ \F=ZR=+—-Bk
- - 95,000,000,000 5,000,000
S NF-B=1—FH T
Issued and fully paid: BRITREE .
At1 April 2017 RIE—tFME—H 990,867,010 - - 1,841,734
Share consolidation wAast (a) (920,867,010) 92,086,701 - -
Capital reduction BB A (a) - (92,086,701) 92,086,701 (1,823,317)
Issue of rights issue shares TR ARG (b) - - 990,867,010 184,174
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 R -E—/\E=A=+—HN
- - 1,012,953, 711 202,591
—_ENE=B=1—H
2927
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 9 February
2018, the Company undertook a capital reorganisation
(the "Capital Reorganisation”) which comprised:

(i) a share consolidation on the basis of every fen
existing shares of HK$2.00 each in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of HK$20.00 in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company (the “Share
Consolidation”);

(i) a capital reduction involving reduction of the issued
share capital of the Company through cancelling
the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$19.80,
resulting in the reduction in the nominal value of
each issued share from HK$20.00 to HK$0.20,
and crediting an amount of approximately
HK$1,823,317,000 to the contributed surplus

account of the Company; and

(iii

=

a share subdivision that every authorised but
unissued share of HK$20.00 each was subdivided
into HK$0.20 each.

The Capital Reorganisation took effect on 12 February
2018.

On 20 March 2018, the Company issued 920,867,010

rights issue shares at a subscription price of HK$1.10
per rights issue share on the basis of ten rights issue
shares for every one share held (the "Rights Issue”).
The proceeds from the Rights Issue will be used for
the pre-opening expenses of The 13 Hotel and general
working capital. These rights issue shares were issued
under an ordinary resolution passed in the special
genero| meeting of the Company held on 9 Februory
2018. Details of the completion of the Rights Issue are
set out in an announcement of the Company dated 19

March 2018.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2018 ranked pari passu with the
then existing shares of the Company in all respects.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a) Share option schemes of the Company
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme

37. BERRTEETE
(o) AN EI B IEETEY
() —_SETHFEERETE

On 7 September 2005, the Company adopted

a share option scheme (the "2005 Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive or
reward to any employees, executives or officers,
directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any consultant, adviser or agent of any member

of the Group or any invested entity, who have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any invested entity (the
“Eligible Person”). The Scheme will remain in force

for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any Eligible
Person to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Consideration to be paid on each grant of option

is HK$1.00. The directors of the Company may at
their discretion determine the specific exercise period
which should expire in any event no later than ten
years from date of adoption of the Scheme. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under Listing
Rules from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.

All the then outstanding share options granted
under the 2005 Share Option Scheme continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the 2005 Share Option Scheme.
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 37. RERRREST R (18)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —SZTHFEERETE (8)
Details of movements in the share options of the BE S \F-_B=1T—HIEFEAXRRNT
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option BB ST EERET I H CERIES

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are S FFIBEW S -
as FO”OWSZ
Number of shares of the Company to be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share opﬂons price of the
REREETFRANTRETRNEE Company's
shares
Qutstanding Granted Adjusted Lapsed ~ Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date of at during during during at price  before date Exercise
grant 142017 the year the year the year 3139018 per share of grant period
R
N “E-\E
TE-LE =A FHERHA
mE—A —-1+-f HEIALE]
Name of grantee EEIN 2 KB HATE  FREE ENERE ERRN HATE SROPE RHWDE (i
HKS HKS
B BT
Directors S
Stephen Hung KB (RZE—/\ 1272003 3,600,000 (3,600,000) 680 645 Note
(resigned on F-EZTREER) fizh
95 January 2018)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker 19.7.0013 3,600,000 (3,600,000) 6.80 6.45 Note |
li=d
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2sE 12.7.2013 3,600,000 (3,600,000) 6.80 6.45 Note 1
Hizh
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power ~ 12.7.2013 3,600,000 (3,600,000) 6.80 6.45 Notel
Mz
Jomes Chiu ERE 1272013 360,000 (360,000) 680 645 Notel
M
Lee Chack Fan ) 1272013 360,000 (360,000) 6.80 645 Note 1
ik
lain Ferguson Bruce fit=h 12.7.9013 360,000 (360,000) 6.80 6.45 Note 1
Mz
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher  12.7.2013 360,000 (360,000) 6.80 6.45 Note1
M
Sub-total NGt 15,840,000 (15,840,000)
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

37. IR ERTE) (18)

(o) ZREIFEAREFTE (18
() —EFhEBERES (8

Number of shares of the Company to be Closing

issued upon exercise of the share options price of the

REREETFRANTFETCRNEE Company's

shares

Qutstanding Granted Adjusted Lapsed ~ Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Dafe of at during during during at price before date Exercise
grant 142017 the year the year the year 313.2018 per share of grant period

A
i %
“e—t% - gL

mE-8 =+-8 AT
Narme of grantee REH HEITR  ERRL EREHEE ERRN BEROE SROGE ROWHE L

HK$ HKS

AT BT
Employees (In aggregate) 127,013 5,600,000 (3,600,000) 680 645 Note 1
Kz
12.7.2013 400,000 (400,000) 6.80 645 Note 2
Mo
1279013 900,000 (900,000) 6.80 645 Note 3
MsEs
1279013 1,010,000 (1,010,000 6.80 645 Note 4
ista
1272013 1150,000 (1150,000) 6.80 645 Note 5
M5Es
1272013 460,000 (460,000) 6.80 645 Note 6
Wiite
1272013 138,000 (138,000) 6.80 645 1272014 to
11.7.2017
“EmE
thtZ H
EtE
tA+—H
30.9.2013 688,000 (688,000) 690 6.89 Note 7
lhE
1510.2013 289,000 (289,000) 810 723 Note &
fizis
18.7.2014 229,000 (229,000) 6.80 598 Note 9
Mo
16.4.2015 401,000 (401,000) 6.80 287 Note 10
0

Sub-total 9,265,000 (9,265,000
231
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

37. BBRIESTE ()

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERGESTE] (1B)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () ZEERFHEERESE (B
Number of shares of the Company to be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share options price of the
REREETEEALIEETCRAEE Company's
shares
Qutstanding Granted Adjusted Lapsed ~ Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date of at during dun’ng durmg at price before date Exercise
grant 142017 the year the year the year 313.2018 per share of grant period
N B0\
o E S g
mE—H =+—H HEALE
Name of grantee EEIN ez REBH BRTE  ERENE FAEEE FRSN HRTE BROFE ROUDE ]
H K$ HKS
BT B
Other Participants HMBEE (B5) 107003 150,000 (1150,000) 680 645 Note 3
(In aggregate) Wi5E3
1272013 450,000 (450,000) 6.80 6.45 Note 4
2
1272013 260,000 (260,000) 6.80 6.45 Note 11
Mz
2832014 112,000 (85,188) (26,812) 35.89 897 Note 12
(Note 13) (Note 13) (e
(Fiz3) (I3t03)
Sub-total It 1972,000 (85188)  (1,886,812)
Total st 97,077,000 (85188)  (26,991812)
Notes: MIEE -

1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as
to one-third on 12 July 2013, as to a further

one-third upon topping out of the hotel property
on the Cotai Strip of Macau and as to the final
one-third upon opening of the hotel property on
the Cotai Strip of Macau. The share options are
exercisable from the dates on which the share
options are vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates
inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as

to one-third on 12 July 2014, as to a further
one-third on 12 July 2015 and as to the final
one-third on 12 July 2016. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3.

The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to
10%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on
31 May 2013, 31 August 2013, 30 September
2013, 1 April 2014, 30 September 2014, 31
January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to the fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options

are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fu|Fi||ed, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as

to 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31
August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31 December 2014,
31 March 2015, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016
and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject

to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to
25%, 25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 August 2014 and 31 January
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
7 (both

in any event, exercisable until 11 July 201

dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches,

as to 30%, 30% and 40% on 31 May 2013,

31 December 2014 and 31 March 2016,
respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
7 (both

in any event, exercisable until 11 July 201

dates inclusive).

37. BBRAESTEI ()

(@) AR

\EIfERREETE (1)

() —EFhEBEREFS (18
fyst @ (78

3.

BBRIRHE D LB B, 10%. 15%. 15%. 15%.
10%. 10%. 15%710% 2 B RS IE ) Bl FA — 55
—=®hHA=4+—H. ZF—=F/\H
—+—H. ZBE—=HFNB=+H. =&
—mEmPAE—H. Z5— @fﬁﬂﬁf+l§|\
—_EFE-RNE—B=+—H. ZE—"EFE=H
—+—HBE_E—RFEt+_A=+—HH
B, MAEFENETHBET. BRESE
FHREEGEERN 2 BHREshs@EARe] T
T, MERUAN _E—tFt3+—H
2B (BEEEMX) 7] F17.

BBRIE D T ERE, 15%. 15%. 15%. 15%.
15%. 15%X10% 2 BRRED IR 5 —=
NE=+—H. Z&8—HmFEmPA—H. =%
—WE+"“H=+—H. ZF—AF= )ﬂ
=—4+—H. Z&—REF—A=1+—H. =&
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—+—HBB, EEfEME THEBIEMN.
BRESR THBEMEEN RN
BAARF116, EEROANR_S—CF
tE+—HBZ28 (BEEEMX) A F116.

BB DU ET B, 25%. 25%. 25%M725%
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ& R TE—=F/\A=-+—H. =
—UEPA—H. —_E—MmENS=+—

E&f%&—/\ﬁ BE=-+—HBRE®, taF
ERETEREGME. BRIEESE TRBEME
ﬁi%ﬁizaﬁﬂﬁéﬂfﬂﬂ WA F1TfE, M

BN —_E—tELE+—HZe (BEE
%ﬁ@%)?%ﬁ@o

BB — BB, 30%. 30%M40% 5
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

37. BBRAESTEI ()
(o) AREIEARAEFTE (18)
() —EFhEBEREFS (18
fyst @ (78

Notes: (Continued)

7. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 30 September 2014, as to a further
one-third on 30 September 2015 and as to the
final one-third on 30 September 2016. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 29 September 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

7.

AN

BREOD=HEE —H0—<BRER"S
—FNB=+HERBE, FSN=0—<BK
ER-E-—LFNA=+THERE E&=7
—ZBERER_E—NFNA=THRE,
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%@iiﬁmeﬁﬁti*?ﬁ tENH
T+ B (FEERBMR) B F1T1E.

N

AN AN — &

Bl = H B,

8. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 8. =n—ZERER_E
one-third on 15 October 2014, as to a further —UFE+BA+AHBE, BA=—n— iR
one-third on 15 October 2015 and as to the final BR_B—hF+tA+AEEBE, B&=7
one-third on 15 October 2016. The share options —ZERER _E—NF+RE+AAREB,
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates EREE LB EHREE_S—CF1+A4
until 14 October 2017 (both dates inclusive). +UHEE (BEEEMX) 7] T1716,

9. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as 9. BRES-MEB, —H—<BERENR_S

to one-third on 18 Ju|y 2015, as to a further
one-third on 18 July 2016 and as to the final
one-third on 18 July 2017. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as
to one-third on 16 April 2016, as to a further
one-third on 16 April 2017 and as to the final
one-third on 16 April 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

1. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches,
as to 75% and 25% on 15 January 2014 and
31 December 2015, respectively, subject to
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are

fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11

July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as
to one-third on 28 March 2015, as to a further
one-third on 28 March 2016 and as to the final
one-third on 28 March 2017. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates

until 27 March 2018 (both dates inclusive).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

@)

(ii)

2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

13. Adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation and Rights Issue of the

Company which took place during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

2015 Share Option Scheme

On 11 August 2015 (the "Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
2015 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to the Eligible Person.
The 2015 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date.

Under the 2015 Share Option Scheme, the directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant
options to any Eligible Person to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Consideration to be paid on each
grant of option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company and
will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription price
as is permissible under Listing Rules from time to
time; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

Any options granted pursuant to the 2015 Share
Option Scheme will be exercised over a period

of not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant options (subject to the provisions
for early termination contained in the 2015 Share
Option Scheme).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

37. BB HEETE (18)
(a) AR Tﬁﬁﬂ“@u‘l‘%'] (18
(i) —E—AFEBIREE (@)

The maximum number of shares that may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme

and any other share option scheme(s) adopted

by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at its Adoption Date, i.e. 92,086,701
shares of the Company. Subject to the approval

of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of 0pprovo| by the shareholders of the
Company in gener<:1| meeting. Nofwifhs’randing the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the Company's special general meeting held on 8
May 2018, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to
101,295,371, representing 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of such

meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company

in respect of which options may be granted to

each Eligible Person under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

of the Company in issue from time to time unless
such grant has been duly approved by shareholders
of the Company in general meeting at which the
Eligible Person and his associate (as defined in

the Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess
of 0.1% of the total number of the Company in issue
and have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5
million must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting in advance.
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 37. BBRRTERE (1B)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERRESTE (18)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —E—AEERESE (8)
Details of movements in the share options of the HE_E—NEF="B=+—HIEEEXLT
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option JirSic a EE AFEBRE R CERES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019 are S FFIBEW S -
as follows:
Closing
Number of shares of the Company to be price of the
issued upon exercise of the share options Company's
Name of grantee ERANES RERERTHERANDBRTCRNEE shares
QOutstanding ~ Reclassified Lapsed ~ Outstanding Exercise  immediately
Date of af during during at price before date Exercise
grant 142018 the year the year 313.2019 per share of grant period
S “E-N FEEH
ZE\E =R S
mg—H FR =f-H E/NG
KBS BATE EF0B O EREN BROF SROFE RHEHE I
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Note 3)
(IES)
Directors X
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr. 18.9.2015 9,904,276 - - 0904976 12.531 298 Notel
Hizh
Lau Tom Ko Yuen =R 18.9.2015 2,204,276 - - 2904976 12.531 298 Note 1
fizh
Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power 18.9.9015 92,904,976 - - 2,904,976 12531 298 Note 1
sk
Jomes Chiu BEE 189.2015 195,350 - - 195,350 12531 298 Notel
izt
Lee Chack Fen e 18.9.2015 195,350 - - 195,350 12531 298 Note |
g
lain Ferguson Bruce &t 18.9.2015 195,350 - - 195,350 12.531 2.98 Note 1
g1
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher 18.9.9015 195,350 - - 195,350 12.531 2.8 Note
g
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny BES 1892015 195350 ; - 195,350 12531 998 Nofe |
Wi
Sub-total N 75589,578 - - 1589578
Employees (In aggregate) &5 (&3 18.9.2015 3,065,977 136456 (2,660,932) 540,803 12531 2908 Note |
g
8.9.2016 239,400 - - 239,400 13124 316 Note 2
fizto
Sub-total Nt 3,304,677 136,458 (2,660,930) 780,03
Other participants (In aggregate) HitBHEE (A5 18.9.2015 306806 (136458)  (172,368) - 12531 298 Note ]
i)
15.3.2016 43,092 - (43,092) - 12531 208 Note 1
Wiz
Sub-total NGt 351918 (136,458)  (215,460) -
Total &5t 11,046,173 - (2876392) 8369781
237
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 37. BERRFESTE (F8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (ii) _ﬁ RERBRESE ()
Details of movements in the share options of the HE_E—\GFE=B=+—HIEEXLT
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option BIETE-RFERESTEEH R ES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are S FFIBEW S -
as FO”OWSZ
Number of shares of the Company to be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share options price of the
RERBENERALTERTZRNEE Company's
Nome of grantee BRENE shares
QOutstonding Granted Adiusted  Reclassified Lopsed  Oufstanding Brercse  immediately
Date of of during during during during ot price before date Erercise
grant 142017 the year the year the year the year 3132018 per share of grant period
|y
S i3
ZE-tF
mE-H R R
prutal:i HRIE  EREE i ENNE EREN SRITEE 168
HKS
En
Directors and their spouses
Stephen Hung 189.2015 9,207,500 - (8986750) - (920,750) - 3000 298 Note
(resigned on 25 January 2018) (Note 3) (Note 3) liE]
(H33) (H3)
Pefer Lee Coker )1 Pefer Lee Coker Jr. 189.2015 9,207500 - (7003,924) - - 2004276 12531 298 Note|
(Note 4) (Note 4) iG]
({34) (Fa)
Lou Tom Ko Yuen B8R 189.2015 9,207,500 - (7003204) - - 2904976 12531 298 Nofel
(Note 4) (Note 4) Hizh
(Hizka) (Kizka)
Walter Craig Power Walrer Craig Povier 189.2015 9,207,500 - (7003,924) - - 9904976 19531 298 Note 1
(Note 4) (Note 4) LB
(tzt4) GEN)
Jomes Chiy g 223 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - - 195,350 12531 298 Nofel
(Note 4) (Note4) B
(Hizt) (Hzte)
Lee Chack Fan EYCr 189.9015 816,000 - (620,650) - - 195350 12531 298 Note
(Note 4) (Note 4) Hizh
(Hiz4) GED)
Join Ferguson Bruce fit=nn 189.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - - 195,350 12531 29 Note
(Note 4) (Note 4) (i)
(&) GEZ
Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher 18.9.2015 816,000 - (620,650) - - 195,350 12531 298 Notel
(Note 4) (Note 4) ik
liE2) liE2)
Chan Kok Churg Johmy BER 1692015 86000 - (60650) ; B ) 1053 28 Nokel
(Note 4) (Note 4) Hizh
(bizta) (Bizta)
Deborah Alejandra Valdez Perez (spouse of - Deboroh Alejondra Voldez Perez 1532016 180,000 - (162,000) (18,000) - - 30.00 208 Note |
Stephen Hung) (HxERE) (Note 3) (Note 3) i)
({353) (13t3)
Subeotd it 4,090,000 o GuselET) (8000 (20750) 71589578
(Note3)
(P3Es)
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 37. BERRAESTEI ()
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERRESTE (1B)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (ii) _ﬁ LEBERESTE (B)
Number of shares of the Company to be Closing
issued upon exercise of the share opfions price of the
REREETERALISETRAYE Company's
Nome of grantee BENES shares
Oufstanding Granted Adusted  Reclassifed Lapsed  Outstanding Brercse  immediately
Date of of during during during during at pice  before date Erercise
grant 142017 the year the year the year the year 3130018 per share of gront period
|y
S ZE\E
“EiE =A
mA-E R R =t+-8
btk HAOE  ERRE HB2  BEOE EARM HXOE SROGE miﬁﬁ\a e
HKS HKS
En En
Employees (I aggregate) &8 (A3) 189.2015 19200,000 - (ewram) CB07os) 306507 153 298 Note]
(Notes 3&4) (Note’5) (Note 4) B
(at3Red) (o) GEZ
1532016 875,000 - - - (875000) - 300 208 Notel
2
89016 9,100,000 - (760,600) - (1100000) 239,400 13124 316 Note 2
(Note4) (Note 4) iz
(fH34) ()
Sub-total It 99,175,000 - (13388,078) S (5480245) 3304677
(Notes 3&4) (Note 6)
(st3Rd) (o)
Other participants In aggregate) EfhBaE (85) 189.9015 1290,000 - (981174) - - 3088% 12531 298 Note
(Note 4) (Note 4) Hizh
(Hiz4) GEZY
1532016 - - 25,092 18,000 - 43,092 12531 208 Note|
(Note 4) (Note 4) i
(f34) ()
Subtotal gt 1290,000 - (956,082) 18,000 - 351,918
Totol 5t 64,555,000 - (469058%) - (6400995 146173
(Notes3&4) (Note 7)
(asRd) liE)
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 37. BB IESTEI (1)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (@) AR 1 E%H”’*E stEI (@)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —S—AFERETE (8)
Notes: BREE -
The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 1. %Hy*g/ YZHEER, =0 — Z%Hyjfgﬁ/\\:

one-third on 18 September 2016, as to a further
one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 17 September 2019 (both
dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one third on 8 September 2017, as to a further
one-third on 8 September 2018 and as to the
final one-third on 8 September 2019. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 7 September 2020 (both
dates inclusive).

. Adjusted as a result of the Capital

Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February

2018.

. Adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February
2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018.

Comprising (a) 2,694,500 share options, (b)
592,650 share options (adjusted as a result of
the Capital Reorganisation which took effect
on 12 February 2018) and (c) 760,095 share

—RNFNLHATN\HEE, 9=
%W@M:T tihﬂ+ﬂ5%%;
B=n— Z%k%hfﬁ*ﬂﬁﬂﬁ+ﬂ
BirE. BEREEBEREZERECBEE
“E-AFNAATTCHEE QEEREM
xK) Bl F1T7fE,

—Z

AN

ERES=IHEE, —o—<BRERC
E—tFNBN\BEB, BN =rn—<2B
RERN_SE—/N\FNLA/\BHHEB, &&=
—ZERERN_S—NENA/\HE
B, BREEEREERECHLEE_S
TEFAATCHEE (BEEEMX) 7J
FATE,

AN—E—N\F_B T+ -_HERCRAE
e S

AN—E—N\F_B T+ _HERCRAE
MERZE—N\E=F - +HZM o R
iEEESS

B11E(a)2,694,50017 BERRIE ; (b)52,65017 B8
B ERZE—-N\F_B+_HEMZ
R AERMIEE) ; M()760,095(7 BB IS 1E
(AR ZE—/N\EF_B+HEWZE/A

options (adjusted as a result of the Capital HEENMRKR _S—N\E=ZB _t+HZEMZM
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February TMmFEE) .

2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018).

. Comprising (a) 4,669,500 share options, (b)
52,650 share options (adjusted as a result of
the Capital Reorganisation which took effect
on 12 February 2018) and (c) 760,095 share

BI1E(a)4,669,50017 BERRIE ; (b)52,65017 B8
B (AR —E—/N\E-/+-_HERZ
R AEAMIEE) ; M()760,095(7) B A% 12
(AR =ZE—/\E-_B+ AR

options (adjusted as a result of the Capital EHMN S —/\E=AZt+HZ= 2 H
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February RRMEAE) .

2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018).

240

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 37. BB IESTEI (1)

of share-based payment expenses has been

recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019 with
corresponding increase (2018: decrease) in share option
reserve. Included in the amount of HK$785,000 (2018:
HK$2,173,000) of share-based payment expenses,

an amount of HK$785,000 (2018: HK$6,435,000)
of share-based payment expenses was recognised as
expense (2018: reversal of expense) in profit or loss.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, no share-based
payment (2018: HK$4,262,000) was capitalised in
hotel under development for their contributions to the

hotel project.

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments

Limited ("Falloncroft”)

On 5 February 2013, the Company completed its
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Falloncroft
from an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000,000 (the "Acquisition”) in which
Falloncroft becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Upon the completion of the Acquisition,
Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and granted
options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000,
entitle Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an affiliate

of Mr Stephen Hung (former joint chairman and the
executive director of the Company), to subscribe for
600,000,000 shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may
assign these options to the management of Falloncroft

as it sees fit.

(b)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (@) &R 1 E%H”’*E 58 (&)
(ii) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —S—AFERETE (8)
Notes: (Continued) FHst @ (78)
7. Comprising (a) 4,669,500 share options, (b) 7. 23FE(a)4,669,5000 EERRHE ; (b)973,40017
973,400 share options (adjusted as a result of BEEE (AR _S—/\E_B+_H4EW
the Capital Reorganisation which took effect Z G ARERMIAAE) ; MX()760,0957 B A%
on 12 February 2018) and (c) 760,095 share (AR - E—N\EF_B+_HEVZR
options (adjusted as a result of the Capital AKEHENNR_FE—/N\F=ZA_t+tHZMZ
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February HEmAE
2018 and the completion of the Rights Issue on
20 March 2018).
No options are granted, exercised or cancelled BE_SE-NF_H=+—HIFE, s
under the share option scheme of 2015 Share EREREEREE N S —AFERE
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March STEER . 1TEI
2019.
An amount of HK$785,000 (2018: HK$2,173,000) BE EFE-NF_A=T—HLEFECERUR

10 5 RE 2 (HFBE s 4 #1785,00078 7T (—F—/\
F 12,173,000 7T) , MEEEN (5 —/\F I F
D) ST AR R R, LURD AR RS

785,00078 70 (— 5 —/\& 1 2,173,00057T) &,

A 8785,00058 70 (ZFE—/\ 4 6,435,000757T)

UM AER NS ENBRERAE R
(CE—/\E #BOEH)., EE_F—NE-F8
T HIEFE, WHE(CTE—/\F 4,262,000
EIT) LIRS AER RS B EEEE

CEEEBRERPBEEER,

Falloncroft investments Limited (TFalloncroft]) 2 B&
REHEET R

RIB—=F"FAH, AREZMAE—%
B = H W BEFalloncroft £ B8R 1E, IR UE
#52,000,000,000%5 7 (TWEE1E)) , #itt,
Falloncroftill AN Bl w £ EBME N Ele TR
FEEIE1E, Falloncroftfi i 7 FE AR HEETE I 1% T B
g, ERLUIREERIE & E&%600,000,000
7871 B HE o Chief Wise Limited (I Chief Wise , 2573
Bl EIHE EBRATES HKEEE BB
5]) 58f#600,000,000Falloncrofti% {72 F.
Chief Wise PJ 12 HFl 2 B R a2 S R IB1EZE T
Falloncroftz B1E /&,
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments

37. RERRREST R (18)
(b) Falloncroft investments Limited ([Falloncroftl) 2 B8

Limited ("Falloncroft”) (Continued)

The scheme was structured such that the option holders
on exercise, will always have to pay the same pro

rata amount (up to the lesser of 10% of the equity
capital (including shareholders’ loan) of Falloncroft or
HK$600,000,000) for the shares of Falloncroft as
the Company pays for its interest in Falloncroft. Holders
of the options subscribing for Falloncroft Shares, on
exercise of the options, have the righf to require the
Company to purchase their respective holdings of the
shares of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment

and issue of new ordinary shares of the Company,
determined based on a formu|o, with details set out in a
circular of the Company dated 5 January 2013.

The said share options of Falloncroft lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2018 and the share option
expenses previously recognised in non-controlling
interests were fransferred to accumulated losses upon

expiry.

RE 25T 2 (18)

SHEIE TR, UFEBRERE ARITHEER L

BIRHAMNEE, FLAL B E P FalloncroftZ #E 2T

TFNIE, 3% AR (_EBR AFalloncroftZ 10%% 4%

(SUERREEEFN) £2600,000,0005 707 BEE) o
PR HE A R IE T T BT BREE FalloncroftiR 17 2 FE A%

*%%ﬁ]\ﬁ@gﬁzﬁ T%E?ﬁi%xgﬁ?%z

Falloncrofth 17, LAAZHARCEE N 28T AN BIHT &

%, ﬁ%ﬁ%f%gTuiﬁﬁAK TEHW%*%—*

F—AAHZEX,

DL EFalloncroft B IIEEREE S —/\E=4
=+ —HIEFEXRM, MITNIEERERIESR
< FERRERD S BN B HE e s = HET 5 1R,

38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING 38. R0 BRI M AR D REE 5T

PLAN

(a) Share award scheme

(o) BRIDEZEDSTEY

On 6 September 2006, share award scheme was
adopted by the Company. The share award scheme
allows the Company to make bonus payments to
eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way
of the Company's shares acquired by and held through
an independent trustee until fulfilment of specified

conditions before vesting.

None of the eligible persons of the Group were awarded
any of the Company's shares under the share award

scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 1,088,550
shares (as adjusted as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation which took effect on 12 February 2018)
were awarded to advisers of the Company. The total
fair value of 1,088,550 vested shares of the Company
granted to the advisers was calculated at the market
closing price on the date of grant. Upon vesting and
transfer to the owordees, the related costs of the vested
shares of HK$33,692,000 are credited to shares held
for share qwarcl, and the related fair value of the vested
shares of HK$11,089,000 were debited to share award

reserve.

RISFBERFNANH, RLBEEHRWRDEEIF
2, RNEBTEIBFALIRAEGERAL (2
EAEECRE. EE. BE. B AKRMEAN)
MUAERNE RO DUREIEA, HSFRMOEH—
HEURFEABARSFAERETENRBGRME

REEZS-NF-A=+—HLFERN, HBE
FEEG “%Ai$ﬁ?ﬂﬂ R EEE T EM
ZIS jﬂi{%o

REEZE—/N\F=B=1+—HILEER, &
A4/ Bl B8 RIS 1,088,550 % B 10 #5288 (R —
S N\F B+ HETRASAMBE
&%EﬁFﬂzm/J 088,550 A\ Bl F B A 19 2
NEEEBEEHACWTEBRE. REBEN
HEETEERAE AL, FBBRM R
33,692,000/ 70 B AT A LD EEENET &S H 2 B
M, TER 8RR 18RI TF1ED,089,00078 7T
B AR D EZ B R A0 BRo
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38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING
PLAN (Continued)

(b) Share financing plan
On 6 September 2006, share financing plan was
adopted by the Company. The share financing plan
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on
a non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged
to the Company as security, subject to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

None of the eligible persons of the Group acquired any
of the Company's shares under the share financing plan
during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, loans from a
subsidiary of a shareholder and a related company and
convertible bonds disclosed in notes 33, 32, 31 and 34,
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue

of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

38.

39.

R RENET B KR BREFT B (18)

(b) BRI BEESTE

RTBERFNANE, AREEARNBEST
B, RNBEFFBIBDFCEBAL (SELEE
BE. EF. BA. #ERARREN AALT
WAEBEAN—BLRDERUEEREELEREEL
REZFRERND, MILERMDBERFTARNE
ERERR, ARG EHRABETERAER
5 N ELAAEREME S 2 R TE

RBEE-E-NER-E-/\F=ZA=+—HL
FEN, BEAEECERALRBROMEST
BIEEEAARI RN

BEXRRERE
FEEEEHELR, UERAEEETERR AR
BISE, EBBILERREREERSRRERE

RER. MBREFE, NEEZBRREHIS T E,

AEBrERNGRBEERRE, 2EDFINMHE
33, 32, 334 R IRIT N EMER. — SRR
R BN B N — IR E N BME R A AR E 2 (0BR
ReMERSEEEE) MARNEHEE AEEER
(EEEER TR LR -

AABEFEMRNBERENEE. FARE 22—
R, E5EREANAEEEREARRZ AR,
FEEFRBEEFCEZZERNTRE. HITHR
DB EH BRI A BRI T E HERE RS
o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40.€RTE
(a) Categories of financial instruments (o) ERE T E%E7]
2019 2018
—E-NEF “E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT 57T
Financial assets ETREE
At amortised cost R P A 1,299,123 -
Loans and receivables BRI ERGIA (BiE e X _ 3314101
(including cash and cash equivalents) MIRHEEIER) T
Financial liabilities TRBE
At amortised cost TRIIH AL A 7,196,918 6,762,345
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) ERERA MR EIEBEZE KBS
The Group's maijor financial instruments include trade AEETESH T ECURE S NEMBIWFIE.
and other debtors, amounts due from/to associates, FEMQ/FETTH%M/ VBl BEE. 5 E%%/A
joint ventures, joint operoﬂons/ofher partners of joint M%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%@f# — SRR B BN B N — B R
operations, subsidiaries of a shareholder and a related TTTIE\ /\ﬂﬁﬁgﬂ ?)/T E?ﬂﬁfﬁfjﬁﬂ’(
company, other loans receivable, pledged bank %EHH%E%%TTK BITHEERNIRS. B NEAMIE
deposits, short term bank deposits, bank balances and NFIE. —BRE—BNBE S R—ERER
cash, trade and other credi’rors, loan from a subsidiory E%ﬁﬁ % Hxﬁz B W% jf % —HE EEJ
of a shareholder, loan from a related company, ENBIENR WIT R EMER AR RES. %
bank and other borrowings and convertible bonds. EEMTEBCEHFBRENEGRAMNE. WEe/T
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed S e EZERRIETIZRR (B R kL
in respective notes. The risks associated with these MERR) . EERREABE SRR, HMEI
financial instruments include market risks (currency risk EEMB BN T BEEEEENERIL
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The 5 [ i DUTE (R 8 BRI 75 WU B i & 2 38 B

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a

timely and effective manner.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. £ TE ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREEIEEZEREE (B)

(Continued)

Market risks 5 E R

(i) Currency risk () EMERE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have trade AREIEENBRE B UNERBLZE
and other debfors, short term bank deposifs, bank %&E\W@ﬁuﬂflﬁ\ %E/Hﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ ﬁE%:J%E'T
balances and cash and trade and other creditors R NIREUNE H M EMENTIE, $ARE
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the & 2 S LB o

Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign AEENRREPRUNEABEUCEBEE
currency denominated monetary assets and NEEaEsREENT

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T3t
Assets BEE
MOP VR PT K 92,855 3,544
RMB AR 964 37,335
uUsb ESP Ay 18 3,612
Liabilities =L
MOP VR P 13,210 3,906
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

40. 2R T B (58)
(b) £REAIGEIEBEREE (1)

mIZER (1)
() BERERE (8

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation

of the RMB against Hong Kong dollars as USD
and MOP is pegged to Hong Kong dollars. The
following table details the Group's sensitivity to

a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against Hong Kong dollars. 5% (2018: 5%) is

the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2018: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss for the
year where RMB strengthen 5% (2018: 5%) against
Hong Kong dollars. For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening
of RMB against Hong Kong dollars, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss
and the balances below would be negative.

RMB AR

FRETTAGRPIB BB TTHN, WAKEE
BERZILAARBERETORB AR F&
SMRAEREEN ARBREBE L7t & Tk
5% (CFB—/\F [ 5%) CBUEE, HIEEE
ANEERINE RRRSRERBUERRS
5% (—F—/\F 1 5%), LHEREH AL
R GEERBEIFL 25T EH BREDMN
EIFELONBABURREE cE¥IER,
MR R & BAR 5% (B —/\F © 5%) [EXRE
PREARHLE, AT EHRTARESR
B EFs% (CF—/\F | 5%) MHEFER
BEBERD. MAREREETERS% (CTF
—/\F 1 5%), BHRBBESHFERER
T8, RIS HIRE B2 BT

2019 2018
—2—neE —2N\#
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
40 1,559

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on trade and other debtors and bank
balances and cash denominated in RMB at the end
of the reporting period.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

40. £ TE ()
(b) &R ERREEEIRREUR (18)

iz R (&)
(i) F/3 )7

U EE25. 330 320 31K34PTaN, AEES
in relation to fixed-rate amount due from a joint A b E BIEW —E & & b FTE4,667,0005
venture of HK$4,667,000 (2018: HK$7,435,000), 70 (T FE—J\4F [ 7,435000870) . HMER
other borrowings of HK$595,000,000 (2018: 595,000,0007 71 (:%fﬂfﬁ : 315,ooo,ooo

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk

HK$315,000,000), loan from a subsidiary of a BIT) . —RE B L FME 5,000,000
shareholder of HK$5,000,000 (2018: Nil), loan B (CEB—/\F 8. —BEELNIE

from a related company of HK$107,350,000
(2018: Nil) and convertible bonds of
HK$812,741,000 (2018: HK$684,611,000) as set
out in notes 25, 33, 32, 31 and 34, respectively.

F07,350,0008 71 (CE—/\F © ) o]
A (5 25812,741,000/8 710 (CE—/\F ©
684,611,00078 71) 72 0 A F) KRR,

AL B It A IE R E FN56,162,00078 7T (—
rate risk in relation to other loans receivable = —J\4F 1 32,159,000787T) . CIKIHIEITIE
of HK$56,162,000 (2018: HK$32,159,000), X16,044,00075 7T (—F—/\£F © 17,020,000
pledged bank deposits of HK$16,044,000 (2018: BI) . FEHEARTT 7 5094,638,000E8 7T (—
HK$17,020,000), short-term bank deposits of E—J\4E 1 971,887,000557T) « RITHEER
HK$94,638,000 (2018: HK$271,887,000), 51,168,00078 71 (—& —/\£F 119,103,000
bank balances of HK$51,168,000 (2018: ). —REEC—RBNBAEZER

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest

HK$19,103,000), loan from a subsidiary of

a shareholder of HK$70,000,000 (2018:
HK$75,000,000) and bank borrowings of
HK$3,541,624,000 (2018: HK$3,828,554,000).

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on fluctuation of the best lending rate

in Hong Kong, the banks’ cost of funds and HIBOR.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. 2T A (18)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREEIEEZEREE (B)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) hmiFER (1)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIE Rz (78)
Sensitivity analysis BURNE 7T

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk for variable-rate other loans receivob|e, loan
from a subsidiary of a shareholder and variable-
rate bank borrowings. Certain bank borrowings in
which the related interest expense is capitalised in
the hotel under development is not included in the
interest rate sensitivity analysis below. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2018: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in
interest rates for other loans receivob|e, loan from
a subsidiary of a shareholder and variable-rate
bank borrowings is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If
interest rates had been 50 basis points (2018: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2019 would increase/decrease
by HK$14,812,000 (2018: increase/decrease by
HK$9,735,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to inferest rates on its borrowings.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rate on pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
considered interest rate fluctuation on these bank
deposits and balances is insignificant.
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Eo MERFAIEEL WEBRERPBEEEAR S
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e D MREBERREHA R KREES
BMTERSENREEMRERY. HEEEE
A EEPESH) R @ b3 3R & R E RSO &R (T
E—/\£E I SOEEDL) AEMEWNEN. —%&
fR 28 2 — BB A B 2 B 2 BRI TE
e MREemMaupDIBE, hHhEEBYHA]
e IR o B EEAR B FHE L 2 5T H, MAIX
T FBESOEEEL (TFE—/\ £ 50EE
), EFTEHMBEHFIESEIERT, &
SEHEE_S-NE-A-F+—HIEEEZ
R ESIER RN, 7514,812,00078 7T (=
— J\4E 120, 98109,735,0008 7T) o It JHE#
R E B R EERURS R K @ PTEG

AR EERIBITER. BRI ERRIRT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

40. £ TE ()
(b) &R ERREEEIRREUR (18)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assefs as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade debtors,
contract assets and trade balances due from

joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of

joint operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder,
management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss
model) on these balances collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of other and non-trade balances due
from associates, joint ventures, joint operations/other
partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shareholder are managed through an internal process.
The Group actively monitors the outstanding amount
owed by each related party and identifies any credit
risks in a timely manner in order to reduce the risk of a
credit related loss. Further, the Group c|ose|y monitors
the financial performance of these parties which mainly
engage in the construction service in Hong Kong and
Macau and hospitality service in Macau. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred
loss model) on the outstanding balances individually. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

40. £ TE ()
(b) &R ERREEEIRREUR (18)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment

on other loans receivable on an individual basis. The
assessment includes evaluation of collectability of the
loans receivable based on management's judgment on
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of each borrower and forward looking information. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018:
incurred loss model) on individual loan. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because
these counterparties are banks with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

Due to the fact that there are on|y a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view
of their credit s’rondings, good payment record in the
past and long term relationships with the Group, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is not material. At the end of the reporting
period, the outstanding balances from the five largest
customers, which have been included in the trade
debtors, amounted to HK$212,954,000 (2018:
included in the trade debtors and amounts due from
joint ventures, amounted to HK$626,424,000)

in aggregate, of which the single largest customer
represents approximately 20% (2018: 14%) of the total
trade debtors and trade balances of amounts due from

joint ventures at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

40. £ TE ()
(b) &R ERREEEIRREUR (18)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
In addition, the Group's other loans receivable as

at 31 March 2019 with gross carrying amount of
Hk$63,855,000 (2018: HK$32,159,000) (see note 27
for details) expose the Group to concentration of credit
risk. The directors of the Company continue to monitor
and assess the financial status of the counterparties.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure

EE R MR E TS (18)

4, R-E—hEZRA=+—08, K%lﬁ
I FE U E 52 BR [ #2{E %63,855,00078 71 (T
—J\£F 1 32,159,000/87T) (GF1E RMI5E27) , @K
SEEASEEETAR. A NEEZRHEEEN
SHEH AR 5 8 F 2 H AR .

bR EXPAmEES,, AEBZRRDBNZERS
HF, HUEAMEAEEET AR,

spread over a number of counter parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. ©RET 8 (18)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £RLE MR EIEBIZRBUER (18)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRXRESE (8)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEBENATHLEER BT EH B UL TER -

comprises the following categories:

Trade debtors/ Other financial
Internal credit rating Description contract assets assets/other items
RERIE & TR B8R BoREKRE Htiem&EE H
BNEE (URELE!
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL (not 12m ECL
{6 L Bz and does not have any past-due amounts credit impaired) 12{E8 B FEERE B
RBHFHENRMERREEARANRIE LHPTREAEERE 18
(RBEREERE)
Watch list Debtor usually settles past-due amounts after due Lifetime ECL (not 12m ECL
Ry B date credit impaired) 1218 B FEHRE B8
BEBABRERI I HREERARIEA LHATRHREERIE 18
(RBEFEERIE)
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL (not
A &E risk since initial recognition through information credit impaired) credit impaired)
developed internally or external resources SHFEEEBE SHREREEBE

ERABELEENINSER, FERRER CRBEFEERE (REEERE)
RSB LR ERZ 121N

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
B8 is credif-impqired (credit impoired) (credit impoired)
BERBRTEELREERE 2HFEHEEHE 2BRRHEEHER
(BEERE) (BEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is Amount is
b6z is in severe financial difficulty and the written off written off
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery s A R FIE EEH RMRIE
BRBRATEFABAREY KRB AEH L&
BRI UREAYATRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_ES-NFZA=1+—HILEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. 2R T B (1)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) TRUR R EIEBEEREBUER (18)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER MBS (8)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TR AEEBETRIESEH BT ENER
Group's financial assets and contract assets, which are BEENEKNEENEERSMWO
subject to ECL assessment:
Internal Carrying
2019 Notes credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Amount
“E-NHF Sz AEEEFR 12EAXLHATEIREEEIE BREfEE
HK$'000
FET
Financial assets at amortised cost
RHMEM AN R EE
Trade debtors 23 Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 491,154
g5 e e 15 /R fen (note (i)
SHEBELER
CREEERME) (M)
Watch list Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 59,122
Bz e (note ()
SHEHESEE
(BEEERE BIE)
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 3,833
B8 (note (i)
SHEAESHE
(BEERE (L6
Other debtors 23 Low risk 12m ECL (note (ii)) 261,172
H A FEU 1A B2 1218 B TR E E 518 (BUEEG)
Watch list 12m ECL (note (ii)) 1,180
Bz e 1218 B 7R HAE & @18 (MIaEG)
Amounts due from associates 25 Low risk 12m ECL (note (||)) 18,462
FEMIR S N B FIR B2 b 1218 B FERREE FH1E (HTEEG)
Amounts due from joint ventures 25 Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 23,841
EWR & E P ERIE {EC L B (note (i)
SHENESER
CREGERME) (M)
Low risk 12m ECL (note (||)) 4,796
B2 128 B TR E E FH1E (BEEG)
Amounts due from joint operations/ 25 Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 609
other partners of joint operations {EC R B (note (i)
S PR S SHERESER
Hh BRI CREGERE) (M)
Watch list Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 160
Bz e (note (i)

2HIEEEEHE
CRBEERE) ()

Low risk 12m ECL (note (ii)) 54,576
1B/ B 1218 B FEHAE E &8 (MIaEG)
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fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Internal
2019 Notes credit rating
“EhE N A BB E B ETk
Amounts due from subsidiaries of a 26 Watch list
shareholder Ry s
FEW — % R BN B s IE
Other loans recelvable 27 Low risk
Hi e W& & B
Watch list
By
Pledged bank deposits 28 Low risk
EIERIRITERR R B
Short term bank deposits 28 Low risk
SHATRITIF N KRk
Bank balances 28 Low risk
PITHEER R B
Other item
HMIEH
Contract assets 24 Low risk
BREE BB B
Notes:

(i) The Group determines the expected credit loss on
lifetime ECL for trade debtors, contract assets,
and trade balances due from joint ventures, joint
operations/other partners of joint operations and
subsidiaries of a shareholder using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings based on historical
credit loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
estimates. The loss allowances are measured at an
average loss rate of less than 0.1% for trade debtors
and contract assets with low risk and at an average
loss rate of approximately 16% for trade debtors
under watch list while the loss allowances for trade
balances due from joint ventures, joint operations/
other partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of
a shareholder are insignificant.

054

40. &R T E (58
(b) £RIEAMGEIEEZEREE (E)

BEERRRRE G (8

Carrying
12m or lifetime ECL Amount
12BN HATEREEBHE BREARME

HK$'000
TAET
Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 94
(note (i)
S HATEREEBE
CBBEEERE BIEH)
12m ECL (note (||)) 33,855
1218 5 FEFRE E B8 (MIEEG)
12m ECL (note (ii)) 30,000
1218 5 FEFRE B B8 (MIEEG)
12m ECL (note (ii)) 16,044
1218 B TR E E 518 (BUEEG)
12m ECL (note (ii)) 94,638
1218 B TEHAE B E518 (MYEEi)
12m ECL (note (||)) 294,852
1218 B FEERE B E548 (MYEL(i)
Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 2,129,792
(note (i) N
S HATRIREEEIE

CRBEERE) ()
MiEE -

() AEBERABEMER DB BENRIERE, Bt
%%%W%E SHBENEBREERE,
CES Ve %?H@%#& 2 R ER P
? N=ipa= %%%#Eé%%%&f%%i
TEHRE SRR, NIBBATESBRERT
DRI EEHERE. YNERB<EZME
WRIB R G B E, BRI FIHEEX
DR01%TE  HNER KB E 5 EUGR
B, BEARERTHBEERN6% TR ; N
TWA“ﬁi\mﬁif/A“%fH@%
HRh—aRENBLNE 2B SR 1%
BRIt NE R,
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e MISHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. 2R T E (58

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) TRER I EIEEEREBUER (18)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRXBE S (&)
Notes: (Continued) fEE @ (18

(ii) E‘IWDBTD S EREEmE, ASENBHE
NE. BELE. AEER/GEEBCHE
B A B BERRFTHEERARB T E
TLREELN, EEERA—BEKRE
Bﬁ)% BN REF, SENEE N ]
EEPENEEER A“%?HWJ%@FZ
Hih M IEE Fiterw BB RAHIEE DI
BEaEE,

(i) For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses the financial information of
associates, joint ventures, joint operations/other
partners of joint operations to assess whether FRLIZR 2
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. The subsidiaries of a shareholder are
considered by management to have sound financial
position, and thus the loss allowances for associates,
joint ventures and joint operations/other partners
of joint operations are expected to be very minimal
and close to zero.

The Group has also used the historical past-due
experience and forward-looking information to
assess whether credit risk of other loans receivable
and other debtors has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The loss allowances for these
balances are measured at expected loss rates
ranging from 0% to 20% based on 12m ECL.

For pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits and bank balances, as these counterparties
are banks with high credit rating assigned by
infernational credit-rating agencies, the loss
allowance is expected to be very minimal and close
o zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. £R T B ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREEIEEZEREE (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER MBS (8)
The following table shows the reconciliation of TRV EREREENENWEERRIEER
impairment allowances that have been recognised for [Eag

financial assets and contract assets.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL 19mECL  Lifetime ECL (not

credit-impaired)  (credit-impaired) 19m ECL otherloans  credit-impaired)
trade debtors trade debtors other debtors receivable contract assets Total

BREWTE EZRNEE BHEEL

2R ZEBEH  HuEIGUE  HBEWER 2HRHEE

BEBE (1% EEFE IEE  2EAREH B (i
EERE) (EEREBE) FEEERE EEBE EERE) A
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TEx FEn TEr TEn
Asat 31 March 2018 - RZF—/\E
HKAS 39 (audited) =B=+-H
YAzl 3,833 - - - 3,833
—BBEHE
395 (LER)
Adjustment upon NEMNEBNEHRS
application of 28| B0k 9,693 - 5 1,608 505 1,81
HKFRS 9
Asat3IMarch 2018 RZE—/\E=ZF
-HKFRS 9 (restated) =+—H
. . 9,693 3,833 5 1,608 505 15,644
EEmELE ! : ’ '
HZE05% (1K E5)
Translation adjustments 1€ 3% ®) . () )
; )
(Revers'ed) provided ER (B Bl o) ) 334 6085 53 6469
during the year
Asat3IMarch 2019 RZE-NE
o 9,682 3,833 339 7,693 555 99,102
=“E=1+—H ' ' ' /
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. @M TE (18
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREEIEEZEREE (B)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk mENE R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REERBESRERE, AEESEETHREN
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash HEIBSEEBHMSEEEESN A RUENEE
equivalents deemed adequate by management to \$Z7}<:’:, TR EReERERESTE, BIERE
finance its operations and mitigate the effects of BERBITNEAMERCBRER, HBRETENR
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors 2 7 FTE

the utilisation of bank and other borrowings and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's current liabilities RTE—NF=B=+—H, x&EEZRHEE
exceeded its current assets by approximately B H E R B & E 4,343, 927 OOO/%TE (ZF—N
HK$4,343,927,000 (2018: HK$3,014,106,000), which % 13,014106,00087T) , BEHAEERZTER
causes the Group in significant liquidity risk. Subsequent nHBETRE, NIREAFRE, 2EEDHEHW
to the end of reporting period, the Group has taken SHIFTE B E U EER RS E SR R,

appropriate measures as set out in note 1 fo mitigate
such liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. BT B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eREEIEEZEREE (B)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEBLER (B)
The following table details the Group's contractual TEERAEBRIETESMEaE 53 EE,
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The YR EA B AR EREECERO e
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted MEERERREENMERE, BHE, WERE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest jzﬁ%{ = /)QIEZfET?&ETJ@fE TXi’j ﬁ’j\ﬂigﬁ
date on which the Group can be required to pay. BHEY, THIBETED 28T HEEREN, Ei
Specifically, bank and other borrowings with @ JETESMEE T JHH E ThERRTECESH,
repayable on demand clause are included in the earliest LEXOIEFNEN A RS RE, M E A%
time band regardless of the possibility of banks choosing 2, BIRAEIRE I HE BREHIER Z2FIER,

to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted  On demand Total Total

average or within 91 days - undiscounted carrying

interest rate 90 days lyear  Overlyear cash flow amount
mETy  ®EXF A+—H AR

FE A+BEUR F-F£ —ENUE &RERE REEESR
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FiER FiER FiER FiER FTiER

A—F =
At 31 March 2019 ﬁ\E“_jé‘E_ﬁ
Trade and other creditors EEZYSEN NN - 1542766 205,851 953566 2,002,183 2,002,183
Amounts due to joint operations/ e (- 4 A
other partners of joint ngz%%%ﬁg% B - 58,436 - - 58,436 58,436
operations - ”
Amount due to a subsidiary Jﬁﬁ %HX% B E _ 9,044 _ - 9,944 0,244
ofo shore older ,/_\ A TXI
Amount due to a related 7E 5/\5)2
company E—EEELBFIE - 2,340 - - 2,340 2,340
Loan from a subsidiary —ARR—ENE LT
of a shareholder B
- floating rate —%B 7% 70,410 - - 70,410 70,000
~ fixed rate -ZB 15% 5,000 - - 5,000 5,000
Loan from a related company HEEABER
- fixed rate -ZB 15% 107,350 - - 107,350 107,350
Bank and other borrowings BTN E AN
- floating rate - 5B 5.3% 3,518,454 8,287 18,313 3545054 3,541,624
- fixed rate —~ T8 19.9% 151,417 508,201 - 659,618 595,000
Convertible bonds R ES 18.8% - - 9918542 9,918,542 812,741

5,458,417 729,339 2,490,421 8,671,177 7,196,918

Financial guarantee contract SREREN - - - - - -
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40. 2T E (18)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) TREEEEIEEEREBUER (18)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE R (&)
Weighted  On demand Total Total
average or within 91 days - undiscounted carrying
interest rate 90 days Tyear  Overlyear cash flow amount
fgFy  ®WERH At+—H AERRE REE

ME A+HELUA F-5 —HUE RERE 258
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET

At 31 March 2018 ‘:;_QE A
Trade and other creditors B2 RE MR - 1,466,994 164,596 164,545 1796135  1796,135
Amount due to a joint venture  [E{T—BIE & (P E N8 - 52 - - 59 59
Anloir::rii::/tfi:::f artners BUSERS,/ 28X - 58,283 - - 58,283 58,283
prelony 8P BEMBENE : , :
of joint operations
Amount due t idiary of FEN—SE—ENE
mount due to a subsidiary o rﬁ, ?HX% BB ) 4710 ) ) 4710 4710
a shareholder NEFIE
g _ s =/ \=
I_OGH From a SUbSIdIGTy O]c a % HX% Fﬂ M]LE AN a 7.0% 751432 _ _ 751432 75[000
shareholder - floating rate BFR-2E
Bank and other borrowings RITNEMET
- floating rate = 3.6% 3,795,548 8,41 29,034 3,832,993 3,828,554
- fixed rate = 24.7% 315,871 - - 315,871 315,000
Convertible bonds PR ES 18.8% - - 2018542 2,218,542 684,61

5716,890 173,007 2,412,121 8,302,018 6,762,345

Financial guarantee contract 5= @R IE R & 1Y - 13,500 - - 13,500 -
The amounts included above for financial guarantee SPA LR EREBRENCSBINEERERIK
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could SHEFEHPRARNIENASERBELZHA
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full AN EEERRCREE 2. ENBETHERC
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the 155, ARERBABAEEBBRBELEZ AN
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations I8, FAM, MEETAIgEBRTeRE, THEUANRKE
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers EERERMBRIBC X ZHFEXEERBAM
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be EERIBE < A e,

payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.
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\E_B—NEZB=+—BILEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

40. £ TE ()
(b) &R ERREEEIRREUR (18)

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the “on demand or within
90 days” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other borrowings amounted to HK$587,200,000 and
HK$764,130,000 respectively. Taking info account the
Group's financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that
such bank and other borrowings will be repaid together
with interest within one year is based on the scheduled

repayment dates of the loan agreements amounted to

HK$591,496,000 (2018: HK$768,095,000).

In addition, bank borrowings with the undiscounted
principal amount of HK$2,941,924,000 that had not
complied with certain loan covenants as disclosed in
note 1(i) are also included in the "on demand or within
90 days" time band in the above maturity analysis.
The directors of the Company believe the waivers
could be obtained and so such bank borrowings will be
repaid fogefher with interest based on the scheduled
repayment dates of the loan agreement amounted

to HK$608,465,000 (2018: HK$612,331,000)
within one year and HK$2,555,184,000 (2018:
HK$2,751,659,000) after one year.
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nBEEER (])
R BB EEZENREPRBECEHEN X
HIREE, STALRFTEERERCFRTE
ZEREESEE,

MBBREREEFIENC BITREMERETA
B A AT MR EREE L L+ B LAY

ZEESBEN,. R_E—NEF-A=+—HK

TE-N\F=Z/A=+—0H, ZERTLEME

T2 RARIBA S #8587 B 45587,200,0007E 7T M
764,130,00078 7T, #&&E EAREE 2 HHARE,
ANBEERE, BITIHFARIEITEERNSE
ERAMFERN. ANBEBEERA, ZSFHRITLE
MEFEEFES —RRIEBEERRZECTEEE

THAR — B E £ 4B 4591,496,00078 7T (5
—J\4E : 768,095,000 7T) o

b4y, RAEBSFHE)FFIRECE T ENZHE
Mok B IR AR £ 48 42,941,924, 00078 70 2 IR1T1E
TP LR BIEA B AR /RET A R E SRS L+ H
DI 2 BSEIEE, AAFE LR AEMIER
g, BERBRTEIBREETHZENME
EETHR—FENEFF EE1E608,4650007E
70 (T —)\4F 1 612,331,000/870) ML —F%#%
1[5 F) B1E159,555,184,0005 71 (ZE—/\F ©
9,751,659,00075 7T) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=A=T—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values.

41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES AND OTHER
POST EMPLOYMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are sepctrct’re|y held in funds under the control of trustees.
The cost chctrgecl to the consolidated statement of profif

or loss represents contributions pctyob|e to the funds by the

Group af rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are emp|oyees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions. At the end of the reporting period, there were
no forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group's
contributions becoming fully vested and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future

years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. Under the
MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

2061

40. £ TE ()

() ERMIBZRTFENE
REFCEERN T EAECEREERERERE
ZRFEIRBASREERIRCIREREAE
DITMERE, MRERZBARRRZZHFE
BRI BEIRE,

FREERRR, ARBEREBHENATHEZER
EENTMEECRABTIHFEREHNERF
(=8

41. RREFFTE R H BB R RN FTE

FEESHEEREERE R EHFURMKEFFTE
FZEHACEERSEANEECZHEASEIRF
Bo RFEREXRBLECEBRA/AERLZSTE
ZRAFEZ A= N TFEEZ HR.

MEEEREZAAERHN R HREIED
Zet8), AEEEMHIVE RN HZ 2588
Eole MBMEHAR, BIELSHRESNAEERMES
BB BER B AR L 5T 8I M ™) A LOORRAR R B
FAEBRBNHEIZBOZ WA

RM-EEFFT_F—HiE, AEEMARFIMER
Bt (aEestdl) . BETTE ERE R
MRRESBIRAIEREIME NS EEREC.
BEitBIcEEBUNAEBCEE, BBIIX
NEReEE2FK B, RBBRESTE KRR, B
REEVAE BIMFRIFTRHZ L =[N &
EEREMMBEECEEEEARBEIFLE
EZ W RIFBETEE], T EFrERNWM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

r the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES AND OTHER
POST EMPLOYMENT SCHEMES (Continued)

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the rates

specified in the rules of the scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in refirement
benefit schemes organised by the local government
authority in the PRC. They are required to make certain
monthly contributions based on the local standard basic
salaries. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

41 RREFF B R E BB R AR R (B

KsaiR 5T 8IMIEH < BIKBAF BB BT
kR, HERAEE L ERAEFTRHERAESE
FEAT 2 o

FEESRAMCEREBEREBER E@ﬁ@ﬂﬁ
gl A CEERBURSNEECZRES
FERDHAFB. —BXIHE I%IEEH@
ﬁﬂfﬁoﬁmhjﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁa&ﬂﬁi,
ﬁ%%?%i%%@%%@%ﬁﬁﬁm%aWZﬁ
TR Do

AREE 2 PRI B N ) 2 i T B E M AT R E
B2 RRENE 8. NERREMTERLFHIE
AXNETHR. AEE R BRESTEELRE H
o, HIBEREIT Eﬁﬁ*m%uu$%U:Zf?f£o

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss are set out in RIBRFER BT BN S FIREZ W 582100
notes 8 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 4. BRI
2019 2018
—NE B \F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BRI ERNRIF S IR E
provided in the consolidated financial WEMRERELLFERZ
statements in respect of =N
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment -BEYE. BRI 8,984 110,626
- hotel under development - BEPRIE - 97,971
8,984 208,597
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44.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

r the year ended 31 March 2019
E_E-NF=RA=T—HLFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. HARAEE
2019 2018
T = N\E
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHETT TATT
Indemnities issued to financial institutions for MEEERCERGNER
bonds on construction contracts of ZAREE MO REAE B 28 45,544 44,738
joint operations < B R

In addition, the Company had a corporate guarantee issued
to a bank for facilities granted to an associate. The extent of
such facilities utilised by the associate as at 31 March 2018
amounted to HK$13,500,000.

No provision has been made in the consolidated financia
statements as it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

FH, RRBH—EBE N ER CMEmE—E
WITEHZNEER. RE—/\F=F=1+—H,
575 R & M13,500,00078 7T DWW HE & N S EH,

RROEN R LR BEEEE, ®RRE
LRy (s

81753k

IEEHEERE

RI|BEHR, AEBEENABIHCBRERAYEL
EHEEHEBHEARRFEEETTURE. LFEE
ZATERIE

2019 2018

—E-hnE “E2-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET BT

Within one year —&Erw 392,805 35,172

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERLEF (BRMFE 23,000 47,918
ER)

55,805 83,090

Leases in respect of premises are negotiated, and monthly
rentals are fixed, for terms ranging from one fo five years.

Leases in respect of plant and machinery are negotiated
based on individual contracts and the Group had no
significant commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of these p|cmf and

machinery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) The Group entered into the following significant
transactions with its related parties during the year:

Nature of transaction

RHEE

Class of related party
RAE A 48R

Joint ventures
S

HEBIEWA

Construction works charged by the Group
REBIWEERTIZE

Revenue from project management

Interest charged by the Group

AE B 2

A company wholly owned by

a director of the Company A& &= H] 2

ZN/N T %%%i BH%A
AN

Interest charged to the Group

45. FEAN LR 5 KiEeR
() B, AEBEEMEALITIINTEARS !

2019 2018
“E-NE —\F
HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FET
48,223 707,365

103 129

374 4

3,340 -

The related party transaction entered into with a
company wholly owned by a director of the Company
as disclosed above also constituted connected
transaction of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transaction is fully exempt from
shareholders” approval, annual review and all disclosure

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Other than that, none of the related party transactions
disclosed above constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in the

Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 45. BEAN LR 5 RiEER (1)
(Continued)
(b) The remuneration of key management personnel b) ERTESEBEASCHNOT :
during the year was as follows:
2019 2018
—E—hE B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Short-term employee benefits WEREEET 32,280 41,245
Post-employment benefits RIRER 732 741
Share-based payment MR 72 20 2 TR 1,241 4920
34,253 492,406
The remuneration of key management personnel is FEBEBEABCHFM I BEFMEE22ZERA
determined by the remuneration committee having B RBENTIZGEBEAMET.
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
Details of the balances with associates, joint ventures and a REEHR, EBENE. aEbtE—BBEN
related company at the end of the reporting period are set Bl FEERFFIBE D R BN AR & I Sk i 2k K My 525
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and in K316

notes 25 and 31 respectively.
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

R SRR M EE

46. RN BIMFHEAR R T

COMPANY
2019 2018
—F-nE &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
[nvestments in subsidiaries RIBABRE 1,058,833 6,482,690
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other debtors Eh e IS 129 133
Bank balances RITiEER 1,308 687,217
1,437 687,350
CURRENT LIABILITIES REERE
Other creditors and accrued expenses HfETIE N FESTR S 13,691 7,932
Earnest money received 2WHES 70,000 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BN Bl FIE 784,404 865,800
Amount due to a subsidiory %fﬁ*%ﬂﬁ%*%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁa%ﬁlﬁ 193 B
of a shareholder
Amount due to a related company [T —REREE N Bl FUA 2,340 -
Loan from a subsidiary — BB T B 65,000 65,000
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder —ZRE—RBNE L GBS 5,000 -
Loan from a related company —ERENEER 107,350 -
Other borrowings HEn 130,000 -
1,177,908 938,732
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. RN BRI E (E)
COMPANY (Continued)
2019 2018
—E-NEF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEEIRE (1176,471) (251,382)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT e s
BEERRHER
LIABILITIES REERAHAR (117,638) 6,231,308
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FEREIEE
Convertible bonds iR EEs 812,741 684,611
(930,379) 5,546,697
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR R
Share capital B A 209,591 202,591
Reserves (Note) CHERNES) (1,132,970) 5,344,106
TOTAL EQUITY TAMELS (930,379) 5,546,697
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Movements of reserves of the Company during the current
and prior years are as follows:

At Aprl 2017

Loss and fotal comprehensive

expense for the yeor
Cap\ta\ reduction

‘SSUE O{ th'& 1ssue: ShGYES

Transaction costs atfrbutable fo issue

of rights ssue shores

Recognition of equity-settled share- ~ F

based payment expenses of
the share option schere of the

Company (Note 37(a))

Recogrition of equity-seftled share- 7

based payment expenses of
the share avard scheme of the

Company (Note 38(a))

Shares vested under the share award

scheme (Note 38(a))

Transfer upon \apse of share aption

Share

premium

H58
HK$ 000

7
2,080,474

826,780

@02)

HEmERD

46. KRB BARRE (18)

5
KRBRAEE KRB
Shares held Share
for shore opfion
award scheme reserve

i

HKS 000 HKS 000

Total

HK$ 000
7
4001767

(1,266,846)

1823317
806,780

(41102)

(2173)

1,089

11274

At 31 March 2018

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year

Recognition of equity-settled share-
based payment expenses of
the share option scheme of the
Company (Note 37(a))

TK]V\S{@Y upon \apse Of shore OW(]Vd

Transfer upon lapse of share option

3,068,152

5,344,106

(6,477,861)

785

At 31 Morch 2019

3,068,152

TEL Tin
(467%) 93,544
oIm)

33,690
(65,099)
(15.063) 96972
785
(62
(15.063) 20,840

(1132,970)

The special reserve of the Company represented the
difference between the aggregate of the net asset value

of, and shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y. Management
Contracting amounting to HK$250,000,000 and the issue
value of the shares of HK$400,000,000 as consideration

for the acquisition of Paul Y. Management Contracting in

prior years.

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

41 AREERYEECER

TEREFINAEBERBE
FIRENIFRE
EREBBEFUHHEBIR

B8, KA

ZHER

SREEECEECES, &
SEBEECEERR
EREBR TN AER 2R

be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BREREXNESMETHBRERECER,

Interest
payable
and loan
management
Loan from  Loan from a fee and Bank
arelated  subsidiary of fransaction and other Convertible
company a shareholder costs payable borrowings bonds Total
FERTF]2
—BREZ MER
—ERE —EnE BEEN BTk
REMER  REER RHEME HER  SEREsS a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THEIT TET TET FHEIT TET
(Note 31) (Note 392)
(PFEE31) GE=)
At 1 April 2017 R_E—tEMNA—H - 32,000 60,388 3,948,354 576,707 4,617,449
Financing cash inflows BIEIRE A - 43,000 - 1,853,840 - 1,896,840
Financing cash MEBES R - - (203,983) (1,658,640) - (1,862,623)
outflows
Interest expenses and
loan management FREFZHNERSR
fee and transaction  EFEEE N ZM - - 285,667 - 107,904 393,571
costs incurred during 7
the year
At 31 March 2018 \i; /éi R - 75,000 142,072 4,143,554 684,611 5,045,237
Financing cash inflows BIEIREAA 11,150 5,000 - 2,216,710 - 2,332,860
Financing cash s
i REBESAL (3,800) (5000)  (257,370) (2,023,640) . (2,489.810)
Offsetting with
deposits for et =l itni= - - (80,000) - - (80,000)
investments
Interest expenses and
loan management  FENESE ZH| SRS N
fee and transaction ENSEENRZW - - 316,975 - 128,130 445,105
costs incurred Vi
during the year
A—E_ =
At 31 March 2019 ﬁ\;i_jéﬁiﬂ 107,350 75,000 121,677 4,136,624 812,741 5,253,392
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 June 2019, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with a third party to dispose of the Group's
total of twenty four of motor vehicles for an aggregate
consideration of HK$24,000,000 and the consideration
was received on the same date.

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
regjstration/ registered capital/
operation capital
Name of subsidiary M/ g% BETRERRE/
(ol =YNSTE2Y b &L/ Ex
Challenge Shore Limited British Virgin lslands US$1
('BVI") ordinary share
RBmARS (R 1ETEER

BRUEE)
China Earth Limited Hong Kong HK$1
ERERLNT &E ordinary share
BT EER
Corless Limited BVI US$2
EERUEE ordinary shares
VESRE il
Euro Dynasty Limited BVI US$3
EERUEE ordinary shares
ETEER
Falloncroft Investments BVI 5,400,000,000
Limited %E %ﬁ?% ordmory shares of
no par volue
5,400,000,000% &
HEZER
South Shore Management Hong Kong HK$1

Limited (formerly knownas &7
The 15 Management

ordinary share

AT EER

Limited)

BEEEERA T(W@

T=EBERLTE)

The 13 Management Ltd. Macau MOP25,000 capital
TZEE-ABRLE  AM 95,000 8P &L
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48. MEMRFIR

RTE—NERAZHAH, AEEHE—R%E=FH
Ji%ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%D%D%%mﬁ%G#
2485, WERFHIKRENE,
49. FEMBRF. BERE. SECERGEXHE
#t
() KRB EEMBRANR-F—NER-FE—N\E
ZA=+—HzHBUWT:
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital/capital
FEBREERIRA/FARER/EACENN
held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activity
WELERE FEEELG TEES
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZEF\E ZE-hWE ZE\E
% % % %
100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RELR
100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
"ERER
100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
REER
100 100 5176 5176 Investment holding
REER
100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RETR
100 100 100 100 Management and
secretarial services
SERWERS
100 100 100 100 Project management
BHHEE
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

Issued and

Place of fully paid

incorporation/ share capital/

regjstration/ registered capital/

operation capital

Name of subsidiary MiL/GM/ g% BEORBERLS/
(il UNSEZY bk HREx/Ex
Manlink Limited BVI US$1
EERUEE ordinary share

IETEER

New Concordia Macau MOP25,000 capital
G 3 05,000 2P EE A
Paul Y. (E&M) Hong Kong HK$60,000,000
Contractors L'\mi‘red EE ordinary shares
REHETRERLT 60,000,000 7
Rl

Paul Y. Builders Group Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
FEREEEARENT BE VETE R
HK$1,000,000

non-voting deferred
shares (Note (i) below)

1,000,000 7
ERDIERER
S GEQ)
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000
REREERLT &5 ordinary shares
900,000,000 7
el
Paul Y. Curtain Wall and Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
Aluminium Works Company & 72 0BT EER
Limited (formerly known as
Paul Y. Curtain Wall and
Aluminium Works Company
Limited and Paul Y Builders
Materials Company
Limited)
RERERETREERL
5 (FIRRERRARE
W{ﬁ@ VBl RePaul Y.
Builders Materials Company
Limited)
Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong HK$390,000,000
Engineering Co. Limited EE ordinary shares
RERZTREBRELT 390,000,000 7
LA
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49. TEMBARE. MENE). SELENAEXBE

# (18)

() RRBEEMB RN _F-—NERZF—/\F
ZR=+—HZHBWOT : (@

Percentage of issued share capital/

reg\sfered capital/capital
FEEEECHORE/GAREL/EFCED
held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activity
WELERE FEEEL TEES
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0E T2 \E ZE-hE ZZ\E
% % % %
100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RELR
100 100 100 100 Hotel development
EEERE
99.9999 99.9999 51.7599 517599 Provision of electrical,
mechanical and
building services
REBHIRERS
100 100 51.76 5176 Investment holding
RERK
100 100 5176 5176  Building construction
BFRE
100 100 51.76 5176 Trading and installation of
building materials
BEMHES RER
100 100 51.76 5176 Building construction and

specialist works

BTRENBELR

SOUTH SHORE HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr MG IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
(EYNSEAS

Paul Y. Construction &
Engineering Pte. Limited

Paul Y. Construction and
Engineering Sdn. Bhd.

Paul Y. Construction
(Ching) Limited ‘
RERZ (PE) BRLE

Paul Y. Construction
Company, Limited
REREERLT

Paul Y. Construction
Holdings Limited

RERLEEBRLT

Paul Y. Construction
International Limited

Paul Y. Contracting Limited

Paul Y. Facilities
Management Co,, Limited

RERMERERLT

49. TEMBRE). BENE.

# (18)

BEERREERTE

(o) ARBEEMBREN_F—
ZR=+—HZHBWOT:

NERZEFE—/N\E

(&)

Issued and
P\oce of _ full poid Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ reg‘swed copitalcapitl
regjstration/ registered capital/ FEEE ﬁﬂyzﬁ/ SR K/Eiz 54
operation capital . :
Wi/ g DETRERRE/ held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group
bk HREx/Ex WELERE FEEEL
2019 N 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0E T2 \E ZE-hE ZZ\E
% % % %
Singapore SGD10,000,000 100 100 51.76 5176
HR ordingry shares
10,000,000 M 7T
el
Moalaysia RMI1,000,000 100 100 51.76 5176
YN ordinary shares
1,000,000 %
LER
The PRC RMBI20,000,000 100 100 51.76 5176
FE registered capital
(Note (m))
AEE
120,000,0007C
(B 5 i)
Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 5176 5176
g orglinory shares
OETE B
HK$50,000,000 -
non-voting
preferred shares
(Note (i) below)
50,000,000
ERERELN
S GE)
Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 5176 5176
E ordinory shares
0BT EER
BVI US$50,002 100 100 51.76 5176
ERREUEE ordinory shares
50,0000 E B
Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 5176 51.76
EE ordinary shares
100Z T E &k
Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 5176 51.76
£E ordinory shares
0ETEER
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Principal activity
IBXH

Construction

ERIR

Construction

BETE

Civil engineering and
building construction

IATERETES

Civil engineering, building
construction and
investment holding

TARTRE BFEEk
RERK

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Construction

BREIRE

Facilities management
services

Ditm EHE@&
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ETE-NF=R=1—

HIEFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary
(EYNSEAS

Paul Y. Finance Limited
REMBERNT
Paul Y. Foundation

(Macau) Lm‘red
REME (2F) BRLE
Paul Y. Foundohon

Holdings Limited

Paul Y. Fou\nda?ion Limited
REHEERNT

Paul Y. General
Contractors Limited

RERREGERLT

Paul Y. Inferior
Contractors Limited

RELH TRERLT

Paul Y. Management
(Macau) Limited
REEE(2M)E

Paul Y. Management
Contracting Group Limited

R

REERIEEEBRLT

Paul Y. Management Limited
FEEEERENT

Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited
RERWASER AT

Paul Y. Project Management
International Limited
ﬁ%l BIEERER
YN=|

49. TEMBRE). BENE.

# (18)

(o) ARBEEMBREN_F—

ZR=+—HZHBWOT:

BELEREEERE

NERZEFE—/N\E
(18

Issued and
P\oce of _ full poid Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ regisered capttal/captal
regjstration/ registered capital/ REEE Eaé;fﬁaﬂ&/ SR jﬁ/ ERYTEH
operation capital - :
Wi/ G/ e% BEIREERE/ held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activity
bk HREx/Ex WELERE FEEEL TEES
2019 N 2018 2019 2018
ZE-0E T2 \E ZE-hE ZZ\E
% % % %
Hong Kong HKS$! ordinary share 100 100 5176 5176 Provision of finance
&R AL ER RMRE
Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 5176 5176 Civil engineering and
B 95,0002 MHEX foundation works
TARTRRMETRE
BVI Us$1 ordinary share 100 100 51.76 5176 Investment holding
EBERUHE 1ETEER RERR
Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 5176 5176 - Civil engineering and
—é% ordinor\/ shares foundation works
10,000,000 IATRRETR
el
Hong Kong HK$500,000,000 100 100 5176 5176 Civil engineering and
é% ordinory shares bui\dmg construction
500,000,000 70 IATRRETES
LBk
Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100 100 51.76 5176 Interior decoration
&5 ordinary shares works and services
15,000,000 70 ERREIRLERS
LER
Hong Kong HKS! ordinary share 100 100 5176 5176 Management and
s AL G AR secrefofia| services
EERNERS
BVI US$2,000 100 100 5176 5176  Investment holding
%,EJE'QEE% ordinary shares &éﬁﬁ&b
900050 EER
Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 51.76 5176 Management and
EE OETLE Bk secretarial services
SERWERS
Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 Trading and letting of
EE OETEBH plant and machinery
wELREEZRAE
Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 5176 51.76  Project management
—é% ordinory shares services and
OETLE Bk investment holding
AREEEER
REZR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 49. TEMBRE. MERE. SELERGEEBE
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT £ (8
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (@) ZRBFEMBRAERN _BE—NER_E—/N\E
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued) =RA=+—BZ=EEBENT (@)
Issued and
P\oce of _ full pmd Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital/captal
regjstration/ registered capital/ FEEELERET yZ’K/ SR K/EXZEI
operation capital :
Name of subsidiary Wi/ G/ e% BEIREERE/ held by the subsidliaries attributable to the Group  Principal activity
B E4THE gk &L/ EX WEBRERE FEEES FEEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE ZE)0\E ZE-hE 2%
% % % %
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 51.76 5176 Construction
A % ordinory shares Eﬁlﬁz
1000570 & &k
PY Construction (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 5176 5176 Construction
Lim'\‘red i 95,000 2F B E X BETRE
FRERZEZ (8FY)
RN /\*
PYE BVI HK$1292,055,899.60 100 100 51.76 5176 Investment holding
RERZE EERUEE ordinary shares RELR
192,055,899.607 7T
Epalid
PYE General Contractors Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 51.76 51.76  Construction
(Macau) Limited B 95,0002 F5 &R BaRTRE
BREERDEREAT
Unistress Concrete Products Hong Kong HK$200,000 100 100 5176 5176 Manufacturing, trading
(HK) Limited 5E ordinary shares and installation of
FERTER (&R 200,000 0 5 &t concrete products and
BRAF construction works
/tb/%fji iu]@zf % 25
RERMRERTE
HK$1,000,000 100 100 51.76 51.76
non-voting deferred
shares (Note (i) below)
1,000,000/ 7
ERDIERER
I GED)
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ECE-NF=ZB=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 49. TEMBLE. BHERF. GERERGEXTE

ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT (18

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) KRB EFTEMBREN _ETE—HNER_E—/\E
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued) =A=+—H Z—:}“é ha SN =)]
All of the above subsidiaries are indirecﬂy held by the AR ENEREERANEBEEFE.
Company.
The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Group UEBRFINARNBIEZERATEZELAEH
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, FREBIERAEB FEERBAELD ZI%.
principally affected the results for the year or formed WE LB, ANBEERA, FHHMKEL
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To ZERBETRBEITR.

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

Notes: B 5E -

(i) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are (i) SR EREE RS A EERE, 75
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends miEE /)T/?Tffj VBEECKRE, BERERE
for any financial year and are, on winding up or AN ERFNEEAMBERL D /)T/?% %Z
otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of ]O0,000,000,000,000%E%J BREE
the company to a return of the capital after a total ANEHEREGEECIERT, %i@ﬁ;iéfﬁo

sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of
the company.

(i) The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are (ii) S EGEREIREE NEERE, TE
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends BERRK S, BRIFEZN B AIMHIR EFF &
unless the net profits of the company available 100,000,000,0008 7T, fLIER T, tLEH
for dividends exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in BLEMREERR—IEEE 7%5%2.7]?3&
which case they should be entitled to fixed non- RERE, BRERAZNEEERD IS
cumulative dividends at the rate of 5% per annum 10,000,000,00078 75 T 5%/~ &) %J@ﬂx?ﬁﬁ/\éﬁ
for any financial year and are, on winding up, only HBERGEEIERLT, BREEAR,

entitled out of the surplus assets of the company

to a return of the copifcd after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the

holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

(iii) The entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise (i) LLERBANRPREMNIIHNEEE RS,
established in The PRC.
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

#(18)

4. TEMBANE. BERE. SEEERGERTE

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as

at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during both
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose
place of incorporation/registration/operation are
mainly in Hong Kong or BV, are construction, property
o|eve|opmenf management, other business, investment
holding or inactive.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

() ARBEFEMBRANRZE—NERZZ—/N\F
=B=+— EZﬁTEQU—F. (18
Eﬁ%&iHHEEYHAFWIEﬁZETﬂB%FE%ﬁq, i)
BRBHE TREFE S

RIBEHR, RRBHEEHAERMES W IFE
REMBLRE. ZEFEWNBA TZEEJ/DE%
EEMMIEAEEURBRLES, MEH
RERTRE. MERESE. BEMERH. RER

REVEEZS,

(b) HEEERIFZRER ZIFEEMB LR ZFHE

T%%Z?'J?EE%?(?EW&E*ZZ&%liE =1
REZEFE

Proportion of ownership of
issued ordinary share capita
Place of Principal place held by

Profit allocated to

Accumulated

Name of subsidiary incorporation of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
o \ FERERRERY LR o -
WEL TR Ga AR TRERMY  RRAEEREL  HEDHIRELCEN RetFERER
2019 2018 2019 2018
g p =k TE-hAE T3\E ZEE C3E
—ETE L HKS000 HK$OOO HK$ 000 HK$QOO
) o TExm TExr  TEm TEn
PYE BVI Hong Kong 48.94 48.94 3,491 996,844 314,763
RERE RERUES Ele
3401 996,844 314763
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

4. TEMBANE. BERE. SEEERGERTE
#(18)

(b) HEEERIFZREB ZIFEEMB LR ZFHE

material non-controlling interests (Continued) (38)
BEEEARFFIEREGRCAEENWB LB «HEE
EHLAIN ™, U T HBERBEREEENLSME

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial HIHE] 2 58,
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
PYE IREEEZE
2019 2018
i I e
HK$‘909 HK$'QOQ
FET BT

Non-current assets IERENEE 272,624 233,010
Currents assets REEE 4,518,615 4,756,612
Current ligbilities mENEE (3,988,951) (4,026,727)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (9,227) (6,836)
Equity attributable to owners of PYE (REEIZZETER A FE(LEL 793,061 956,059
Revenue WA 9,347,637 6,799,529
Profit for the year Fryaf] 41,167 31,966
Profit attributable to owners of PYE REFEZEER NESLRT 41,167 31,966
Other comprehensive (expense) income REZXHEE ANEGHEMS

attributable to owners of PYE H (Bs) & (10,098) 17,015
Other comprehensive (expense) FEHMEE G%) Wi (10,098) 17,015

income for the year
Total comprehensive income T%%L%%E/\ffﬁiﬁﬂ&

attributable to owners of PYE RHER 31,069 48,981
Total comprehensive income attributable T%%L%iE#“Hﬂ%ﬁWﬁA

to the non-controlling interests of PYE IELEAS ot - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FELEWEEE 31,069 48,981
Net cash from operating activities HERESER VRS %8 15,905 39,155
Net cash used in investing activities ARRE RS IR 5% (97,967) (91,678)

"y

Net cash (used in) from financing activities (H E ) REME AT HE (78,124) 185,093
Net cash (outflows) inflows E/Ehi (mu'jj) MAHEE (160,186) 125,570
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(c) Particulars of the Company's principal associate as at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

49 TERBAT. BEAD. SECRRASLES
K ()
() ARFAETEHENAR-BE—NER-B—N\F
ZA=+—RZHENT

Place of
LZ;TSI’E z;;f;}n/ Percentage of reglsfered capital
ol EMERIBA L
Name of associate i/ Reglsfered capital  held by the subsidiaries attributable to the Group  Principal activity
EWNSIEaTE =i fAEx B EEE AEEES TEXH
2019 2018 2019 2018
$AE T \& “E-hF —F\5
% % % %

Zhong Yu - Paul Y. The PRC US$500,000 40 40 207 20.7 Project management
Project Management thE registered capital and consultancy
Company Limited (Note (i) below) services

ERPFRETRER 500,000%7¢ BEEERBEERS
EEBRAT SfER

O ED)

The above associate is held by the Company indirectly. FRBE N B AN BB ERF .

Note: Mﬁé

(i) This company is sino-foreign equity joint venture (i) N BPNEERENT.

company.
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 4. TEMBANE. BERE. SEEERGERTE
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT £ (58)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(d) Particulars of the Company's principal joint ventures (d) ARBFTEGECLEN_E—NER_E—/\E
as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: =B=1+—HZ=HBWT
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of issued share capital/
regjstration/ registered _ regis’refred cgp'\‘roV CE‘P”"'
operation capital/capitol E¥ARA/EMEL/ErzaNt
Name of joint venture EXﬁ/E{H/ﬁ% Eﬁéﬁ&@iﬁﬁ%K/ held by the subsidiaries aftributable to the Group Pr'mcipo| activity
BERELH bk HMELR/EX WELERE FEERG TEEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZngE F-\E ZE-RE “T)\E
% % % %
Paul Y. - iMax Limited Hong Kong HK$2 50 - 25.88 - Construction, consultancy
é% ordinory shares Eﬁ_ﬁ%&@ i
OETEBH
Paul Y. - Lian Beng Singapore SGD300,000 50 50 25.88 2588 Construction
JV Pre. Ltd. g ordinary shares BATRE
300,000 1%
TEER
Paul Y. - Omos Joint Macau MOP100,000 capital 50 50 95.88 95.88  Construction
Venture Company Limited %9 100,000 F5HE K BETR
RE-RENEBRLT
MIEMELERAF The PRC RMB53,000,000 50 50 95.88 9588 Investment holding
HE registered capital REZR
AE/53,000,00070
HREX
TNEBRRFEEERAT  The PRC RMBI0,000,000 50 50 95.88 2588  Property holding
s registered capital NEFE
A& 10,000,0007T
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ECE-NFZRA=T—HLFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATE, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(e) Particulars of the Company's principal joint
operations as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as

ZR=+—HZHFBEOT:

4. TEMBANE. BERE. SEEERGERTE
#(18)
() ARBEBEERBN _FT-—NERF—N\F

follows:
Place of Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Issued ond fully paid registered capital/capital
registration/ share capital/registered BRARA/AMER/BRZEN L
operation capital/capital ]
Name of joint operation L Eﬂ}/ﬁé‘é Eiéfﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%K/E held by the subsidiaries atfributable to the Group Principal activity
BELELR 8 Max/ &% HELFSE AREEE E2= 1
2019 2018 2019 2018
2N “2-\& ZZ-hE “Z)\E
% % % %
Laing O " Rourke - Hsin Chong Hong Kong Note (i) 225 295 1.65 165 Civil engineering
- Paul Y. Joint Venture &% FREEG) TARTRE
Laing O " Rourke - Hsin Chong Hong Kong Note (i) 225 295 1.65 1,65 Civil engineering
- Paul Y. (WKCD) Joint Venture BE Hy5E() TARTE
Paul Y. - Able Joint Venture Hong Kong Note (i) 70 - 36.23 - Construction
FE-ZREHE &4 BFEEG) BAETRE
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau Note (i) 50 50 25.88 2588  Construction
FE-ZRHENT AP HEE() BETRE
Paul Y. - Yau Lee Joint Venture Macau Notes (i) and (ii 60 60 31.06 3106 Construction
AP GRIGNG) BRETR
Note (i):  There is no issued share capital/registered MIEEG) EE E\ ZENBAIEENEE, OTE
capital/capital for the joint operations as EEH EA?WTHXK/E% NK/
they are unincorporated bodies. jbeO
Note (ii):  During the year ended 31 March 2018, the MIEEG) . BE_F—/\F=B=+—HILFE

Group acquired certain assets and liabilities
of the joint operation from the other partner
of joint operation while the joint operation
partner shall be jointly and severally liable in
respect of hidden defects in the construction
works. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the transaction is not material to
the consolidated financial statements as a
who|e, and no separate disclosure note to
be made.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBI

For the year ended 31 March
BE-B=t+—HIZFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2R ERF 22—t T-N\&F IZE-AEF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 9,393,418 6,811,519 6,197,109 6,799,599 9,381,863
Profit (loss) before tax MRRIRETEF (B518) 95,944 (210,339) (32,451)  (1,570,040)  (5,837,044)
Income tax expense FTSIRR = (33,856) (22,484) (7,773) (334) (4,204)
Loss for the year FEEE (7,912) (232,816) (40,224) (1,570,374) (5,841,248)
(Loss) ‘profif for the year Fgfﬁig (Eﬂé) /ﬁﬂ :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE Z=WN (29,883) (197,361) (44,559) (1,573,795)  (5,847,646)
Non-controlling interests JEVR AR IR S 21,971 (35,455) 4,335 3,491 6,398
(7,919) (239,816) (40,294) (1570,374)  (5,841,248)
At 31 March
P=F=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
TE-FE E—F E—t5 “Z-\& IZZ-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET AT FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENEE
Total assets TREE 19,375,203 19,546,594 13,523,795 13,945,190 8,359,140
Total liabilities mas (6,087,387)  (6,496,199) (7,503,11)  (8,485823)  (8,935,752)
Total equity TERELS 6,287,816 6,050,395 6,020,684 5,459,367 (576,612)
Equity attributable to: FE(LRERS .
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE7 =N 5,885,907 5,709,382 5,680,446 5,144,604 (803,456)
Non-controlling interests FEPERS RS 401,909 341,013 340,238 314,763 296,844
6,287,816 6,050,395 6,020,684 5,459,367 (576,612)
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GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce Independent Non-Executive Director
Francis Goutenmacher  Independent Non-Executive Director

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny Independent Non-Executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP (Chairman)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
lain Ferguson Bruce
Francis Goutenmacher

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Walter Craig Power

DISCLOSURES COMMITTEE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Tom Ko Yuen

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen

lain Ferguson Bruce
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PYE COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Chairman)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mui Ching Hung, Joanna

SOLICITORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)
Leonel Alves Law Firm (Macau)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Banco Nacional Ultramarino

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Macau Branch

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 1005, 10th Floor

China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan
Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2577 6113

Fax: +852 2577 6213

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor, North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.southshore-holdings.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577
Reuters 0577 . HK
Bloomberg 577 : HK
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